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consumer purchasing activities; changes in the mix of products sold by us; competitive pressures on sales; pricing and sales margins; the level 
of cable and satellite distribution for our programming and associated fees; the success of our e-commerce initiatives; the success of our 
strategic alliances and relationships; our ability to manage our operating expenses successfully; risks associated with acquisitions; changes in 
governmental or regulatory requirements; litigation or governmental proceedings affecting our operations; and our ability to obtain and retain 
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PART I  

ITEM 1. BUSINESS  

When we refer to "we," "us" or the "company," we mean ValueVision Media, Inc. and its subsidiaries unless the context requires otherwise. 
ValueVision Media, Inc. is a Minnesota corporation with principal and executive offices located at 6740 Shady Oak Road, Eden Prairie, 
Minnesota 55344-3433. ValueVision Media, Inc. was incorporated on June 25, 1990. Our fiscal year ended February 3, 2007 is designated 
fiscal 2006, our fiscal year ended February 4, 2006 is designated fiscal 2005 and our fiscal year ended January 31, 2005 is designated fiscal 
2004.  

A. GENERAL  

We are an integrated direct marketing company that markets, sells and distributes its products directly to consumers through various forms of 
electronic media and direct-to-consumer mailings. Our operating strategy as a multi-channel retailer incorporates television home shopping, 
internet e-commerce, direct mail marketing and fulfillment services. Our principal electronic media activity is our television home shopping 
business, which uses on-air spokespersons to market brand name merchandise and private label consumer products at competitive prices. Our 
live 24-hour per day television home shopping programming is distributed primarily through long-term cable and satellite affiliation 
agreements and the purchase of month-to-month full- and part-time lease agreements of cable and broadcast television time. In addition, we 
distribute our programming through a company-owned full power television station in Boston, Massachusetts. We also operate an internet 
retailing website, www.shopnbc.com, which markets and sells a broad array of consumer merchandise, including all products being featured in 
our television programming.  

We have an exclusive license from NBC Universal, Inc., known as NBC, for the worldwide use of an NBC-branded name and the peacock 
image for a period ending in May 2011. Pursuant to the license, we operate our television home shopping network under the ShopNBC brand 
name and operate our internet website under the ShopNBC.com brand name.  

We currently provide fulfillment, warehousing, customer service and telemarketing services to Ralph Lauren Media, LLC, known as RLM, the 
operator of the Polo.com e-commerce business.  

TELEVISION AND INTERNET RETAILING  

Our principal electronic media activity is our live 24-hour per day television home shopping network program. Our home shopping network is 
the third largest television home shopping retailer in the United States. Through our merchandise-focused television programming, we sell a 
wide variety of products and services directly to consumers. Sales from our television and companion internet website business, including 
shipping and handling revenues, totaled $755,302,000, $680,592,000 and $614,884,000, representing 98%, 98% and 99% of net sales, for fiscal 
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Products are presented by on-air television home shopping personalities and guests; viewers may then call a 
toll-free telephone number and place orders directly with us or enter an order on the ShopNBC.com website. Our television programming is 
produced at our Eden Prairie, Minnesota facility and is transmitted nationally via satellite to cable system operators, satellite dish owners and to 
our full power broadcast television station WWDP TV-46 in Boston, Massachusetts.  

PRODUCTS AND PRODUCT MIX  

Products sold on our television network and internet shopping website include jewelry, watches, computers and other electronics, housewares, 
apparel, cosmetics, fitness products, giftware, collectibles, seasonal items and other merchandise. Jewelry represents our largest single category 
of merchandise, representing 39% of television and internet net sales in fiscal 2006, 43% in fiscal 2005 and 49% in fiscal 2004. Home 
products, including electronics product categories, represented approximately 37% of television home shopping and internet net sales in fiscal 
2006, 36% in fiscal 2005 and 31% in fiscal 2004. Watches, apparel, and health and beauty product categories represented approximately 24% 
of television and internet net sales in  
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fiscal 2006, 21% in fiscal 2005 and 20% in fiscal 2004. We believe that having a broad diversity of products appeals to a larger segment of 
potential customers and is important to our growth. Our product diversification strategy is to continue to develop new product offerings 
primarily in the home, apparel and accessories, cosmetics, fitness and consumer electronics categories to supplement the existing jewelry and 
computer businesses. Additionally, our product strategy will continue to focus on: (i) jewelry and gems for core customers; (ii) value products, 
including closeouts and opportunistic buys;  
(iii) highly demonstratable products that leverage the television medium; and  
(iv) unique offers that cannot be found elsewhere.  

B. BUSINESS STRATEGY  

Our objective is to be positioned as a growing and profitable leader in multi-channel retailing in the United States, offering consumers an 
entertaining, informative and interactive shopping experience. The following strategies are being pursued to increase our revenues and 
profitability and grow the active customer base, both for television sales and sales through the internet: (i) continue to diversify our mix of 
product categories offered on television and the internet, in order to appeal to a broader population of potential customers; (ii) maintain and 
increase the distribution of our television programming through new and expanded agreements with cable and satellite system operators, as 
well as pursuing other means of reaching customers such as through webcasting, internet videos and internet-based broadcasting networks; (iii) 
increase the productivity of each hour of television programming, through a focus on television offers of merchandise that maximizes gross 
margin dollars per hour and marketing efforts to increase the number of customers within the households currently receiving our television 
programming; (iv) continue the growth of our internet business through the innovative use of technology and marketing efforts, such as 
advanced search techniques, personalization, internet video, affiliate agreements and internet-based auction capabilities; (v) continue to 
enhance our television broadcast quality, programming, website features and customer support; (vi) increase the average order size through 
sales initiatives such as add-on sales, continuity programs and warranty sales; and (vii) leverage the strong brand recognition of the NBC brand 
name.  

C. TELEVISION PROGRAM DISTRIBUTION AND INTERNET OPERATIONS  

TELEVISION HOME SHOPPING NETWORK  

Satellite Delivery of Programming. Our programming is presently distributed via a leased communications satellite transponder to cable 
systems, the full power television station in Boston, certain other broadcast stations and satellite dish owners. On January 31, 2005, we entered 
into a new long-term satellite lease agreement with our present provider of satellite services. Pursuant to the terms of this agreement, we 
distribute our programming on a satellite that was launched in February 2006. The agreement has reduced our annual cost of satellite service 
and provides us with a state-of-the-art satellite transponder that uses new technology to transmit a stronger signal. Satellite service may be 
interrupted due to a variety of circumstances beyond our control, such as satellite transponder failure, satellite fuel depletion, governmental 
action, preemption by the satellite service provider or service failure. The agreement provides us with preemptable back-up services if satellite 
transmission is interrupted. However, there can be no assurance if satellite transmission is interrupted that we will be able to utilize existing 
back-up satellite service transponder or satellite capacity. In the event of any transmission interruption, we may incur substantial additional 
costs to enter into new arrangements and be unable to broadcast our signal for some period of time.  

Cable Affiliation Agreements. As of February 3, 2007, we had entered into long-term affiliation agreements with approximately 130 cable 
system operators that require each operator to offer our television home shopping programming substantially on a full-time basis over their 
systems. The stated terms of the affiliation agreements typically range from three to twelve years. Under certain circumstances, the television 
operators may cancel the agreements prior to their expiration. If these agreements are terminated, the termination may materially or adversely 
affect our business. Also, we may not be able to successfully negotiate acceptable terms with respect to any renewal of these contracts. The 
affiliation agreements generally provide that we will pay each operator a monthly access fee and marketing support payments based on the 
number of homes receiving our programming. Certain of the affiliation agreements also required payment of one-time initial launch fees, which 
are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the  
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agreements. We are seeking to enter into affiliation agreements with additional television operators providing for full- or part-time carriage of 
our programming.  

A significant number of cable operators have started to offer cable programming on a digital basis. The use of digital compression technology 
provides cable companies with greater channel capacity. While greater channel capacity increases the opportunity for distribution and, in some 
cases, reduces subscriber fees paid by us, it also may adversely impact our ability to compete for television viewers to the extent it results in 
higher channel position for us, placement of our programming in separate programming tiers, the broadcast of additional competitive channels 
or viewer fragmentation due to a greater number of programming alternatives.  

During 2006, there were approximately 110 million homes in the United States with at least one television set. Of those homes, there were 
approximately 65 million basic cable television subscribers and approximately 27 million direct-to-home satellite subscribers. Homes that 
receive our television home shopping programming 24 hours per day are each counted as one full-time equivalent, or FTE, and homes that 
receive our programming for any period less than 24 hours are counted based upon an analysis of time of day and day of week that 
programming is received. We have continued to experience growth in the number of FTE subscriber homes that receive our programming.  

As of February 3, 2007, we served a total of approximately 69.2 million subscriber homes, or approximately 67.0 million FTEs, compared with 
a total of approximately 66.0 million subscriber homes, or approximately 62.9 million FTEs, as of February 4, 2006. As of February 3, 2007, 
our television home shopping programming was carried by approximately 1,320 broadcasting systems on a full-time basis, compared to 1,230 
broadcasting systems on February 4, 2006, and 60 broadcasting systems on a part-time basis for both fiscal years. The total number of cable 
homes that presently receive our television home shopping programming represents approximately 65% of the total number of cable 
subscribers in the United States. NBC has the exclusive right to negotiate on our behalf for the distribution of our television home shopping 
service pursuant to the terms of the strategic alliance between us, NBC and GE Capital Equity Investments, Inc. (now known as GE 
Commercial Finance -- Equity, and referred to in this report as GE Equity) entered into in March 1999. See "Strategic Alliances -- NBC and 
GE Equity Strategic Alliance" discussed below.  

Direct Satellite Service Agreements. Our programming is carried on the direct-to-home, or DTH, satellite services DIRECTV and DISH 
Network. Carriage on DIRECTV and DISH Network is full -time under long-term distribution agreements. These agreements generally provide 
that we will pay each operator a monthly access fee based upon the number of homes receiving our television home shopping programming. As 
of February 3, 2007, our programming reached approximately 27 million DTH homes on a full-time basis.  

Other Methods of Program Distribution. Our programming is also made available full-time to "C"-band satellite dish owners nationwide and is 
made available to homes in the Boston, Massachusetts market over the air via a full power television broadcast station owned by us. In fiscal 
2006 and fiscal 2005, our Boston, Massachusetts station and "C"-band satellite dish transmissions were responsible for less than 5% of our total 
consolidated net sales. In December 2005, we completed the sale of our remaining low power television station located in Atlanta, Georgia for 
a total of $400,000. The sale of this station did not have a significant impact on our ongoing operations. We no longer hold any licenses for low 
power television stations.  

INTERNET WEBSITE  

Our website, ShopNBC.com, provides customers with a broad array of consumer merchandise, including all products being featured on our 
television programming. The website includes a live webcast feed of our programming, an archive of recent past programming, videos of many 
individual products that the customer can view on demand and clearance and auction sites. Internet sales for fiscal 2006 increased at a greater 
rate than television sales over fiscal 2005. Internet net sales in fiscal 2006 increased by 26% over internet net sales in fiscal 2005, while 
television home shopping net sales in fiscal 2006 increased by 7% over television home shopping net sales in fiscal 2005. Sales from our 
website business, inclusive of shipping and handling revenues, totaled $184,139,000, $146,067,000 and $126,692,000, representing 24%, 21% 
and 20% of consolidated net sales for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. We believe that our internet business represents an  
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important component of our future growth opportunities, and we will continue to invest in and enhance our internet-based capabilities.  

Our e-commerce activities are subject to a number of general business regulations and laws regarding taxation and online commerce. As the 
role and importance of e-commerce has grown in the United States in recent years, there have been continuing efforts to increase the legal and 
regulatory obligations and restrictions on companies conducting commerce through the internet, primarily in the areas of taxation, consumer 
privacy and protection of consumer personal information. Such laws and regulations could increase the costs and liabilities associated with our 
e-commerce activities. On December 3, 2004, President Bush signed into law a three-year moratorium on internet access taxes. This law 
extended a ban on internet taxes that expired on November 1, 2003. In addition, in November 2002, a number of states approved a multi-state 
agreement to simplify state sales tax laws by establishing one uniform system to administer and collect sales taxes on traditional retailers and 
electronic commerce merchants. No prediction can be made as to whether a new internet tax moratorium will be enacted before the November 
1, 2007 expiration of the existing moratorium, or whether individual states will enact legislation requiring retailers such as us to collect and 
remit sales taxes on transactions that occur over the internet. Adding sales tax to our internet transactions could negatively impact consumer 
demand.  

The federal Controlling the Assault of Non-Solicited Pornography and Marketing Act of 2003, or the CAN-SPAM Act, was signed by 
President Bush on December 16, 2003 and went into effect on January 1, 2004. The CAN-SPAM Act pre-empts similar laws passed by over 
thirty states, some of which contain restrictions or requirements that are viewed as stricter than those of the CAN-SPAM Act. The CAN-SPAM 
Act is primarily an opt-out type law; that is, prior permission to send an e-mail to a recipient is not required, but a recipient may affirmatively 
opt out of such future e-mail solicitations. The CAN-SPAM Act requires commercial e-mails to contain a clear and conspicuous identification 
that the message is an advertisement or solicitation for goods or services, as well as a prominent unsubscribe function that allows recipients to 
alert the sender that they do not desire to receive future e-mail messages. In addition, the CAN-SPAM Act requires that all commercial e-mail 
messages include a postal address unless the sender obtains prior affirmative assent from the recipient.  

Changes in consumer protection laws also may impose additional burdens on those companies conducting business online. The adoption of 
additional laws or regulations may decrease the growth of the internet or other online services, which could, in turn, decrease the demand for 
our products and services and increase our cost of doing business through the internet.  

In addition, since our website is available over the internet in all states, various states may claim that we are required to qualify to do business 
as a foreign corporation in such state, a requirement that could result in fees and taxes as well as penalties for the failure to qualify. Any new 
legislation or regulation, the application of laws and regulations from jurisdictions whose laws do not currently apply to our business or the 
application of existing laws and regulations to the internet and other online services could have a material adverse effect on the growth of our 
business in this area.  

D. STRATEGIC RELATIONSHIPS  

NBC TRADEMARK LICENSE AGREEMENT  

On November 16, 2000, we entered into a trademark license agreement with NBC pursuant to which NBC granted us an exclusive, worldwide 
license for a term of ten years to use certain NBC trademarks, service marks and domain names to rebrand our business and corporate name 
and website. We subsequently selected the names ShopNBC and ShopNBC.com.  

Under the license agreement we have agreed, among other things, to (i) certain restrictions on using trademarks, service marks, domain names, 
logos or other source indicators owned or controlled by NBC, (ii) the loss of our rights under the license with respect to specific territories 
outside of the United States in the event we fail to achieve and maintain certain performance targets in such territories, (iii) not own, operate, 
acquire or expand our business to include certain businesses without NBC's prior consent, (iv) comply with  
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NBC's privacy policies and standards and practices, and (v) not own, operate, acquire or expand our business such that one-third or more of our 
revenues or our aggregate value is attributable to certain services (not including retailing services similar to our existing e-commerce 
operations) provided over the internet. The license agreement also grants to NBC the right to terminate the license agreement at any time upon 
certain changes of control of our company, in certain situations upon the failure by NBC to own a certain minimum percentage of our 
outstanding capital stock on a fully diluted basis, and certain other situations. On March 28, 2007, we and NBC agreed to extend the term of the 
license by six months, such that the license would continue through May 15, 2011, and to provide that certain changes of control involving a 
financial buyer would not provide the basis for an early termination of the license by NBC.  

STRATEGIC ALLIANCE WITH NBC AND GE EQUITY  

In March 1999, we entered into a strategic alliance with NBC and GE Equity. Pursuant to the terms of the transaction, NBC and GE Equity 
acquired 5,339,500 shares of our Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock between April 1999 and June 1999, and NBC was issued a 
warrant to acquire 1,450,000 shares of our common stock, known as the distribution warrants, with an exercise price of $8.29 per share, under a 
distribution and marketing agreement discussed below. In addition, we issued to GE Equity a warrant, known as the investment warrant, to 
increase its potential aggregate equity stake (together with its affiliates, including NBC) at the time of exercise to approximately 40%. The 
preferred stock is convertible into an equal number of shares of our common stock, subject to anti-dilution adjustments, has a mandatory 
redemption on the tenth anniversary of its issuance or upon a change of control at $8.29 per share, participates in dividends on the same basis 
as the common stock and has a liquidation preference over the common stock and any other junior securities. On July 6, 1999, GE Equity 
exercised the investment warrant and acquired an additional 10,674,000 shares of our common stock for an aggregate of $178,370,000, or 
$16.71 per share. Following the exercise of the investment warrant, the combined ownership of our company by GE Equity and NBC on a 
diluted basis was approximately 40%. In February 2005, GE Equity sold 2,000,000 shares of our common stock to several purchasers. In July 
2005, GE Equity entered into agreements to sell an additional 2,604,932 shares of our common stock in privately negotiated transactions to a 
number of different purchasers; this sale was completed on September 15, 2005. GE Equity and NBC currently have a combined ownership in 
our company of approximately 27% on a diluted basis.  

SHAREHOLDER AGREEMENT  

In March 1999, we also entered into a shareholder agreement with GE Equity, which provides for certain corporate governance and standstill 
matters. The shareholder agreement (together with the certificate of designation of the preferred stock) initially provided that GE Equity and 
NBC would be entitled to designate nominees for two out of seven members of our board of directors so long as their aggregate beneficial 
ownership was at least equal to 50% of their initial beneficial ownership, and one out of seven members so long as their aggregate beneficial 
ownership was at least 10% of the "adjusted outstanding shares of common stock," as defined in the shareholder agreement. The shareholder 
agreement also requires the consent of GE Equity prior to our entering into any material agreements with certain restricted parties (broadcast 
networks and internet portals in certain limited circumstances). Finally, we are prohibited from exceeding certain thresholds relating to the 
issuance of voting securities over a twelve-month period, the payment of quarterly dividends, the repurchase of common stock, acquisitions 
(including investments and joint ventures) or dispositions, and the incurrence of debt greater than the larger of $40 million or 30% of our total 
capitalization. We are also prohibited from taking any action that would cause any ownership interest by us in TV broadcast stations from 
being attributable to GE Equity, NBC or their affiliates.  

The shareholder agreement provides that during the standstill period (as defined in the shareholder agreement), subject to certain limited 
exceptions, GE Equity and NBC are prohibited from: (i) any asset/ business purchases from us in excess of 10% of the total fair market value 
of our assets; (ii) increasing their beneficial ownership above 39.9% of our shares; (iii) making or in any way participating in any solicitation of 
proxies; (iv) depositing any securities of our company in a voting trust; (v) forming, joining or in any way becoming a member of a "13D 
Group" with respect to any voting securities of our company;  
(vi) arranging  
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any financing for, or providing any financing commitment specifically for, the purchase of any voting securities of our company; (vii) 
otherwise acting, whether alone or in concert with others, to seek to propose to us any tender or exchange offer, merger, business combination, 
restructuring, liquidation, recapitalization or similar transaction involving us, or nominating any person as a director of our company who is not 
nominated by the then incumbent directors, or proposing any matter to be voted upon by our shareholders. If, during the standstill period, any 
inquiry has been made regarding a "takeover transaction" or "change in control," each as defined in the shareholder agreement, that has not 
been rejected by the board of directors, or the board pursues such a transaction, or engages in negotiations or provides information to a third 
party and the board has not resolved to terminate such discussions, then GE Equity or NBC may propose to us a tender offer or business 
combination proposal.  

In addition, unless GE Equity and NBC beneficially own less than 5% or more than 90% of the adjusted outstanding shares of common stock, 
GE Equity and NBC shall not sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any securities of our company except for transfers: (i) to certain affiliates 
who agree to be bound by the provisions of the shareholder agreement, (ii) that have been consented to by us,  
(iii) pursuant to a third-party tender offer, (iv) pursuant to a merger, consolidation or reorganization to which we are a party, (v) in a bona fide 
public distribution or bona fide underwritten public offering, (vi) pursuant to Rule 144 of the Securities Act of 1933, or (vii) in a private sale or 
pursuant to Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933; provided, that in the case of any transfer pursuant to clause (v) or (vii), the transfer does 
not result in, to the knowledge of the transferor after reasonable inquiry, any other person acquiring, after giving effect to such transfer, 
beneficial ownership, individually or in the aggregate with that person's affiliates, of more than 10% of the adjusted outstanding shares of the 
common stock.  

The standstill period will terminate on the earliest to occur of (i) the ten-year anniversary of the shareholder agreement, (ii) our entering into an 
agreement that would result in a "change in control" (subject to reinstatement),  
(iii) an actual "change in control," (iv) a third-party tender offer (subject to reinstatement), or (v) six months after GE Equity and NBC can no 
longer designate any nominees to the board of directors. Following the expiration of the standstill period pursuant to clause (i) or (v) above 
(indefinitely in the case of clause (i) and two years in the case of clause (v)), GE Equity and NBC's beneficial ownership position may not 
exceed 39.9% of our diluted outstanding stock, except pursuant to issuance or exercise of any warrants or pursuant to a 100% tender offer for 
our company.  

On March 19, 2004, we agreed with NBC and GE Equity to amend the shareholder agreement as follows: (i) to increase the authorized size of 
our board of directors to nine from seven; (ii) to permit NBC and GE Equity together to appoint three directors instead of two to our board of 
directors; and (iii) to provide that NBC and GE Equity would no longer have the right to have its director-nominees serve on the audit, 
compensation or nominating and governance committees, in the event the committees must be comprised solely of "independent" directors 
under applicable laws or Nasdaq regulations. In such case, NBC and GE Equity would have the right to have an observer attend all of these 
committee meetings, to the extent permitted by applicable law or regulation.  

REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT  

Pursuant to the investment agreement, we entered into a registration rights agreement with GE Equity providing GE Equity, NBC and their 
affiliates and any transferees and assigns, an aggregate of five demand registrations and unlimited piggy-back registration rights.  

DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING AGREEMENT  

We entered into a distribution and marketing agreement with NBC dated March 8, 1999 that provides NBC with the exclusive right to negotiate 
on our behalf for the distribution of our home shopping television programming. NBC may terminate the distribution agreement if we enter 
into certain significant affiliation agreements or a transaction resulting in a change in control. As compensation for these services, we agreed to 
pay NBC an annual fee which was approximately $1.8 million in fiscal 2006, and issued NBC 1,450,000 distribution warrants. The exercise 
price of the distribution warrants is $8.29 per share. In fiscal 2004, NBC  
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exercised a portion of the original distribution warrants in a cashless exercise acquiring 101,509 shares of common stock. In fiscal 2005, NBC 
exercised all remaining original distribution warrants in a cashless exercise acquiring 281,199 additional shares of common stock. On March 
28, 2007, we agreed with NBC to reduce the amount of the annual fee payable to NBC to a market rate.  

POLO RALPH LAUREN/RALPH LAUREN MEDIA ELECTRONIC COM MERCE ALLIANCE  

In February 2000, we entered into an agreement with Polo Ralph Lauren, NBC, NBCi and CNBC whereby the parties created RLM, a joint 
venture formed for the purpose of bringing the Polo Ralph Lauren lifestyle experience to consumers via multiple media platforms, including 
internet, broadcast, cable and print. During fiscal 2006, RLM was owned 50% by Polo Ralph Lauren, 37.5% by NBC and its affiliates and 
12.5% by us. RLM's primary business activity to date has been the operation of the Polo.com website. Polo.com launched in November 2000 
and includes an assortment of men's, women's, children's and home products across the Ralph Lauren family of brands as well as unique gift 
items. In connection with the formation of RLM, we entered into various agreements setting forth the manner in which certain aspects of the 
business of RLM are to be managed and certain of the members' rights, duties and obligations with respect to RLM. On March 28, 2007, we 
sold our 12.5% ownership interest in RLM to Polo Ralph Lauren for approximately $43.8 million.  

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES  

In February 2000, RLM and our subsidiary VVI Fulfillment Center, Inc., known as VVIFC, entered into an agreement for services under which 
VVIFC provides certain telemarketing, customer support and fulfillment services to RLM. In the third quarter of fiscal 2006, RLM agreed to 
extend the term of its existing services agreement with us to at least August 31, 2008. RLM has advised us that it intends to develop the 
capability to provide these services internally in the future, and accordingly there can be no assurance that we will continue to provide services 
to RLM beyond August 31, 2008 or, if so, for what period of time thereafter. In March 2007, VVIFC and RLM further agreed to certain 
changes to the agreement for services, including a potential extension of the term through mid-2009 at RLM's option.  

E. MARKETING AND MERCHANDISING  

TELEVISION AND INTERNET RETAILING  

Our television and internet revenues are generated from sales of merchandise and services offered through our television home shopping 
programming and website. Our television home shopping business utilizes live television 24 hours a day, seven days a week, to create an 
interactive and entertaining atmosphere to describe and demonstrate our merchandise. Selected customers participate through live 
conversations with on-air hosts and occasional celebrity guests. We believe our customers make purchases based primarily on convenience, 
value, quality of merchandise and promotional offerings, including financing. We believe that our customers are primarily women between the 
ages of 35 and 55, with annual household income of approximately $50,000 to $75,000. We schedule special programming at different times of 
the day and week to appeal to specific viewer and customer profiles. We feature announced and occasionally unannounced promotions to drive 
interest and incremental sales, including "Our Top Value," a sales program that features one special offer every day. We also feature other 
major and special promotional events, along with bargain, discount and inventory-clearance sales.  

Our merchandise is generally offered at or below comparable retail prices. We continually introduce new products on our home shopping 
program. Inventory sources include manufacturers, wholesalers, distributors and importers. We intend to continue to promote private label 
merchandise, which generally has higher than average margins.  

SHOPNBC PRIVATE LABEL AND CO-BRAND CREDIT CARD PROG RAM  

In the third quarter of fiscal 2006, we introduced a new private label and co-brand revolving consumer credit card program. The program is 
made available to all qualified consumers for the financing of purchases  
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of products and services from ShopNBC and for the financing of purchases from other retailers. The program is intended to be used by 
cardholders for purchases made primarily for personal, family or household use. The issuing bank is the sole owner of the account issued under 
the program and absorbs all losses associated with non-payment by cardholders. The issuing bank pays fees to us based on the number of credit 
card accounts activated and on card usage. Once a customer is approved to receive a ShopNBC private label or co-branded credit card and the 
card is activated, the customer is eligible to participate in our credit card rewards program. Under the rewards program, points are earned on 
purchases made with the credit cards at ShopNBC and other retailers where the co-branded card is accepted. Cardholders who accumulate the 
requisite number of points are issued a $50 certificate award towards the future purchase of ShopNBC merchandise. The certificate award 
expires after twelve months if unredeemed. The program provides a number of benefits to customers in addition to the awards program, 
including deferred billing options and other special offers. During fiscal 2006, customer use of the private label and co-brand cards accounted 
for approximately 17% of our television and internet sales. We believe that the use of the ShopNBC credit card furthers customer loyalty and 
reduces our overall bad debt exposure since the credit card issuing bank bears the risk of bad debt on ShopNBC credit card transactions.  

FAVORABLE PURCHASING TERMS  

We obtain products for our direct marketing businesses from domestic and foreign manufacturers and suppliers and are often able to make 
purchases on favorable terms based on the volume of products purchased or sold. Many of our purchasing arrangements with our vendors 
include inventory terms that allow for return privileges for a portion of the order or stock balancing. We generally do not have long-term 
commitments with our vendors, and a variety of sources are available for each category of merchandise sold. In fiscal 2006, products purchased 
from one vendor accounted for approximately 17% of our consolidated net sales. We believe that we could find alternative sources for this 
vendor's products if this vendor ceased supplying merchandise; however, the unanticipated loss of any large supplier could impact our sales and 
earnings on a temporary basis.  

F. ORDER ENTRY, FULFILLMENT AND CUSTOMER SERVICE  

Our products are available for purchase via toll-free telephone numbers or our website. We maintain an agreement with West Teleservices 
Corporation to provide us with telephone order entry operators for taking of customer orders. West Teleservices provides teleservices to us 
from service sites located in Omaha, Nebraska and Spokane, Washington, as well as through home agents. At the present time, we do not 
utilize any call center services based overseas.  

We own a 262,000 square foot distribution facility in Bowling Green, Kentucky, which we use to fulfill our obligations under the services 
agreement entered into with RLM. The Bowling Green facility is also used for the fulfillment of mostly non-jewelry merchandise sold by us. 
We distribute jewelry and other smaller merchandise from our Eden Prairie, Minnesota fulfillment center.  

The majority of customer purchases are paid by credit card and debit cards. As discussed above, we maintain a private label and a co-brand 
credit card program using the ShopNBC name. Purchases made with the ShopNBC private label credit card are non-recourse to us. We also 
utilize an installment payment program called ValuePay, which entitles customers to pay by credit card for certain merchandise offered in two 
to six equal monthly installments. We intend to continue to sell merchandise using the ValuePay program due to its significant promotional 
value. It does, however, create a credit collection risk from the potential inability to collect outstanding balances.  

We maintain a product inventory, which consists primarily of consumer merchandise held for resale. The product inventory is valued at the 
lower of average cost or realizable value, and we reduce our balance by an allowance for excess and obsolete merchandise. As of February 3, 
2007 and February 4, 2006, we had inventory balances of $66,622,000 and $67,844,000, respectively.  
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Merchandise is shipped to customers by the United States Postal Service, UPS, DHL, and Federal Express or other recognized carriers. We also 
have arrangements with certain vendors who ship merchandise directly to our customers after an approved customer order is processed.  

Customer service functions are performed and processed by West Teleservices as well as by us. Our in-house customer service functions are 
located in our Brooklyn Center, Minnesota facility.  

Our return policy allows a standard 30-day refund period from the date of invoice for all customer purchases. Our return rates have been 
approximately 32% to 33% over the past three fiscal years. These return rates are higher than the average return rates reported by our larger 
competitors in the television home shopping industry. Management believes the higher return rate is partially a result of (i) the significantly 
higher average selling prices of our products as compared to the average selling prices of our competitors, and (ii) the fact that we have a higher 
percentage of sales attributable to jewelry products. Both of these characteristics are associated with higher product return rates. Management 
has been pursuing a number of initiatives to reduce the overall return rate.  

G. COMPETITION  

The direct marketing and retail businesses are highly competitive. In our television home shopping and e-commerce operations, we compete for 
customers with other types of consumer retail businesses, including traditional "brick and mortar" department stores, discount stores, 
warehouse stores and specialty stores; other television home shopping and e-commerce retailers; infomercial companies; catalog and mail order 
retailers and other direct sellers.  

In the competitive television home shopping sector, we compete with QVC Network, Inc. and HSN, Inc., both of whom are substantially larger 
than we are in terms of annual revenues and customers, and whose programming is carried more broadly to U.S. households than is our 
programming. Both QVC and HSN are owned by large, well-capitalized parent companies in the media business, who are also expanding into 
related e-commerce businesses. The American Collectibles Network (ACN), the operator of Jewelry Television, also competes with us for 
television home shopping customers in the jewelry category, and ACN recently acquired the assets of Shop At Home from E. W. Scripps 
Company and is operating a second channel of programming in a number of non-jewelry categories, including collectible coins and knives. In 
addition, there are a number of smaller niche players and startups in the television home shopping arena who compete with us.  

The e-commerce sector is also highly competitive, and we are in direct competition with virtually all other internet retailers, many of whom are 
larger, more well-established, more well-financed and/or have broader customer bases. Certain of our competitors in the television home 
shopping sector have acquired internet businesses complementary to their existing internet sites, which may pose new competitive challenges 
for us. For example, the parent company of HSN has acquired the internet search business Ask Jeeves (now known as Ask.com), and the parent 
company of QVC acquired Provide Commerce, an operator of retail websites.  

We anticipate continuing competition for viewers and customers, for experienced home shopping personnel, for distribution agreements with 
cable and satellite systems, and for vendors and suppliers -- not only from television home shopping companies, but also from other companies 
that seek to enter the home shopping and internet retail sectors, including telecommunications and cable companies, television networks, and 
other established retailers. We believe that our success in the television home shopping and e-commerce businesses is dependent on a number 
of key factors, including (i) obtaining carriage on additional cable systems on favorable terms, (ii) increasing the number of households who 
purchase products from us, and (iii) increasing the dollar value of sales per customer to our existing customer base. We believe that we are 
positioned to compete because of our established relationships with cable operators. No assurance can be given, however, that we will be able 
to acquire additional cable carriage at prices favorable to us or maintain our current cable carriage.  
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H. FEDERAL REGULATION  

The cable television industry and the broadcasting industry in general are subject to extensive regulation by the FCC. The following does not 
purport to be a complete summary of all of the provisions of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, known as the Communications 
Act, the Cable Television Consumer Protection Act of 1992 known as the Cable Act, the Telecommunications Act of 1996 known as the 
Telecommunications Act or other laws and FCC rules or policies that may affect our operations.  

CABLE TELEVISION  

The cable industry is regulated by the FCC under the Cable Act and FCC regulations promulgated thereunder, as well as by state or local 
governments with respect to certain franchising matters.  

Must Carry. In general, the FCC's "must carry" rules under the Cable Act entitle analog full power television stations to mandatory cable 
carriage of their signals, at no charge, to all cable homes located within each station's broadcast area provided that the signal is of adequate 
strength, and the cable system must carry designated channels available. FCC rules currently extend similar cable must carry rights to the 
primary video and programming-related material of new television stations that transmit only digital television signals, and to existing 
television stations that return their analog spectrum and convert to digital operations. The extent to which cable providers may or may not be 
required to provide must carry rights to full power television stations after the close of the transition to digital television is discussed below in 
"Federal Regulation -- Advanced Television Systems." In addition, certain aspects of the must carry rights of stations transmitting digital 
television signals now, as well as after the transmission to digital television, remain subject to pending FCC proceedings.  

The FCC has also been asked to reevaluate its 1993 extension of must carry rights to predominantly home shopping television stations. While 
the FCC has never acted on that request, filed over ten years ago, there can be no assurance that home shopping television stations will 
continue to have must carry rights. In addition, under the Cable Act, cable systems may petition the FCC to determine that a station is ineligible 
for must carry rights because of the station's lack of service to the community, its previous noncarriage or other factors. The unavailability of 
must carry rights to our existing or future stations would likely substantially reduce the number of cable homes that could be reached by any 
full power television station that we own or may acquire or on which we might provide programming.  

CABLE LEASED ACCESS  

The Cable Act and the FCC's rules provide unaffiliated cable programmers such as us with certain rights to lease channels from cable 
operators. The FCC has recently announced plans to revisit its leased access rates and policies in light of the lack of use of leased access 
channels, but there can be no assurance that the FCC will act in any way that would increase the availability or affordability of leased access by 
us.  

BROADCAST TELEVISION  

General. Our acquisition and operation of television stations is subject to FCC regulation under the Communications Act. The Communications 
Act prohibits the operation of television broadcasting stations except under a license issued by the FCC. The statute empowers the FCC, among 
other things, to issue, revoke and modify broadcasting licenses, adopt regulations to carry out the provisions of the Communications Act and 
impose penalties for violation of such regulations. Such regulations impose certain obligations with respect to the programming and operation 
of television stations, including requirements for carriage of children's educational and informational programming, programming responsive to 
local problems, needs and interests, advertising upon request by legally qualified candidates for federal office, closed captioning, and other 
matters. In addition, FCC rules prohibit foreign governments, representatives of foreign governments, aliens, representatives of aliens and 
corporations and partnerships organized under the laws of a foreign nation from holding broadcast licenses. Aliens may own up to 20% of the 
capital stock of a licensee corporation, or generally up to 25% of a U.S. corporation, which, in turn, has a controlling interest in a licensee.  
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Full Power Television Station. In April 2003, one of our wholly owned subsidiaries acquired a full power television station serving the Boston, 
Massachusetts market. On April 11, 2006, the FCC granted our application for renewal of the station's license.  

Broadcast Multiple Ownership Limits. Many of our existing and potential competitors are larger and more diversified than we are, or have 
greater financial, marketing, merchandising and distribution resources. In January 2004, Congress passed legislation that would allow a 
television broadcaster to own local television stations reaching 39% of the nation's households, up from the previous 35% limit. On March 1, 
2007, the FCC revised its rules to reflect this legislation. In June 2003, the FCC adopted rules that would have significantly relaxed the limits 
and restrictions on media ownership. Among other changes, the FCC relaxed its rules governing the common ownership of more than one 
television station in any given market. In June 2004, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit invalidated these revised media ownership 
rules on the ground that the FCC had failed to provide a sufficient justification for the relaxed ownership limitations and restrictions, and stayed 
the new rules pending further FCC proceedings and subsequent judicial review. In June 2006, the FCC issued a further notice of proposed 
rulemaking, again seeking comment on potential changes to its media ownership rules. Although no prediction can be made as to the outcome 
of this proceeding, it is possible that the FCC will adopt changes to these rules that permit increased consolidation in the broadcast industry, 
making it more difficult for us to compete.  

ALTERNATIVE TECHNOLOGIES  

Alternative technologies could increase the types of video program delivery systems on which we may seek carriage. Three direct broadcast 
satellite systems known as DBS currently provide service to the public and, according to FCC statistics, the number of DBS subscribers has 
increased to more than 27 million households as of December 2005. Congress has enacted legislation designed to facilitate the delivery of local 
broadcast signals by DBS operators and thereby to promote DBS competition with cable systems. In addition, another new technology permits 
the viewing of live linear cable television channels through broadband-connected personal computers, laptops and mobile devices, without the 
need for a physical cable-box or special software. We now make our live programming available in this manner through an agreement with 
VDC Corporation, a media and technology services provider. VDC recently has filed complaints with the FCC claiming eligibility for access to 
other cable and broadcast programming that it contends is necessary to attract subscribers, and the owners of that programming have opposed 
these efforts, alleging that VDC's technology does not qualify for this access.  

ADVANCED TELEVISION SYSTEMS  

Technological developments in television transmission will make it possible for the broadcast and nonbroadcast media to provide advanced 
television services, that is television services using digital or other advanced technologies. The FCC in late 1996 approved a digital television 
technical standard known as DTV to be used by television broadcasters, television set manufacturers, the computer industry and the motion 
picture industry. This DTV standard allows the simultaneous transmission of multiple streams of digital data on the bandwidth presently used 
by a normal analog channel. It is possible to broadcast one or more high-definition channels with visual and sound quality superior to present-
day television or several standard-definition channels with digital sound and pictures of a quality slightly better than present television, or one 
high-definition and one or more standard-definition channels; to provide interactive data services, including visual or audio transmission, on 
multiple channels simultaneously; or to provide some combination of these possibilities on the multiple channels allowed by DTV.  

As part of the nationwide transition from analog to digital broadcasting, each full power television station has been granted a second channel by 
the FCC on which to initiate digital operations. On February 1, 2006, Congress passed a law setting a final deadline for the DTV transition of 
February 17, 2009, by which broadcasters must surrender their analog signals and broadcast only on their allotted digital frequency. We 
commenced operations on our digital channel in May 2003. While broadcasters currently do not have to pay to obtain digital channels, the FCC 
has ruled that a television station that receives compensation from a third party for the ancillary or supplementary use of its DTV spectrum  
(e.g., data transmission or paging services)  
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must pay a fee of 5% of gross revenues received. The FCC has rejected a proposal that fees be imposed when a DTV broadcaster receives 
payment for transmitting home shopping programming, although it left open the question whether interactive home shopping programming 
might be treated differently. It is not yet clear whether and how television broadcast stations will be able to profit by the transition to DTV, how 
quickly the viewing public will embrace the cost of new digital television sets and monitors, or how difficult it will be for viewers who do not 
do so to continue to receive television broadcasts, whether through cable or DBS service or over the air. In addition, it is unclear what rights 
television broadcast stations will have to obtain carriage of their digital signals on local cable systems.  

As noted above, the FCC's must carry rules generally entitle analog full power television stations to mandatory cable carriage of their signals, 
at no charge, to all cable homes located within each station's designated market area, or DMA. Although FCC rules currently extend similar 
cable must carry rights to existing television stations that return their analog spectrum and convert to digital operations, in February 2005, the 
FCC affirmed its prior decision not to require cable operators to simultaneously carry broadcasters' analog and digital signals during the 
transition. After the end of the digital transition in 2009, the FCC has determined that full power television stations will be entitled to 
mandatory cable carriage of their digital signals, although the FCC has yet to determine the extent to which cable and DBS operators will be 
required to provide those signals to subscribers with analog television receivers in a viewable format. In addition, the FCC confirmed that after 
the transition, cable operators will only be obligated to carry the primary video and programming-related material of digital television station's 
signals and are not required to carry any of the stations' additional programming streams. Petitions for reconsideration of that decision remain 
pending at the FCC. In addition, as noted above, a number of issues relating to the rights television broadcast stations will have to obtain 
carriage of their digital signals on local cable systems both during and after the close of the transition to digital television remain subject to 
pending FCC proceedings.  

As part of this transition to digital television, the spectrum currently used by broadcasters transmitting on channels 52-69 will be transitioned to 
use by new wireless and public safety operators. Some broadcast stations, including our station in the Boston, Massachusetts marketplace, have 
been given a digital channel allocation within this spectrum. Under FCC rules, although stations awarded digital channels between channels 52 
and 69 may use those channels until the close of the DTV transition, they must either seek an alternative digital channel below channel 52 on 
which to transmit their digital signal or transition their digital operations to their analog channel. The FCC has established a timetable within 
which broadcast stations must elect the channel on which they will transmit their digital signal after the close of the DTV transition, and in 
April 2006, we filed a notification with the FCC seeking to provide our digital television operations in the Boston marketplace on channel 10 
after the transition. In October 2006, the FCC issued a notice tentatively proposing to accept our proposal in a rulemaking proceeding that 
remains pending. While no comments were filed opposing our selection of channel 10 as our digital television channel, there can be no 
guarantee that the FCC will authorize us to operate on channel 10, or that we will be able to locate a suitable alternate channel below channel 
52 on which to provide digital transmissions after the close of the DTV transition that will provide coverage equivalent to our current coverage. 

TELEPHONE COMPANIES' PROVISION OF PROGRAMMING SERVI CES  

The Telecommunications Act eliminated the previous statutory restriction forbidding the common ownership of a cable system and telephone 
company. AT&T, Verizon and a number of other local telephone companies are planning to provide or are providing video services through 
fiber to the home or fiber to the neighborhood technologies, while other local exchange carriers are using video digital subscriber loop 
technology, known as VDSL, to deliver video programming, high-speed internet access and telephone service over existing copper telephone 
lines. In March 2007, the FCC released an order designed to streamline entry by carriers by preempting the imposition by local franchising 
authorities of unreasonable conditions on entry. Franchising authorities and cable operators have indicated an intention to seek judicial review 
of that order. No prediction can be made as to the deployment schedules of these telephone companies, the success of their technologies, or 
their ability to attract and retain customers.  
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REGULATIONS AFFECTING MULTIPLE PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS   

The antitrust settlement between MasterCard, VISA and approximately 8 million retail merchants raises certain issues for retailers who accept 
telephonic orders that involve consumer use of debit cards for multiple or continuity payments. A condition of the settlement agreement 
provided that the code numbers or other means of distinguishing between debit and credit cards be made available to merchants by VISA and 
MasterCard. Under Federal Reserve Board regulations, this may require merchants to obtain consumers' written consent for preauthorized 
transfers where the merchant is aware that the method of payment is a debit card as opposed to a credit card. We believe that debit cards are 
currently being offered as the payment vehicle in approximately 30% of our transactions with VISA and MasterCard. Effective February 9, 
2006, the Federal Reserve Board amended language in its official commentary to Regulation E by removing an express prohibition on the use 
of taped verbal authorization from consumers as evidence of a written authorization for purposes of the regulation. There can be no assurance 
that compliance with the authorization procedures under this regulation will not adversely affect the customer experience in placing orders or 
adversely affect sales.  

I. SEASONALITY AND ECONOMIC SENSITIVITY  

Our businesses are subject to seasonal fluctuation, with the highest sales activity normally occurring during our fourth fiscal quarter of the year, 
primarily November through January. Our businesses are also sensitive to general economic conditions and business conditions affecting 
consumer spending. Additionally, our television audience (and therefore sales revenue) can be significantly impacted by major world or 
domestic events, which divert audience attention away from our programming.  

J. EMPLOYEES  

At February 3, 2007, we had approximately 1,200 employees, the majority of whom are employed in customer service, order fulfillment and 
television production. Approximately 18% of our employees work part-time. We are not a party to any collective bargaining agreement with 
respect to our employees. Management considers its employee relations to be good.  

K. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT  

Set forth below are the names, ages and titles of the persons serving as our executive officers.  

 

William J. Lansing joined our company as President and Chief Executive Officer in December 2003 and is also a member of our board of 
directors. Mr. Lansing has more than fifteen years of senior management experience, including positions as president and CEO at public 
companies in the consumer direct marketing and internet commerce arenas. Mr. Lansing joined us from General Atlantic Partners, a global 
private equity firm, where he was a partner from September 2001 to December 2003. Prior to joining General Atlantic Partners, Mr. Lansing 
served as CEO of NBC Internet, a Nasdaq-listed company, from March 2000 to August 2001 and served as President and later as CEO of 
Fingerhut Companies, then the nation's second largest catalog retailer and an NYSE-listed company, from May 1998 to March 2000. Prior to 
joining Fingerhut, from October 1996 to April 1998, Mr. Lansing was at General Electric, where he served as Vice President of Business 
Development, reporting to Chairman Jack Welch. From January 1996 to October 1996,  
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                                             Direct or 
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                                             Secret ary 
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Bryan Venberg........................  38    Senior  Vice President -- Human Resources 



Mr. Lansing was Chief Operating Officer of Prodigy, Inc., where he launched the company's flagship Prodigy internet offering. Earlier in his 
career, Mr. Lansing was a partner at McKinsey and Company. Mr. Lansing currently serves on the board of directors of Digital River, Inc., 
Right Now Technologies. Inc. and Fair Isaac Corporation.  

Frank P. Elsenbast served as our Vice President of Financial Planning and Analysis from September 2003 to October 2004, when he became 
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Elsenbast was promoted to Senior Vice President in May 2006. Mr. Elsenbast has over 
eighteen years of corporate finance, operations analysis and public accounting experience. From May 2001 to September 2003, he served as 
Finance Director and from May 2000 to May 2001 he served as Finance Manager at our company. Prior to joining us, Mr. Elsenbast served in 
various analytical and operational roles with The Pillsbury Company from May 1995 through May 2000. Mr. Elsenbast is a CPA and began his 
career with Arthur Andersen, LLP.  

Nathan E. Fagre joined us as Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary in May 2000. From 1996 to 2000, Mr. Fagre was Senior 
Vice President and General Counsel of Occidental Oil and Gas Corporation in Los Angeles, California, the oil and gas operating subsidiary of 
Occidental Petroleum Corporation. From 1995 to 1996, Mr. Fagre held other positions in the legal department at Occidental. His previous legal 
experience included corporate and securities law practice with the law firms of Sullivan & Cromwell in New York and Gibson, Dunn & 
Crutcher in Washington, D.C. Mr. Fagre has served on the board of Ralph Lauren Media, L.L.C. as our representative since 2004. In addition, 
Mr. Fagre is a director, member of the executive committee and secretary of the Electronic Retailing Association, an industry association 
serving the television home shopping, e-commerce, infomercial and electronic direct-response industry.  

Karen F. Johnston joined us as Vice President of Merchandising in May 2004 and was promoted to Senior Vice President of Merchandising in 
February 2005. Ms. Johnston has more than eighteen years of progressive experience in direct marketing and retailing. From 2002 to 2004, Ms. 
Johnston was in Product Development and Merchandising Director for Target Corporation. From 1992 to 2002, Ms. Johnston served in a 
number of merchandising positions at the Fingerhut Corporation including the Merchandising Director for the jewelry, apparel and footwear 
division.  

Bryan Venberg joined us as Vice President of Human Resources in May 2004 and was promoted to Senior Vice President in May 2006. Mr. 
Venberg has more than fourteen years of experience in human resource management. From October 1999 to May 2004, Mr. Venberg served as 
regional director of human resources for Target Corporation. From September 1990 to October 1999, Mr. Venberg served in a number of 
human resource and merchandising positions at Target Corporation.  

L. AVAILABLE INFORMATION  

Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to these reports if 
applicable, are available, without charge, on our Investor Relations website as soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed electronically 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Copies also are available, without charge, by contacting the General Counsel, ValueVision 
Media, Inc., 6740 Shady Oak Road, Eden Prairie, Minnesota 55344-3433.  

Our Investor Relations internet address is www.valuevisionmedia.com. The information contained on and connected to our Investor Relations 
website is not incorporated into this report.  

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS  

In addition to the general investment risks and those factors set forth throughout this document, including those set forth under the caption 
"Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Information," the following risks should be considered regarding our company.  
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WE HAVE A HISTORY OF LOSSES AND MAY NOT BE ABLE TO ACHIEVE OR MAINTAIN PROFITABLE OPERATIONS IN 
THE FUTURE.  

We experienced operating losses from continuing operations of approximately $9.5 million, $18.6 million and $44.3 million in fiscal 2006, 
2005 and 2004, respectively. We reported a net loss per diluted share of $0.07, $0.43 and $1.57 in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
There is no assurance that we will be able to achieve or maintain profitable operations in future fiscal years.  

A MAJORITY OF OUR CABLE AND SATELLITE DISTRIBUTION AGREEMENTS ARE SCHEDULED TO EXPIRE AT THE END OF 
2008 AND IT MAY BE DIFFICULT OR MORE COSTLY TO RENEW THESE AGREEMENTS FOR ADDITIONAL TERMS.  

Cable and satellite distribution agreements representing approximately 60% of the total cable and satellite households who currently receive 
our television programming are scheduled to expire at the end of 2008. While we and NBC, as our agent, have begun initial discussions with 
certain cable system operators regarding extensions or renewals of these agreements, no assurance can be given that we will be successful in 
negotiating renewal contracts with all the existing systems, or that the financial and other terms of renewal will be on acceptable terms. Failure 
to successfully renew carriage agreements covering a material portion of our existing cable and satellite households on acceptable financial and 
other terms could adversely affect our future growth, sales revenues and earnings unless we were able to arrange for alternative means of 
broadly distributing our television programming.  

LOSS OF THE NBC BRANDING LICENSE WOULD REQUIRE US TO PURSUE A NEW BRANDING STRATEGY THAT MAY NOT 
BE SUCCESSFUL AND MAY INCUR SIGNIFICANT ADDITIONAL EXPENSE.  

We have branded our television home shopping network and internet site as ShopNBC and ShopNBC.com, respectively, under an exclusive, 
worldwide licensing agreement with NBC for the use of NBC trademarks, service marks and domain names that continues until May 2011. We 
do not have the right to automatic renewal at the end of the license term, and consequently may be required to pursue a new branding strategy 
which may not be as successful as the NBC brand with current or potential customers, and which may involve significant additional expense. 
In addition, there are limitations and conditions to our use of the license, which may under certain circumstances restrict us from pursuing 
business opportunities outside of our current scope of operations. NBC also has the right to terminate the license prior to the end of the license 
term in the event of a breach by us of the terms of the license agreement or upon certain changes of control, as outlined in greater detail in 
"Business -- Strategic Relationships -- ABC Trademark License Agreement" above.  

NBC AND GE EQUITY HAVE THE ABILITY TO EXERT SIGNIFI CANT INFLUENCE OVER US AND HAVE THE RIGHT TO 
DISAPPROVE OF CERTAIN ACTIONS BY US.  

As a result of their equity ownership in our company, NBC and GE Equity together are currently our largest shareholder and have the ability to 
exert significant influence over actions requiring shareholder approval, including the election of directors, adoption of equity-based 
compensation plans and approval of mergers or other significant corporate events. Through the provisions in the shareholder agreement and 
certificate of designation for the preferred stock, NBC and GE Equity also have the right to disapprove of certain major corporate actions by 
our company (as discussed under "Business -- Strategic Relationships -- Shareholder Agreement" above). In addition, because NBC has the 
exclusive right to negotiate for the distribution of our television home shopping programming, a termination of the strategic alliance with NBC 
could adversely affect our ability to increase our program distribution.  

MANDATORY REDEMPTION OF OUR CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED S TOCK COULD HAVE A MATERIAL IMPACT ON 
OUR LIQUIDITY AND CASH RESOURCES.  

Our Class A Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock issued to GE Equity may be redeemed upon certain changes in control of our company 
and, in any event, may be redeemed in 2009 upon the ten-year anniversary of its issuance (unless previously converted into common stock). If 
we are unable to generate positive cash flow or obtain additional capital prior to any such redemption, the requirement that we pay cash  
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in connection with such redemption may have a material impact on our liquidity and cash resources. The aggregate redemption cost of all the 
Preferred Stock is $44,264,000. We ended fiscal 2006 with cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments of $71,294,000 and no long-
term debt. The Preferred Stock has a redemption price of $8.29 per share and is convertible on a one-for-one basis into our common stock, and 
accordingly, if the market value of our stock is higher than the redemption price immediately prior to the redemption date, GE Equity may 
choose to convert its shares of Preferred Stock to common stock rather than exercise its right to redemption.  

GOVERNMENT REGULATION OF THE INTERNET AND E-COMMERC E IS EVOLVING; UNFAVORABLE CHANGES 
COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR BUSINESS.  

We have made material investments in anticipation of the continuing growth of the internet as an effective medium of commerce by merchants 
and shoppers. Our sales over the internet accounted for approximately 24%, 21% and 20% of consolidated net sales during fiscal 2006, 2005 
and 2004, respectively. Additional laws and regulations may be adopted with respect to the internet or other online services, covering such 
issues as user privacy, data security, advertising, pricing, content, copyrights and trademarks, access by persons with disabilities, distribution, 
taxation and characteristics and quality of products and services. These laws or regulations, if enacted, could make it more difficult for us to 
conduct business online, which could, in turn, decrease the demand for our products and services and increase our cost of doing business 
through the internet. Inherent with the internet and e-commerce is the risk of unauthorized access to confidential data, including consumer 
credit card information, the risk of computer virus infection or other unauthorized acts of electronic intrusion with the malicious intent to do 
damage. Although we have taken precautionary steps to secure and protect our data network from intrusion and acts of hostility, there can be 
no assurance that unauthorized access to our electronic systems will be prevented entirely.  

INTENSE COMPETITION IN THE GENERAL MERCHANDISE RETAILING INDUSTRY AND PARTICULARLY THE LIVE HOME 
SHOPPING AND E-COMMERCE SECTORS COULD LIMIT OUR GROWTH AND REDUCE OUR PROFITABILITY.  

As a general merchandise retailer, we compete for consumer expenditures with other forms of retail businesses, including department, discount, 
warehouse and specialty stores, television home shopping, e-commerce businesses, mail order and catalog companies, and other direct sellers. 
The home shopping industry is highly competitive, with the two largest competitors being HSN and QVC. QVC and HSN offer home shopping 
programming similar to our programming, and are well established, reach a significantly larger percentage of United States television 
households than we do, and in many markets have more favorable channel locations than we haved. QVC is owned by Liberty Media Corp., 
while HSN is a wholly owned subsidiary of InterActiveCorp. Liberty Media and InterActiveCorp are larger, more diversified and have greater 
financial, marketing and distribution resources than us. The internet retailing industry is also highly competitive, with numerous e-commerce 
websites competing in every product category we carry, in addition to the websites operated by the other television home shopping companies. 
This competition in the internet retailing sector makes it more challenging and expensive for us to attract new customers, retain existing 
customers and maintain desired gross margin levels.  

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO MAINTAIN ITS SATELLITE SERVICES IN CERTAIN SITUATIONS, BEYOND OUR CONTROL, 
WHICH MAY CAUSE OUR PROGRAMMING TO GO OFF THE AIR FOR A PERIOD OF TIME AND INCUR SUBSTANTIAL 
ADDITIONAL COSTS.  

Our programming is presently distributed to cable systems, full power television stations and satellite dish owners via a leased communications 
satellite transponder. In the future, satellite service may be interrupted due to a variety of circumstances beyond our control, such as satellite 
transponder failure, satellite fuel depletion, governmental action, preemption by the satellite service provider and service failure. The 
agreement provides us with preemptable back-up service if satellite transmission is interrupted. However, there can be no assurance if satellite 
transmission is so interrupted that we will be able to utilize existing back-up transponder or satellite capacity. In the event of any transmission 
interruption, we may incur substantial additional costs to enter into new arrangements and be unable to broadcast its signal for some period of 
time.  
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WE MAY BE SUBJECT TO PRODUCT LIABILITY CLAIMS FOR O N AIR MISREPRESENTATIONS OR IF PEOPLE OR 
PROPERTIES ARE HARMED BY PRODUCTS SOLD BY US.  

Products sold by us and representations related to these products may expose us to potential liability from claims by purchasers of such 
products, subject to our rights, in certain instances, to seek indemnification against this liability from the suppliers or manufacturers of the 
products. In addition to potential claims of personal injury, wrongful death or damage to personal property, the live unscripted nature of our 
television broadcasting may subject us to claims of misrepresentation by our customers, the Federal Trade Commission and state attorneys 
general. We maintain, and have generally required the manufacturers and vendors of these products to carry, product liability and errors and 
omissions insurance. There can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain this coverage or obtain additional coverage on acceptable 
terms, or that this insurance will provide adequate coverage against all potential claims or even be available with respect to any particular 
claim. There also can be no assurance that our suppliers will continue to maintain this insurance or that this coverage will be adequate or 
available with respect to any particular claims. Product liability claims could result in a material adverse impact on our financial performance.  

OUR VALUEPAY INSTALLMENT PAYMENT PROGRAM COULD LEAD  TO SIGNIFICANT UNPLANNED CREDIT LOSSES 
IF OUR CREDIT LOSS RATE WAS TO DETERIORATE.  

We utilize an installment payment program called ValuePay that entitles customers to purchase merchandise and generally pay for the 
merchandise in two to six equal monthly installments. As of February 3, 2007 and February 4, 2006, we had approximately $105 million and 
$77 million, respectively, due from customers under the ValuePay installment program. We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for 
estimated losses resulting from the inability of our customers to make required payments. While credit losses have historically been within our 
estimates for such losses, there is no guarantee that we will continue to experience the same credit loss rate that we have in the past. A 
significant increase in our credit losses could result in a material adverse impact on our financial performance.  

WE PLACE A SIGNIFICANT RELIANCE ON TECHNOLOGY AND INFORMATION MANAGEMENT TOOLS TO RUN OUR 
EXISTING BUSINESSES, THE FAILURE OF WHICH COULD ADVERSELY IMPACT OUR OPERATIONS.  

Our businesses are dependent, in part, on the use of sophisticated technology, some of which is provided to us by third parties. These 
technologies include, but are not necessarily limited to, satellite based transmission of our programming, use of the internet in relation to our 
on-line business, new digital technology used to manage and supplement our television broadcast operations and a network of complex 
computer hardware and software to manage an ever increasing need for information and information management tools. The failure of any of 
these technologies, or our inability to have this technology supported, updated, expanded or integrated into other technologies, could adversely 
impact our operations. Although we have, when possible, developed alternative sources of technology and built redundancy into our computer 
networks and tools, there can be no assurance that these efforts to date would protect us against all potential issues or disaster occurrences 
related to the loss of any such technologies or their use.  

THE EXPANSION OF DIGITAL CABLE COMPRESSION TECHNOLO GY MAY ADVERSELY IMPACT OUR ABILITY TO 
COMPETE FOR TELEVISION VIEWERS.  

The majority of cable operators have started to offer cable programming on a digital basis. The use of digital compression technology provides 
cable companies with greater channel capacity. While greater channel capacity increases the opportunity for us to be more widely distributed, it 
also may adversely impact our ability to compete for television viewers to the extent it results in (i) higher channel position, (ii) placement of 
our programming in separate programming tiers, or (iii) an expanding universe of programming choices all competing for the same audience. 
We have historically experienced a higher annual sales revenue per FTE with analog systems, as compared to digital systems. As more cable 
system operators move to all-digital systems or require our programming to be carried on a digital tier, we could experience a reduction in the 
growth or an absolute decline in sales per FTE, unless we are able to offset the reduction through increased  
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marketing efforts, greater internet-based sales or alternative distribution channels for our television programming. Such efforts may not be 
successful or may incur significant additional operating costs.  

THE UNANTICIPATED LOSS OF ONE OF OUR LARGER VENDORS  COULD IMPACT OUR SALES ON A TEMPORARY 
BASIS.  

Historically, we have not entered into long-term supply arrangements that would require vendors to provide products on an ongoing basis. In 
fiscal 2006, products purchased from one vendor accounted for approximately 17% of our consolidated net sales. We believe that we could find 
alternative sources for this vendor's products if this vendor ceased supplying merchandise; however, the unanticipated loss of any large supplier 
could impact our sales on a temporary basis.  

MANY OF OUR KEY FUNCTIONS ARE CONCENTRATED IN A SIN GLE LOCATION, AND A NATURAL DISASTER COULD 
SERIOUSLY IMPACT OUR ABILITY TO OPERATE.  

Our television broadcast studios, internet operations, IT systems, merchandising team, inventory control systems, executive offices and 
finance/accounting functions, among others, are centralized in our adjacent offices at 6740 and 6690, Shady Oak Road in Eden Prairie, 
Minnesota. A natural disaster such as a tornado could seriously disrupt our ability to continue or resume normal operations for some period of 
time. While we have business continuity plans and emergency preparedness protocols in place, no assurances can be given as to how quickly 
we would be able to resume operations and how long it may take to return to normal operations. We could incur substantial financial losses 
above and beyond what may be covered by applicable insurance policies, and may experience a loss of customers, vendors and employees 
during the recovery period.  

WE OPERATE WITH A HIGH FIXED COST BASE.  

Our television home shopping business operates with a high fixed cost base, primarily driven by fixed annual fees under multi-year contracts 
with cable and satellite system operators to carry our programming. In fiscal 2006, these fees aggregated approximately $112.6 million. In 
order to operate on a profitable basis, we must reach and maintain sufficient annual sales revenues to cover our high fixed cost base. In the 
event we do not achieve our expected sales revenue targets or experience an unanticipated decline in sales, our ability to reduce operating 
expenses in the near term will be limited by the fixed cost base. In that case, our earnings and growth prospects could be adversely affected.  

OUR TELEVISION HOME SHOPPING AND INTERNET BUSINESSE S ARE SENSITIVE TO GENERAL ECONOMIC 
CONDITIONS, CONSUMER CONFIDENCE AND MAJOR NEWS EVEN TS.  

Our businesses are sensitive to general economic conditions affecting consumer spending. Our two major categories of sales merchandise are 
jewelry and electronics, which due to their nature and relatively high price points are more sensitive to changes in consumer demand than other 
product categories. Unfavorable economic conditions and/or a loss of consumer confidence may lead to a reduction in consumer spending 
generally and in home shopping specifically, and may lead to a reduction in consumer spending on the types of merchandise we currently offer. 
Additionally, our television audience and sales revenue can be significantly impacted by major world or domestic events, which divert 
audience attention away from our programming.  

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS  

None  

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES  

We own two commercial buildings occupying approximately 209,000 square feet in Eden Prairie, Minnesota (a suburb of Minneapolis). One of 
the buildings is used for our corporate administrative, television production and jewelry distribution operations. The second building has 
approximately 70,000 square feet of commercial rental space, which we utilize for additional office space. We own a 262,000 square foot 
distribution facility on a 34-acre parcel of land and lease approximately 72,000 square feet of warehouse space in Bowling Green, Kentucky. 
We also lease approximately 25,000 square feet of office space for a telephone  
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call center in Brooklyn Center, Minnesota, which we primarily use to fulfill our service obligations in connection with the services agreement 
entered into with RLM and our own customer service operations. Additionally, we rent transmitter site and studio locations in Boston, 
Massachusetts for our full power television station. We believe that our existing facilities are adequate to meet our current needs and that 
suitable additional or alternative space will be available as needed to accommodate expansion of operations.  

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS  

We are involved from time to time in various claims and lawsuits in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, these 
claims and suits individually and in the aggregate have not had a material adverse effect on our operations or consolidated financial statements.  

As previously described in our annual and quarterly SEC filings, in July 2004, we commenced legal proceedings against Navarre Corporation 
in state court in Minnesota seeking to enforce rights granted under a stock purchase agreement and conversion agreement entered in 1997 as an 
inducement to obtain our investment in NetRadio Corporation. On November 15, 2005, we agreed with Navarre to settle the claims we made 
against Navarre and the counterclaims Navarre made against us. Under the settlement agreement finalized in April 2006, Navarre made a cash 
payment to us and entered into an airtime agreement with us whereby Navarre had the right to purchase advertising time from us during 2006.  

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY  HOLDERS  

No matters were submitted to our shareholders during the fourth quarter ended February 3, 2007.  

PART II  

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER 
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES  

MARKET INFORMATION FOR COMMON STOCK  

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol "VVTV." The following table sets forth the range of high and low 
sales prices of the common stock as quoted by the Nasdaq Global Market for the periods indicated.  

 

HOLDERS  

As of April 2, 2007 we had approximately 550 shareholders of record.  

DIVIDENDS  

We have never declared or paid any dividends with respect to our capital stock. Pursuant to the shareholder agreement we have with GE 
Equity, we are prohibited from paying dividends in excess of 5% of  
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                                                               HIGH     LOW 
                                                              ------   ------  
FISCAL 2006 
  First Quarter.................................... .........  $13.13   $11.48  
  Second Quarter................................... .........   13.75     9.83  
  Third Quarter.................................... .........   12.95    10.03  
  Fourth Quarter................................... .........   14.12    11.83  
FISCAL 2005 
  First Quarter.................................... .........   14.42     9.40  
  Second Quarter................................... .........   12.72     8.01  
  Third Quarter.................................... .........   13.51     9.24  
  Fourth Quarter................................... .........   13.38     9.47  



our market capitalization in any quarter. We currently expect to retain our earnings for the development and expansion of our business and do 
not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future determination by us to pay cash dividends will be at the discretion of 
the board of directors and will be dependent upon our results of operations, financial condition, any contractual restrictions then existing and 
other factors deemed relevant at the time by the board of directors.  

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES  

In August 2006, our board of directors authorized a common stock repurchase program. The program authorizes our management, acting 
through an investment banking firm selected as our agent, to repurchase up to $10 million of our common stock through August 2007 by open 
market purchases or negotiated transactions at prices and amounts as we determine from time to time. We did not repurchase any shares under 
our stock repurchase program in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. During the third quarter of fiscal 2006, we repurchased a total of 406,000 
shares of common stock for a total repurchase amount of $4,682,000 at an average price of $11.54 per share. We did not repurchase any shares 
under any stock repurchase program during fiscal 2005 or fiscal 2004.  
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STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH  

The graph below compares the cumulative five-year total return to our shareholders (based on appreciation of the market price of our common 
stock) on an indexed basis with (i) a broad equity market index and (ii) a peer group created by us over the same period and consisting of 
companies involved in various aspects of the television home shopping, jewelry and internet retail and service industries. The presentation 
compares the common stock price in the period from January 31, 2002 to February 3, 2007, to the Nasdaq Global Market stock index and to the 
peer group. The total return to shareholders of those companies comprising the peer group are weighted according to their stock market 
capitalization. The companies in the current peer group are: InterActiveCorp, the parent company of the Home Shopping Network; Liberty 
Media Corporation, the parent company of QVC, a home shopping television network; Amazon.com, Inc., an on-line retailer; RedEnvelope, 
Inc., an upscale on-line retailer; GSI Commerce, Inc., a provider of professional services to the on-line retail industry; Zale Corporation, a 
specialty jewelry retailer; and Whitehall Jewelers, Inc., a specialty jewelry retailer. In fiscal 2006, we replaced E.W. Scripps Co., the parent 
company of the Shop At Home home shopping television network from its peer group with RedEnvelope, Inc. due to E.W. Scripps Co.'s 
divestiture of the Shop At Home network. The cumulative return is calculated assuming an investment of $100 on January 31, 2002, and 
reinvestment of all dividends. You should not consider shareholder return over the indicated period to be indicative of future shareholder 
returns.  

Graph  
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--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------  
                        JANUARY 31,    JANUARY 31,    JANUARY 31,    JANUARY 31,    FEBRUARY 4,    FEB RUARY 3,  
                           2002           2003           2004           2005           2006           2007 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------  
 ValueVision Media, 
  Inc. .............      $100.00         $70.09        $ 94.10        $ 75.72        $ 65.99        $  65.94 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------  
 Nasdaq Stock Market 
  (U.S.) Index......       100.00          67.88         105.70         106.89         121.35         130.43 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------  
 Peer Group.........       100.00          84.91         125.22         115.22         110.04         119.04 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------  



ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA  

The selected financial data for the five years ended February 3, 2007 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. The 
selected financial data presented below are qualified in their entirety by, and should be read in conjunction with, the financial statements and 
notes thereto and other financial and statistical information referenced elsewhere herein including the information referenced under the caption 
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations."  
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                                                                    YEAR ENDED 
                                        ----------- --------------------------------------------------- -----  
                                        FEBRUARY 3,    FEBRUARY 4,   JANUARY 31,   JANUARY 31,   JANUAR Y 31,  
                                           2007         2006(A)       2005(B)       2004(C)        200 3 
                                        -----------    -----------   -----------   -----------   ------ -----  
                                                       (IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) 
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA: 
Net sales.............................   $767,275      $691,851      $623,634      $591,185      $540, 262 
Net sales less cost of sales, 
  exclusive of depreciation and 
  amortization(f).....................    267,161       238,944       204,096       209,508       192, 924 
Operating loss........................     (9,479)      (18,646)      (44,271)       (7,987)       (6, 090) 
Loss from continuing operations(d)....     (2,396)      (13,457)      (42,719)       (8,329)      (35, 753) 
Discontinued operations(e)............         --        (2,296)      (14,882)       (3,063)       (3, 357) 
PER SHARE DATA: 
Net loss from continuing operations 
  per common share....................   $  (0.07)     $  (0.37)     $  (1.17)     $  (0.23)     $  (0 .96) 
Net loss from continuing operations 
  per common share -- assuming 
  dilution............................   $  (0.07)     $  (0.37)     $  (1.17)     $  (0.23)     $  (0 .96) 
Weighted average shares outstanding: 
  Basic...............................     37,646        37,182        36,815        35,934        37, 173 
  Diluted.............................     37,646        37,182        36,815        35,934        37, 173 

                                        FEBRUARY 3,    FEBRUARY 4,   JANUARY 31,   JANUARY 31,   JANUAR Y 31,  
                                           2007          2006          2005          2004          200 3 
                                        -----------    -----------   -----------   -----------   ------ -----  
                                                                  (IN THOUSANDS) 
BALANCE SHEET DATA: 
Cash and short-term investments.......   $ 71,294      $ 82,350      $100,581      $127,181      $168, 634 
Current assets........................    260,445       246,029       240,524       270,984       314, 063 
Property, equipment and other 
  assets..............................     91,535       101,110       109,772       125,607        92, 211 
Total assets..........................    351,980       347,139       350,296       396,591       406, 274 
Current liabilities...................    105,274       100,820        89,074        84,837        87, 497 
Other long-term obligations...........      2,553           130         1,380         2,002         1, 669 
Redeemable preferred stock............     43,607        43,318        43,030        42,745        42, 462 
Shareholders' equity..................    198,847       202,871       216,812       267,007       274, 646 



 

(a) Results of operations for the year ended February 4, 2006 includes a $294,000 gain on the sale of a television station. See Note 4 to the 
consolidated financial statements.  

(b) Results of operations for the year ended January 31, 2005 includes a non-cash charge of $1.9 million related to the write off of deferred 
advertising credits. See Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.  

(c) Results of operations for the year ended January 31, 2004 include the operations of television station WWDP TV-46 from the effective date 
of its acquisition, April 1, 2003. Results of operations for the year ended January 31, 2004 also include a charge of $4.6 million related to costs 
associated with our chief executive officer transition and a $4.4 million gain on the sale of television stations.  

(d) Loss from continuing operations includes a net pre-tax loss of $1.7 million from the sale and holdings of investments and other assets in 
fiscal 2003 and a net pre-tax loss of $37.3 million from the sale and holdings of investments and other assets in fiscal 2002.  

(e) Discontinued operations relate to the operations of our FanBuzz subsidiary, which were shut down in fiscal 2005. See Notes 5 and 16 to the 
consolidated financial statements.  

(f) Management views net sales less cost of sales (exclusive of depreciation and amortization), or sales margin, as an alternative operating 
measure because it is commonly used by management, analysts and institutional investors in analyzing our net sales profitability. This term is 
not considered a measure determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP. The comparable GAAP 
measurement is gross profit, which is defined as net sales less cost of sales (inclusive of depreciation and amortization). Our gross profit from 
continuing operations for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 is $244.9 million, $218.4 million and $185.2 million, respectively. The percentage change 
year over year under either measure is relatively consistent.  

(g) We define Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization, or EBITDA, as net loss from continuing operations for the 
respective periods excluding depreciation and amortization expense, interest income (expense) and income taxes. Management views EBITDA 
as an important alternative operating performance measure because it is commonly used by analysts and institutional investors in analyzing the 
financial performance of companies in the broadcast and television home shopping sectors. However, EBITDA should not be construed as an 
alternative to operating loss or to cash flows from operating activities (as determined in accordance with GAAP) and should not be construed 
as a measure of liquidity. EBITDA, as presented, may not be comparable to similarly entitled measures reported by other companies. 
Management has included the term EBITDA, before non-cash stock option expense, in its presentation in order to maintain comparability of 
previously issued financial guidance and prior year's reported results. Management also uses EBITDA, before non-cash stock option expense, 
to evaluate operating performance and as a measure of performance for incentive compensation purposes.  
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                                                                    YEAR ENDED 
                                        ----------- --------------------------------------------------- -----  
                                        FEBRUARY 3,    FEBRUARY 4,   JANUARY 31,   JANUARY 31,   JANUAR Y 31,  
                                           2007          2006          2005          2004          200 3 
                                        -----------    -----------   -----------   -----------   ------ -----  
                                                      (IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT STATISTICAL DATA) 
OTHER DATA: 
Sales margin(f).......................       34.8%         34.5%         32.7%         35.4%         3 5.7% 
Working capital.......................   $155,171      $145,209      $151,450      $186,147      $226, 566 
Current ratio.........................        2.5           2.4           2.7           3.2           3.6 
EBITDA (as defined)(g)................   $ 16,116      $  3,302      $(25,401)     $  6,762      $(28, 897) 
CASH FLOWS: 
Operating.............................   $  3,542      $(10,374)     $(18,070)     $  3,368      $  3, 666 
Investing.............................   $ (1,562)     $(10,111)     $ (2,304)     $ 23,003      $ 19, 185 
Financing.............................   $ (3,627)     $    988      $  1,981      $   (447)     $(29, 850) 



A reconciliation of EBITDA to its comparable GAAP measurement, net loss, follows:  

 

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS  

INTRODUCTION  

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is qualified by reference to and should be read in 
conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere herein.  

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT FOR PURPOSES OF THE SAFE HARBO R PROVISIONS OF THE PRIVATE SECURITIES 
LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995  

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and other materials we file with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (as well as information included in oral statements or other written statements made or to be made by us) 
contain certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements are 
based on management's current expectations and are accordingly subject to uncertainty and changes in circumstances. Actual results may vary 
materially from the expectations contained herein due to various important factors, including (but not limited to): consumer spending and debt 
levels; interest rates; seasonal variations in consumer purchasing activities; changes in the mix of products sold by us; competitive pressures on 
sales; pricing and sales margins; the level of cable and satellite distribution for our programming and the associated fees; the success of our e-
commerce initiatives; the success of our strategic alliances and relationships; our ability to manage our operating expenses successfully; risks 
associated with acquisitions; changes in governmental or regulatory requirements; litigation or governmental proceedings affecting our 
operations; the risks identified under "Risk Factors"; significant public events that are difficult to predict, such as widespread weather 
catastrophes or other significant television-covering events causing an interruption of television coverage or that directly compete with the 
viewership of our programming; and our ability to obtain and retain key executives and employees. Investors are cautioned that all forward-
looking statements involve risk and uncertainty and we are under no obligation (and expressly disclaims any obligation) to update or alter our 
forward-looking statements whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.  

OVERVIEW  

ValueVision Media, Inc. is an integrated direct marketing company that markets its products to consumers through various forms of electronic 
media and direct-to-consumer mailings. Our operating strategy  
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                                                                    YEAR ENDED 
                                        ----------- --------------------------------------------------- -----  
                                        FEBRUARY 3,    FEBRUARY 4,   JANUARY 31,   JANUARY 31,   JANUAR Y 31,  
                                           2007          2006          2005          2004          200 3 
                                        -----------    -----------   -----------   -----------   ------ -----  
                                                                  (IN THOUSANDS) 
EBITDA, before non-cash stock option 
  expense.............................    $17,672      $  3,302      $(25,401)     $  6,762      $(28, 897) 
Less: non-cash stock option expense...     (1,556)           --            --            --            -- 
                                          -------      --------      --------      --------      ----- --- 
EBITDA (as defined)...................     16,116         3,302       (25,401)        6,762       (28, 897) 
A reconciliation of EBITDA to net loss 
  is as follows: 
EBITDA, as defined....................     16,116         3,302       (25,401)        6,762       (28, 897) 
Adjustments: 
Depreciation and amortization.........    (22,239)      (20,569)      (18,920)      (16,399)      (14, 522) 
Interest income.......................      3,802         3,048         1,627         1,488         3, 221 
Income taxes..........................        (75)          762           (25)         (180)        4, 445 
Discontinued operations of FanBuzz....         --        (2,296)      (14,882)       (3,063)       (3, 357) 
                                          -------      --------      --------      --------      ----- --- 
Net loss..............................    $(2,396)     $(15,753)     $(57,601)     $(11,392)     $(39, 110) 
                                          =======      ========      ========      ========      ===== === 



as a multi-channel retailer incorporates television home shopping business, internet e-commerce, direct mail marketing and fulfillment services. 
Our live 24-hour per day television home shopping programming is distributed primarily through long-term cable and satellite affiliation 
agreements.  

PRODUCTS AND CUSTOMERS  

Products sold on our television home shopping network and internet shopping website include jewelry, watches, computers and other 
electronics, housewares, apparel, cosmetics, fitness products, giftware, collectibles, seasonal items and other merchandise. Jewelry is our 
largest single category of merchandise, representing 39% of television home shopping and internet net sales in fiscal 2006, 43% in fiscal 2005 
and 49% in fiscal 2004. Home products, including electronics product categories, represented approximately 37% of television home shopping 
and internet net sales in fiscal 2006, 36% in fiscal 2005 and 31% in fiscal 2004. Watches, apparel and health and beauty product categories 
represented approximately 24% of television home shopping and internet net sales in fiscal 2006, 21% in fiscal 2005 and 20% in fiscal 2004. 
We believe that having a broad diversity of products appeals to a broader segment of potential customers and is important to growing our 
business. Our product diversification strategy is to continue to develop new product offerings primarily in the home, apparel and accessories, 
cosmetics, fitness and consumer electronics categories to supplement the existing jewelry and computer businesses. We believe that our 
customers are primarily women between the ages of 35 and 55 with annual household incomes between $50,000 and $75,000 and believe our 
customers make purchases based primarily on convenience, unique product offerings, value and quality of merchandise.  

COMPANY STRATEGY  

Our objective is to be positioned as a growing and profitable leader in multi-channel retailing in the United States, offering consumers an 
entertaining, informative and interactive shopping experience. The following strategies are being pursued to increase our revenues and 
profitability and grow the active customer base, both for television sales and sales through the internet: (i) continue to diversify our mix of 
product categories offered on television and the internet, in order to appeal to a broader population of potential customers; (ii) maintain and 
increase the distribution of our television programming through new and expanded agreements with cable and satellite system operators, as 
well as pursuing other means of reaching customers such as through webcasting, internet videos and internet-based broadcasting networks; (iii) 
increase the productivity of each hour of television programming, through a focus on television offers of merchandise that maximizes gross 
margin dollars per hour and marketing efforts to increase the number of customers within the households currently receiving our television 
programming; (iv) continue the growth of our internet business through the innovative use of technology and marketing efforts, such as 
advanced search techniques, personalization, internet video, affiliate agreements and internet-based auction capabilities; (v) continue to 
enhance our television broadcast quality, programming, website features and customer support; (vi) increase the average order size through 
sales initiatives such as add-on sales, continuity programs and warranty sales; and (vii) leverage the strong brand recognition of the NBC brand 
name.  

CHALLENGE  

Our television home shopping business operates with a high fixed cost base, which is primarily due to fixed contractual fees paid to cable and 
satellite operators to carry our programming. In order to attain profitability, we must achieve sufficient sales volume through the acquisition of 
new customers and the increased retention of existing customers to cover our high fixed costs. Our growth and profitability could be adversely 
impacted if sales volume does not meet expectations, as we will have limited immediate capability to reduce our fixed cable and satellite 
distribution operating expenses to mitigate any potential sales shortfall.  

OUR COMPETITION  

The direct marketing and retail businesses are highly competitive. In our television home shopping and e-commerce operations, we compete for 
customers with other types of consumer retail businesses, including traditional "brick and mortar" department stores, discount stores, 
warehouse stores and specialty stores; other  
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television home shopping and e-commerce retailers; infomercial companies; catalog and mail order retailers and other direct sellers.  

In the competitive television home shopping sector, we compete with QVC Network, Inc. and HSN, Inc., both of whom are substantially larger 
than we are in terms of annual revenues and customers, and whose programming is carried more broadly to U.S. households than is our 
programming. Both QVC and HSN are owned by large, well-capitalized parent companies in the media business, who are also expanding into 
related e-commerce and web-based businesses. The American Collectibles Network (ACN), the operator of Jewelry Television, also competes 
with us for television home shopping customers in the jewelry category, and ACN has recently acquired the assets of Shop At Home from E. 
W. Scripps Company and is operating a second channel of programming in a number of non-jewelry categories, including collectible coins and 
knives. In addition, there are a number of smaller niche players and startups in the television home shopping arena who compete with us.  

The e-commerce sector is also highly competitive, and we are in direct competition with numerous other internet retailers, many of whom are 
larger, more well-financed and/or have a broader customer base. Certain of our competitors in the television home shopping sector have 
acquired internet businesses complementary to their existing internet sites, which may pose new competitive challenges for us. For example, 
the parent company of HSN has acquired the internet search business Ask Jeeves (now known as Ask.com), and the parent company of QVC 
acquired Provide Commerce, an operator of retail websites.  

We anticipate continuing competition for viewers and customers, for experienced home shopping personnel, for distribution agreements with 
cable and satellite systems, and for vendors and suppliers -- not only from television home shopping companies, but also from other companies 
that seek to enter the home shopping and internet retail industries, including telecommunications and cable companies, television networks, and 
other established retailers. We believe that our success in the TV home shopping and e-commerce sectors is dependent on a number of key 
factors, including (i) obtaining carriage on additional cable systems on favorable terms, (ii) increasing the number of households who purchase 
products from us, and (iii) increasing the dollar value of sales per customer to our existing customer base.  

RESULTS FOR FISCAL 2006  

Consolidated net sales from continuing operations in fiscal 2006 were $767,275,000 compared to $691,851,000 in fiscal 2005, an 11% 
increase. The increase in consolidated net sales from continuing operations is directly attributable to the continued improvement in and 
increased sales from our television home shopping and internet operations. Effective for fiscal 2005, the results of operations of FanBuzz have 
been presented as loss from discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for all periods presented. Net 
sales attributed to our television home shopping and internet operations increased 11% to $755,302,000 in fiscal 2006 from $680,592,000 in 
fiscal 2005. We reported an operating loss of $9,479,000 and a net loss of $2,396,000 in fiscal 2006. We reported an operating loss of 
$18,646,000 and a net loss of $15,753,000, which included a net loss of $2,296,000 from discontinued operations, in fiscal 2005. Operating 
expenses in fiscal 2006 included a $29,000 asset impairment charge. Operating expenses in fiscal 2005 included an $82,000 charge related to 
employee terminations and a $294,000 gain on the sale of a television station.  

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES  

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations discusses our consolidated financial statements, 
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of 
these financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting periods. On an on-going basis, management evaluates its estimates and assumptions, including those related to the 
realizability of long-term investments and  
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intangible assets, accounts receivable, inventory and product returns. Management bases its estimates and assumptions on historical experience 
and on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making 
judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. There can be no assurance that 
actual results will not differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.  

Management believes the following critical accounting policies affect the more significant assumptions and estimates used in the preparation of 
the consolidated financial statements:  

- Accounts receivable. We utilize an installment payment program called ValuePay that entitles customers to purchase merchandise and 
generally pay for the merchandise in two to six equal monthly credit card installments in which we bear the risk for uncollectibility. As of 
February 3, 2007 and February 4, 2006, we had approximately $105,197,000 and $77,447,000 respectively, due from customers under the 
ValuePay installment program. We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers 
to make required payments. Estimates are used in determining the allowance for doubtful accounts and are based on historical collection 
experience, current trends, credit policy and a percentage of accounts receivable by aging category. In determining these percentages, we 
review our historical write-off experience, current trends in the credit quality of the customer base as well as changes in credit policies. While 
credit losses have historically been within our expectations and the provisions established, there is no guarantee that we will continue to 
experience the same credit loss rate that we have in the past or that losses will be within current provisions. Provision for doubtful accounts 
receivable (primarily related to our ValuePay program) for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $6,065,000, $4,542,000 and $4,303,000, 
respectively. Based on our fiscal 2006 bad debt experience, a one-half point increase or decrease in our bad debt experience as a percentage of 
total television home shopping and internet sales would have an impact of approximately $3.8 million on consolidated distribution and selling 
expense.  

- Inventory. We value our inventory, which consists primarily of consumer merchandise held for resale, principally at the lower of average cost 
or realizable value, and reduce our balance by an allowance for excess and obsolete merchandise. As of February 3, 2007 and February 4, 2006, 
we had inventory balances of $66,622,000 and $67,844,000, respectively. We regularly review inventory quantities on hand and record a 
provision for excess and obsolete inventory based primarily on a percentage of the inventory balance as determined by its age and specific 
product category. In determining these percentages, we look at our historical write-off experience, the specific merchandise categories on hand, 
our historic recovery percentages on liquidations, forecasts of future product television shows and the current market value of gold. If actual 
recoveries or future demand or market conditions differ from our estimates and assumptions, additional inventory write-downs may be required 
in future periods. Provision for excess and obsolete inventory for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $2,977,000, $3,508,000 and $3,811,000, 
respectively. Based on our fiscal 2006 inventory write down experience, a 10% increase or decrease in inventory write downs would have had 
an impact of approximately $298,000 on consolidated net sales less cost of sales (exclusive of depreciation and amortization).  

- Product returns. We record a reserve as a reduction of gross sales for anticipated product returns at each month-end and must make estimates 
of potential future product returns related to current period product revenue. Our return rates on our television and internet sales have been 
approximately 32% to 33% over the past three fiscal years. We estimate and evaluate the adequacy of our returns reserve by analyzing 
historical returns by merchandise category, looking at current economic trends and changes in customer demand and by analyzing the 
acceptance of new product lines. Assumptions and estimates are made and used in connection with establishing the sales returns reserve in any 
accounting period. Material differences may result in the amount and timing of revenue for any period if management's assumptions and 
estimates were significantly different from actual product return experiences. Reserves for product returns for fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004 
were $8,498,000, $7,658,000 and $7,290,000, respectively. Based on our fiscal 2006 sales returns, a one-point increase or decrease in our 
television and internet sales returns rate would have had an impact of approximately $4.4 million on consolidated net sales less cost of sales 
(exclusive of depreciation and amortization).  
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- Long-term investments. As of February 3, 2007 and February 4, 2006, we had $4,139,000 and $1,383,000, respectively, of long-term equity 
investment securities of which all related to our investment in RLM recorded in connection with our equity share of RLM income under the 
equity method of accounting. We record an investment impairment charge when we believe an investment has experienced a decline in value 
that is deemed to be other than temporary. Future adverse changes in market conditions, or continued poor operating results of the underlying 
investments, could result in significant non-operating losses or an inability to recover the carrying value of long-term investments that may not 
be reflected in an investment's current carrying value, thereby possibly requiring an impairment charge in the future. While we believe that our 
estimates and assumptions regarding the valuation of our investments are reasonable, different assumptions could have a material affect on our 
valuations. On March 28, 2007, we sold our 12.5% ownership interest in RLM for approximately $43.8 million. See Note 17 to the 
consolidated financial statements.  

- FCC broadcasting license asset and goodwill. As of February 3, 2007 and February 4, 2006, we have recorded an intangible FCC 
broadcasting license asset totaling $31,943,000 as a result of our acquisition of Boston television station WWDP TV-46 in fiscal 2003. In 
assessing the recoverability of our FCC broadcasting license asset, which we determined to have an indefinite life, we must make assumptions 
regarding estimated projected cash flows and other factors to determine the fair value of the related reporting unit. We performed an 
impairment test with respect to our FCC broadcasting license in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 and determined that an impairment had not 
occurred. With respect to the FCC broadcasting license asset, the fair value of the reporting unit exceeded its carrying value. If these estimates 
or related assumptions change in the future, we may be required to record impairment charges for our indefinite life intangibles in future 
periods. While we believe that our estimates and assumptions regarding the valuation of our reporting unit are reasonable, different 
assumptions or future events could materially affect our valuations. During the third quarter of fiscal 2004, we wrote off goodwill attributable 
to the FanBuzz acquisition totaling $9,442,000 as we had determined that the goodwill was significantly impaired following FanBuzz's loss of 
its National Hockey League contract in September 2004. See Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements. The results of operations for 
FanBuzz are classified as discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated financial statements of operations.  

- Intangible assets. As of February 3, 2007 and February 4, 2006, we had amortizable intangible assets totaling $13,993,000 and $18,115,000, 
respectively, recorded primarily as a result of warrants we issued in connection with the trademark license agreement with NBC and the 
distribution and marketing agreement entered into with NBC. In assessing the recoverability of our intangible assets, we must make 
assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other factors to determine the fair value of the respective assets and reporting units. If 
these estimates or related assumptions change in the future, we may be required to record impairment charges for these assets in future periods. 
While we believe that our estimates and assumptions regarding the valuation of these intangible assets are reasonable, different assumptions or 
future events could materially affect our valuations. During fiscal 2004, we wrote off approximately $160,000 of intangible assets in 
connection with the FanBuzz impairment. See Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.  

- Stock-based compensation. We account for stock-based compensation issued to employees in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 123(R) (revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment" ("SFAS No.  
123(R)"), which revised SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation," and superseded APB Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for 
Stock Issued to Employees" ("APB 25"). This standard requires compensation costs related to all share-based payment transactions to be 
recognized in the financial statements at fair value. The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model that uses assumptions for stock volatility, option terms, risk-free interest rates and dividend yields. Expected 
volatilities are based on the historical volatility of our stock. Expected term is calculated using the simplified method taking into consideration 
the option's contractual life and vesting terms. The risk-free interest rate for periods within the contractual life of the option is based on the U.S. 
Treasury yield curve in effect at the time  
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of grant. Expected dividend yields are not used in the fair value computations as we have never declared or paid dividends on our common 
stock. While we believe that our estimates and assumptions regarding the valuation of our share-based awards are reasonable, different 
assumptions could have a material affect on our valuations. See Note 6, Shareholders' Equity -- Stock-Based Compensation, for our disclosure 
regarding our share-based equity awards.  

- Deferred taxes. We account for income taxes under the liability method of accounting whereby income taxes are recognized during the fiscal 
year in which transactions enter into the determination of financial statement income (loss). Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized 
for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of the enactment of such laws. We 
assess the recoverability of our deferred tax assets in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, 
"Accounting for Income Taxes" ("SFAS No. 109"). In accordance with that standard, as of February 3, 2007 and February 4, 2006, we 
recorded a valuation allowance of approximately $54,663,000 and $55,244,000, respectively, for our net deferred tax assets and net operating 
and capital loss carryforwards. Based on our recent history of losses, a full valuation allowance was recorded in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 and 
was calculated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109, which places primary importance on our most recent operating results 
when assessing the need for a valuation allowance. Although management believes that our recent operating losses were heavily affected by a 
challenging retail economic environment and slowdown in consumer spending experienced by us and other merchandise retailers, we intend to 
maintain a full valuation allowance for our net deferred tax assets and loss carryforwards until sufficient positive evidence exists to support 
reversal of allowances.  

SHOPNBC PRIVATE LABEL AND CO-BRAND CREDIT CARD PROG RAM  

In the third quarter of fiscal 2006, we introduced and established a new private label and co-brand revolving consumer credit card program. The 
program is made available to all qualified consumers for the financing of purchases of products from ShopNBC and for the financing of 
purchases of products and services from other non-ShopNBC retailers. The program is intended to be used by cardholders for purchases made 
primarily for personal, family or household use. The issuing bank is the sole owner of the account issued under the program and absorbs all 
losses associated with non-payment by cardholders. The issuing bank pays fees to us based on the number of credit card accounts activated and 
on card usage. Once a customer is approved to receive a ShopNBC private label or co-branded credit card and the card is activated, the 
customer is eligible to participate in our credit card rewards program. Under the rewards program, points are earned on purchases made with 
the credit cards at ShopNBC and other retailers where the co-branded card is accepted. Cardholders who accumulate the requisite number of 
points are issued a $50 certificate award towards the future purchase of ShopNBC merchandise. The certificate award expires after twelve 
months if unredeemed.  

DISCONTINUED FANBUZZ OPERATIONS  

In the second quarter of fiscal 2005, we decided to close our FanBuzz subsidiary operations and finalized the shut down in the third quarter of 
fiscal 2005. FanBuzz, acquired by us in fiscal 2002, was an e-commerce and fulfillment solutions provider for a number of sports, media, 
entertainment and retail companies. The decision to shut down FanBuzz was made after continued operating losses were experienced following 
the loss of its National Hockey League contract in September 2004 and after a number of other FanBuzz customers notified us in the first 
quarter of fiscal 2005 that they elected not to renew the term of their e-commerce services agreements. FanBuzz ceased business operations as 
of October 29, 2005. The results of operations for FanBuzz have been classified as discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated 
statements of operations for all periods presented. See Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.  
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ASSET IMPAIRMENTS AND EMPLOYEE TERMINATION COSTS  

During the first quarter of fiscal 2005, we recorded a non-cash impairment loss of $400,000 after receiving notice from a number of FanBuzz 
customers who either elected not to renew the terms of their e-commerce services agreements or decided to terminate their agreements as 
permitted under the agreements. The impairment charge is included in loss from discontinued operations in the accompanying fiscal 2005 
consolidated statement of operations. During fiscal 2005, we also recorded an additional $979,000 charge and established a related accrual 
primarily in connection with the downsizing of the FanBuzz operations. The charge consisted primarily of severance pay and related benefit 
costs associated with the elimination of approximately 25 positions. Of this charge, $897,000 is included in loss from discontinued operations 
in the accompanying fiscal 2005 consolidated statement of operations.  

In the third quarter of fiscal 2004, we wrote off goodwill attributable to the FanBuzz acquisition as we had determined that the goodwill was 
impaired following FanBuzz's loss of its National Hockey League contract in September 2004. In addition, we also concluded that the book 
value of certain long-lived assets at FanBuzz was significantly higher than their expected future cash flows and that an impairment had 
occurred in accordance with SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets." Accordingly, we recorded a 
non-cash impairment loss and related charge of $11,302,000 in the third quarter of fiscal 2004. The charges included $9,442,000 of goodwill 
impairment, $1,700,000 of fixed asset and capital expenditure impairment and $160,000 of intangible asset impairment. The impairment is 
included in loss from discontinued operations in the accompanying fiscal 2004 consolidated statement of operations. In addition, in the fourth 
quarter of fiscal 2004, we recorded an asset impairment charge of $1,900,000 related to deferred advertising costs in the form of television 
advertising credits with NBC after it was determined that we could no longer effectively use the credits. During the third and fourth quarters of 
fiscal 2004, we also recorded a $3,836,000 charge to earnings in connection with the decision to eliminate a number of positions within our 
company in an effort to streamline the corporate organization and reduce operating expenses. The charges consisted primarily of severance pay 
and related benefit costs associated with the elimination of approximately 30 positions.  

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS  

In December 2005, we completed the sale of our low power television station located in Atlanta, Georgia for a total of $400,000. We recorded 
a pre-tax operating gain on the sale of this low power television station of $294,000 in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005. Management believes 
that the sale of this station did not have a significant impact on our ongoing operations.  

30  



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS  

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, certain statement of continuing operations data expressed as a percentage of net sales.  

 

KEY PERFORMANCE METRICS*  

 

* Includes television home shopping and internet sales only.  
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                                                                            YEAR ENDED 
                                                              ---------------------------------------  
                                                              FEBRUARY 3,   FEBRUARY 4,   JANUARY 31,  
                                                                 2007          2006          2005 
                                                              -----------   -----------   -----------  
NET SALES.......................................... .........     100.0%        100.0%        100.0% 
                                                                 =====         =====         ===== 
Sales margin....................................... .........      34.8%         34.5%         32.7% 
                                                                 -----         -----         ----- 
OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Distribution and selling........................... .........      29.5%         30.7%         32.6% 
General and administrative......................... .........       3.6%          3.6%          3.3% 
Depreciation and amortization...................... .........       2.9%          2.9%          3.0% 
Asset impairments.................................. .........        --            --           0.3% 
Employee termination costs......................... .........        --            --           0.6% 
                                                                 -----         -----         ----- 
  Total operating expenses......................... .........      36.0%         37.2%         39.8% 
                                                                 -----         -----         ----- 
OPERATING LOSS..................................... .........      (1.2)%        (2.7)%        (7.1)% 
Other income, net.................................. .........       0.5%          0.4%          0.3% 
                                                                 -----         -----         ----- 
LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND 
  EQUITY IN NET INCOME OF AFFILIATES............... .........      (0.7)%        (2.3)%        (6.8)% 
Income taxes....................................... .........        --           0.1%           -- 
Equity in net income of affiliates................. .........       0.4%          0.2%           -- 
                                                                 -----         -----         ----- 
LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS.................... .........      (0.3)%        (2.0)%        (6.8)% 
                                                                 =====         =====         ===== 

                                                             FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED 
                                              ----- --------------------------------------------------- -  
                                              FEBRU ARY 3,     %      FEBRUARY 4,     %      JANUARY 31 ,  
                                                 20 07       CHANGE      2006       CHANGE      2005 
                                              ----- ------   ------   -----------   ------   ---------- -  
PROGRAM DISTRIBUTION 
  Cable FTE's...............................     39 ,288       4%        37,822        4%       36,351 
  Satellite FTE's...........................     25 ,923       8%        24,088       13%       21,312 
                                               ---- ----       --      --------       --      -------- 
Total FTEs (Average 000's)..................     65 ,211       5%        61,910        7%       57,663 
Net Sales per FTE (Annualized)..............   $  1 1.58       5%      $  10.99        3%     $  10.66 
CUSTOMER METRICS 
Active Customers -- 12 month rolling........    845 ,564       5%       803,607        7%      754,198 
% New Customers -- 12 month rolling.........         53%                    56%                    57%  
% Retained Customers -- 12 month rolling....         47%                    44%                    43%  
Customer Penetration -- 12 month rolling....        1.3%                   1.3%                   1.3%  
PRODUCT MIX 
     Jewelry................................         39%                    43%                    49%  
     Watches Apparel, Health & Beauty.......         24%                    21%                    20%  
     Home and All Other.....................         37%                    36%                    31%  
Shipped Units (000's).......................      4 ,989       1%         4,942       (1)%       5,004 
Average Selling Price -- Shipped Units......   $    211       8%      $    196        9%     $    179 



PROGRAM DISTRIBUTION  

Our television home shopping program was available to approximately 65.2 million average full time equivalent, or FTE, households for the 
twelve months ended February 3, 2007, approximately 61.9 million average FTE households for the twelve months ended February 4, 2006 
and approximately 57.7 million average FTE households for the twelve months ended January 31, 2005. Average FTE subscribers grew 5% in 
fiscal 2006, resulting in a 3.3 million increase in average FTE's compared to fiscal 2005. Average FTE subscribers grew 7% in fiscal 2005, 
resulting in a 4.2 million increase in average FTE's compared to fiscal 2004. The annual increases were driven by continued strong growth in 
satellite distribution of our programming and increased distribution of our programming on digital cable. We anticipate that our cable 
programming distribution will increasingly shift towards a greater mix of digital as opposed to analog cable tiers, both through growth of the 
number of digital subscribers and through cable system operators moving programming that is carried on analog channels over to digital 
channels. Because of the broader universe of programming choices available for viewers in digital systems and the higher channel placements 
commonly associated with digital tiers, the shift towards digital systems may adversely impact our ability to compete for television viewers. 
Our television home shopping programming is also simulcast live 24 hours a day, 7 days a week through our internet shopping website, 
www.shopnbc.com, which is not included in total FTE households.  

NET SALES PER FTE  

Net sales per FTE for fiscal 2006 increased 5%, or $0.59, per FTE compared to fiscal 2005. Net sales per FTE for fiscal 2005 increased 3%, or 
$0.33, per FTE compared to fiscal 2004. The increases in fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 net sales per FTE were largely the result of strong 
television home shopping and internet net sales growth over each previous fiscal year, primarily in the first three quarters of fiscal 2006 and in 
the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2005. Net sales per FTE was significantly impacted in fiscal 2004 as a result of a number of factors 
including the loss of a number of experienced television hosts, the effect of several severe hurricanes that impacted areas of the East Coast 
during the year and a soft retail environment. In addition, home shopping net sales growth was unfavorably affected during the second half of 
fiscal 2004 due to a number of high profile television-covered special events that competed with the viewership of our programming, including 
the 2004 Summer Olympics and the 2004 presidential election. Consistent with industry practice, we include internet sales along with 
television sales in our calculation of net sales per FTE.  

CUSTOMERS  

During fiscal 2006, we added 41,957 active customers, a 5% increase over fiscal 2005. During fiscal 2005, we added 49,409 active customers, 
a 7% increase over fiscal 2004. The increase in active customers resulted from the increase in household distribution, product diversification 
efforts and increases in marketing and promotional efforts aimed at attracting new customers.  

CUSTOMER PENETRATION  

Customer penetration measures the total number of customers who purchased from us over the past twelve months divided by our average 
FTE's for that same period. This measure was 1.3% for each of fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004. We include in our customer penetration 
calculations all of our customers during the applicable time period, whether they became customers as a result of our television programming, 
through direct-mail campaigns, or through our e-commerce marketing efforts.  

MERCHANDISE MIX  

During fiscal 2006, jewelry net sales decreased from 43% of total television and internet net sales to 39% as compared to fiscal 2005. Net sales 
from home products, including electronic categories, increased to 37% of total television home shopping and internet net sales from 36% as 
compared to fiscal 2005 and net sales from watches, apparel and health and beauty product categories increased to 24% of total television home 
shopping and internet net sales from 21% as compared to fiscal 2005. During fiscal 2005, jewelry net sales decreased from 49% of total 
television home shopping and internet net sales to 43% as compared to fiscal 2004. Net sales  
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from home products, including electronic categories, increased to 36% of total television home shopping and internet net sales from 31% as 
compared to fiscal 2004 and net sales from watches, apparel and health and beauty product categories increased to 21% of total television home 
shopping and internet net sales from 20% as compared to fiscal 2004. Our merchandise mix over the past several years has been moving away 
from our historical reliance on jewelry and computers to a broader mix that also includes apparel, watches, health and beauty, fitness, home and 
other electronic product lines. Going forward, we will be adjusting our merchandise mix as needed in response to both customer demand and in 
order to maximize gross dollars per hour in our television home shopping and internet operations. Net sales from home products, including 
electronic product categories, increased as a percentage of total television home shopping and internet net sales during fiscal 2006 and fiscal 
2005 primarily due to increased sales associated with consumer electronics.  

SHIPPED UNITS  

The number of units shipped during fiscal 2006 increased 1% from fiscal 2005 to 4,989,000 from 4,942,000. The number of units shipped 
during fiscal 2005 decreased 1% from fiscal 2004 to 4,942,000 from 5,004,000. The increase in shipped units during fiscal 2006 was due 
primarily to the overall increase in net sales over fiscal 2005. The decrease in shipped units during fiscal 2005 was due primarily to a shift in 
the product mix in the first half of fiscal 2005 to higher priced merchandise in the home and electronics categories driven primarily by sales of 
consumer electronics.  

AVERAGE SELLING PRICE  

Our average selling price, or ASP, per unit was $211 in fiscal 2006, an 8% increase over fiscal 2005. The increase in the ASP in fiscal 2006 
was driven by increases in price points associated primarily with watches, electronics and apparel merchandise categories, in addition to the 
mix shift towards higher priced electronics and home merchandise categories. For fiscal 2005, the average per unit selling price was $196, a 
9% increase over fiscal 2004. The increase in average selling price in fiscal 2005 was driven by increases in price points associated with gold, 
silver, apparel and home merchandise categories as well as a shift in merchandise mix from jewelry to sales of home products, particularly 
consumer electronics, which have higher average selling prices.  

SALES  

Consolidated net sales from continuing operations, inclusive of shipping and handling revenue, for fiscal 2006 were $767,275,000 compared to 
$691,851,000 for fiscal 2005, an 11% increase. The increase in consolidated net sales from continuing operations was directly attributable to 
continued improvement in net sales from our television home shopping and internet operations. Net sales attributed to our television home 
shopping and internet operations increased 11% to $755,302,000 for fiscal 2006 from $680,592,000 for fiscal 2005. The growth in television 
home shopping and internet net sales during fiscal 2006 is primarily attributable to increased merchandise sales driven by the growth in the 
number of homes receiving our television programming, higher productivity from existing homes due to increased sales per hour results 
achieved in the jewelry, watches, apparel and electronics merchandise categories and a 26% increase, or $38,072,000, in internet net sales over 
fiscal 2005. In addition, television and internet net sales increased due to increased shipping and handling revenue resulting from increased 
sales during fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005. We intend to continue to develop our merchandising and programming strategies and increase 
marketing spending with the goal of improving our television home shopping and internet sales results. While we are optimistic that television 
home shopping and internet sales results will continue to improve, there can be no assurance that our sales strategy will achieve the intended 
results.  

Consolidated net sales from continuing operations, inclusive of shipping and handling revenue, for fiscal 2005 were $691,851,000 compared to 
$623,634,000 for fiscal 2004, an 11% increase. The increase in consolidated net sales from continuing operations was directly attributable to 
continued improvement in net sales from our television home shopping and internet operations. Net sales attributed to our television home 
shopping and internet operations increased 11% to $680,592,000 for fiscal 2005 from $614,884,000 for fiscal 2004. The growth in the 
television home shopping and internet net sales is primarily attributable to increased  
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merchandise sales driven by growth in the number of homes receiving our television programming and higher productivity from existing 
homes due to increased sales per hour results achieved in all major merchandise categories. In addition, television home shopping and internet 
net sales increased due to increased shipping and handling revenue as a result of fewer shipping promotions in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 
2004. The average number of FTE subscriber homes was 61.9 million for fiscal 2005 and 57.7 million for fiscal 2004, a 7% increase. In 
addition to new FTE subscriber homes, television home shopping and internet net sales increased due to the continued addition of new 
customers from households already receiving our television home shopping programming and a 15% increase, or $19,375,000, in internet net 
sales over fiscal 2004.  

We record a reserve as a reduction of gross sales for anticipated product returns at each month-end based upon historical product return 
experience. The return rates for our television home shopping and internet operations have been approximately 32% to 33% over the past three 
fiscal years and have remained relatively stable. We continue to manage return rates and are adjusting average selling price points and product 
mix in an effort to reduce the overall return rate related to our television home shopping and internet businesses.  

NET SALES LESS COST OF SALES (EXCLUSIVE OF DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION)  

Net sales less cost of sales (excluding depreciation and amortization), or sales margin, from continuing operations for fiscal 2006 and 2005 was 
$267,161,000 and $238,944,000, respectively, an increase of $28,217,000, or 12%. This increase is directly attributable to increased sales 
volume from our television home shopping and internet businesses. We define sales margin as net sales less cost of sales (exclusive of 
depreciation and amortization). Sales margin for fiscal 2006 was 34.8% compared to 34.5% for fiscal 2005. The sales margin improvement for 
fiscal 2006 over fiscal 2005 was primarily due to the achievement of higher merchandise margins on television and internet merchandise in 
primarily the jewelry, watches, electronics and apparel product categories and as a result of decreased inventory obsolescence and lower 
promotional discounting as a percentage of total net sales. Sales margin may not be comparable to those of other retailers, since some retailers 
include all of the costs related to their product distribution network in cost of sales, including depreciation and amortization, while others, 
including us, exclude a portion of these costs from sales margin, including them instead as either a component of distribution and selling 
expense or as a separate component of operating expenses.  

Net sales less cost of sales (exclusive of depreciation and amortization) from continuing operations for fiscal 2005 and 2004 was $238,944,000 
and $204,096,000, respectively, an increase of $34,848,000, or 17%. The increase is directly attributable to increased sales volume from our 
television home shopping and internet businesses and increases in sales margins on shipping and handling revenues. Sales margins for fiscal 
2005 were 34.5% compared to 32.7% for fiscal 2004. Sales margin for fiscal 2005 increased 1.8 percentage points as compared to gross 
margins of fiscal 2004 primarily due to increases in television home shopping and internet shipping and handling margins of approximately 
1.4%, as well as the achievement of higher merchandise margins during fiscal 2005. These increases reflect the negative impact of our fiscal 
2004 free shipping loyalty club which launched in February 2004, and lower promotional discounting during fiscal 2005. In addition, sales 
margin also improved overall due to the achievement of higher merchandise margins in substantially all major product categories, which was 
offset by a product mix shift that included greater sales in lower margin electronic product categories during fiscal 2005.  

Management views net sales less cost of sales (exclusive of depreciation and amortization), or sales margin, as an alternative operating measure 
because it is commonly used by management, analysts and institutional investors in analyzing the profitability of our company. This term is 
considered a non-GAAP measure. The comparable GAAP measurement is gross profit, which is defined as net sales less cost of sales 
(inclusive of depreciation and amortization). Our gross profit from continuing operations for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 is $244.9 million, 
$218.4 million and $185.2 million, respectively. The percentage change year over year under either measure is relatively consistent.  
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OPERATING EXPENSES  

Total operating expenses from continuing operations were $276,640,000, $257,590,000 and $248,367,000 for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, 
respectively, representing an increase of $19,050,000, or 7%, from fiscal 2005 to fiscal 2006, and an increase of $9,223,000, or 4%, from fiscal 
2004 to fiscal 2005. Fiscal 2005 total operating expenses included a charge of $82,000 recorded in connection with employee terminations and 
a $294,000 gain recorded in connection with the sale of our remaining low power television station, which reduced total operating expenses in 
fiscal 2005. Fiscal 2004 total operating expenses included a $1,900,000 non-cash charge relating to a fourth quarter write down of television 
advertising credits and a charge of $3,836,000 recorded in connection with management's decision to eliminate a number of positions within 
our company.  

Distribution and selling expense for fiscal 2006 increased $14,081,000, or 7%, to $226,450,000, or 30% of net sales compared to 
$212,369,000, or 31% of net sales in fiscal 2005. Distribution and selling expense increased over fiscal 2005 primarily due to an increase in 
salaries, accrued bonuses and related personnel costs associated with hiring and retaining primarily merchandising, television production and 
show management personnel and on-air talent of $3,452,000 during fiscal 2006; increased credit card and net collection fees of $3,430,000 due 
to the overall increase in net sales; increased internet and direct-mail and marketing expenses of $3,490,000 as we attempt to acquire additional 
customers and increase our overall penetration; increased telemarketing and customer service costs of $3,463,000 associated with increased 
sales volumes and our commitment to improve our customer service; a $724,000 contract buyout fee relating to our legacy private label credit 
card agreement and increased share-based compensation expense of $778,000. These increases were offset by a decrease in net cable and 
satellite access fees of $888,000.  

Distribution and selling expense for fiscal 2005 increased $9,210,000, or 5%, to $212,369,000, or 31% of net sales compared to $203,159,000, 
or 33% of net sales in fiscal 2004. Distribution and selling expense increased primarily as a result of increases in net cable access fees of 
$5,423,000 due to a 7% increase in the number of average FTE subscribers over the prior year, increased costs associated with hiring and 
retaining merchandising and show management personnel and on-air talent of $4,460,000 during fiscal 2005 and increased credit card fees of 
$1,282,000 due to an overall decline in net sales made using the ShopNBC credit card, which generally carries lower fees. These increases 
were offset by selling and distribution expense decreases associated with decreased satellite rental fees of $825,000 and a prior year 
merchandising software write-off totaling $868,000.  

General and administration expense for fiscal 2006 increased $3,058,000, or 12%, to $27,922,000, or 4% of net sales from continuing 
operations, compared to $24,864,000, or 4% of net sales from continuing operations in fiscal 2005. General and administrative expense 
increased over fiscal 2005 primarily as a result of compensation recorded related to share-based payments of $778,000, increased salaries, 
accrued bonuses, and related personnel costs of $2,982,000, information systems service fees of $402,000 and director stock-based 
compensation of $273,000, offset by decreased legal fees of $660,000 and proceeds received from a litigation settlement totaling $300,000.  

General and administration expense for fiscal 2005 increased $4,312,000, or 21%, to $24,864,000, or 4% of net sales from continuing 
operations, compared to $20,552,000, or 3% of net sales from continuing operations in fiscal 2004. General and administrative expense 
increased over fiscal 2004 primarily as a result of increased information system personnel salaries and consulting fees and software 
maintenance fees of $2,069,000, increased accrued bonuses of $1,941,000 and increased legal fees of $491,000.  

Depreciation and amortization expense was $22,239,000, $20,569,000 and $18,920,000 for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, 
representing an increase of $1,670,000, or 8%, from fiscal 2005 to fiscal 2006 and an increase of $1,649,000, or 9%, from fiscal 2004 to fiscal 
2005. Depreciation and amortization expense as a percentage of net sales was 3% for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004. The dollar increases 
experienced during fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 are primarily due to increased depreciation and amortization as a result of assets places in 
service in connection with our various application software development and functionality enhancements.  
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OPERATING LOSS  

We reported an operating loss from continuing operations of $9,479,000 for fiscal 2006 compared with an operating loss from continuing 
operations of $18,646,000 for fiscal 2005, an improvement of $9,167,000. Our operating loss for fiscal 2006 improved from fiscal 2005 
primarily as a result of our increase in sales margin as described above under "Net sales less cost of sales (exclusive of depreciation and 
depreciation)." Offsetting the increase in sales margin over fiscal 2005 were increases in distribution and selling expenses, particularly (i) 
additional personnel costs associated with merchandising, television production, show management and on-air talent, (ii) internet, direct-mail 
and marketing expenses, (iii) credit card fees and bad debt expense,  
(iv) increases in general and administrative expenses recorded in connection with salaries, accrued bonuses and information system service 
fees, and (v) increases in depreciation and amortization expense as a result of assets placed in service in connection with our various 
application software development and functionality enhancements, the details of which are discussed above. In addition, operating expenses 
increased over the prior year due to the recording of noncash stock option expense totaling $1,556,000 resulting from our adoption of SFAS 
No. 123(R) in the first quarter of fiscal 2006.  

We reported an operating loss from continuing operations of $18,646,000 for fiscal 2005 compared with an operating loss from continuing 
operations of $44,271,000 for fiscal 2004, an improvement of $25,625,000. Operating loss for fiscal 2005 improved from fiscal 2004 primarily 
as a result of our increase in sales margin as described above under "Net sales less cost of sales (exclusive of depreciation and depreciation)." 
Offsetting the increase in sales margin over fiscal 2004 were increases in distribution and selling expenses, particularly  
(i) net cable access fees, (ii) additional costs associated with merchandising, show and on-air talent and credit card fees, (iii) increases in 
general and administrative expenses recorded in connection with information system personnel salaries, consulting fees and software 
maintenance fees, and (iv) increases in depreciation and amortization expense as a result of assets placed in service in connection with our 
various application software development and functionality enhancements. These expense increases were offset by the recording of a $294,000 
pre-tax gain following the sale of a low power television station in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005.  

NET LOSS  

For fiscal 2006, we reported a net loss available to common shareholders of $2,685,000, or $0.07 per basic and diluted share, on 37,646,000 
weighted average common shares outstanding. For fiscal 2005, we reported a net loss available to common shareholders of $16,040,000, or 
$0.43 per basic and diluted share, on 37,182,000 weighted average common shares outstanding. For fiscal 2004, we reported a net loss 
available to common shareholders of $57,886,000, or $1.57 per basic and diluted share, on 36,815,000 weighted average common shares 
outstanding. Net loss available to common shareholders for fiscal 2006 includes the recording of $3,006,000 of equity in earnings from RLM, a 
$500,000 gain on the sale of an investment, a $150,000 write-down of a non-operating real estate asset held for sale, and interest income 
totaling $3,802,000 earned on our cash and short-term investments. Net loss available to common shareholders for fiscal 2005 includes a net 
loss of $2,296,000 from discontinued operations, a $250,000 cash dividend received from RLM, a $256,000 write-down of a non-operating real 
estate asset held for sale, the recording of $1,383,000 of equity in earnings of RLM, a $762,000 income tax benefit, and interest income totaling 
$3,048,000 earned on our cash and short-term investments. Net loss available to common shareholders for fiscal 2004 includes a net loss of 
$14,882,000 from discontinued operations, a $250,000 cash dividend received from RLM, a $300,000 write-down of a non-operating real 
estate asset held for sale, and interest income of $1,627,000 earned on our cash and short-term investments.  

For fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, net loss reflects an income tax benefit (provision) of $(75,000), $762,000 and $(25,000), respectively, which 
resulted in a recorded effective tax rate of 3.2% in fiscal 2006, 4.9% in fiscal 2005 and 0% in fiscal 2004. We have recorded an income tax 
provision during fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 relating to state income taxes payable on certain income for which there is no loss 
carryforward benefit available. We recorded an income tax benefit of $832,000 in the second quarter of fiscal 2005 related to the reversal of an 
income tax contingency reserve that expired in the quarter and was no longer required. We have not recorded any other income tax benefit on 
the losses recorded during fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004  
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due to the uncertainty of realizing income tax benefits in the future as indicated by our recording of an income tax valuation reserve. Based on 
our recent history of losses, a full valuation allowance has been recorded and was calculated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 
109, which places primary importance on our most recent operating results when assessing the need for a valuation allowance. Although 
management believes that our recent operating losses were heavily affected by the attendant fixed costs associated with a significant expansion 
of cable homes, a challenging retail economic environment and a slowdown in consumer spending experienced by us and other merchandise 
retailers, we intend to maintain a full valuation allowance for our net deferred tax assets and net operating loss carryforwards until such point 
that we believe it is more likely than not that such assets will be realized in the future.  

QUARTERLY RESULTS  

The following summarized unaudited results of operations for the quarters in fiscal 2006 and 2005 have been prepared on the same basis as the 
annual financial statements and reflect adjustments (consisting of normal recurring adjustments) that we consider necessary for a fair 
presentation of results of operations for the periods presented. Our results of operations have varied and may continue to fluctuate significantly 
from quarter to quarter. Results of operations in any period should not be considered indicative of the results to be expected for any future 
period.  
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                                    FIRST      SECO ND       THIRD      FOURTH 
                                   QUARTER     QUAR TER     QUARTER     QUARTER      TOTAL 
                                  ---------   ----- ----   ---------   ---------   ---------  
                                  (IN THOUSANDS, EX CEPT PERCENTAGES AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS) 
FISCAL 2006: 
Net sales.......................  $178,724    $186, 982    $184,886    $216,683    $767,275 
Net sales less cost of sales 
  (exclusive of depreciation and 
  amortization).................    63,202      65, 227      63,575      75,157     267,161 
Sales margin....................      35.4%       3 4.9%       34.4%       34.7%       34.8%  
Operating expenses..............    67,120      67, 923      68,322      73,275     276,640 
Operating income (loss).........    (3,918)     (2, 696)     (4,747)      1,882      (9,479)  
Other income, net...............     1,296       1, 015         990         851       4,152 
Income (loss) from continuing 
  operations....................    (2,091)       ( 696)     (3,126)      3,517      (2,396)  
Net income (loss)...............  $ (2,091)   $   ( 696)   $ (3,126)   $  3,517    $ (2,396)  
                                  ========    ===== ===    ========    ========    ======== 
Net income (loss) per share.....  $   (.06)   $   ( .02)   $   (.09)   $    .09    $   (.07)  
                                  ========    ===== ===    ========    ========    ======== 
Net income (loss) per share -- 
  assuming dilution.............  $   (.06)   $   ( .02)   $   (.09)   $    .08    $   (.07)  
                                  ========    ===== ===    ========    ========    ======== 
Weighted average shares 
  outstanding: 
  Basic.........................    37,679      37, 736      37,628      37,484      37,646 
                                  ========    ===== ===    ========    ========    ======== 
  Diluted.......................    37,679      37, 736      37,628      42,861      37,646 
                                  ========    ===== ===    ========    ========    ======== 
FISCAL 2005: 
Net sales.......................  $153,476    $169, 492    $159,513    $209,370    $691,851 
Net sales less cost of sales 
  (exclusive of depreciation and 
  amortization).................    51,298      59, 694      54,487      73,465     238,944 
Sales margin....................      33.4%       3 5.2%       34.2%       35.1%       34.5%  
Operating expenses..............    61,323      61, 947      62,425      71,895     257,590 
Operating income (loss).........   (10,025)     (2, 253)     (7,938)      1,570     (18,646)  
Other income, net...............       917         487         717         923       3,044 
Income (loss) from continuing 
  operations....................    (9,114)       ( 927)     (6,845)      3,429     (13,457)  
Discontinued operations.........    (1,582)       ( 493)       (221)         --      (2,296)  
Net income (loss)...............  $(10,696)   $ (1, 420)   $ (7,066)   $  3,429    $(15,753)  
                                  ========    ===== ===    ========    ========    ======== 
Net income (loss) per share.....  $   (.29)   $   ( .04)   $   (.19)   $    .09    $   (.43)  
                                  ========    ===== ===    ========    ========    ======== 
Net income (loss) per share -- 
  assuming dilution.............  $   (.29)   $   ( .04)   $   (.19)   $    .08    $   (.43)  
                                  ========    ===== ===    ========    ========    ======== 
Weighted average shares 
  outstanding: 
  Basic.........................    37,077      37, 102      37,120      37,427      37,182 
                                  ========    ===== ===    ========    ========    ======== 
  Diluted.......................    37,077      37, 102      37,120      43,077      37,182 
                                  ========    ===== ===    ========    ========    ======== 



FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCE S  

As of February 3, 2007 and February 4, 2006, cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments were $71,294,000 and $82,350,000, 
respectively, an $11,056,000 decrease. For fiscal 2006 working capital increased $9,962,000 to $155,171,000 compared to working capital of 
$145,209,000 for fiscal 2005. The current ratio was 2.5 at February 3, 2007 compared to 2.4 at February 4, 2006.  

SOURCES OF LIQUIDITY  

Our principal sources of liquidity are our available cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments, accrued interest earned from our short-
term investments and our operating cash flow, which is primarily generated from credit card receipts from sales transactions and the collection 
of outstanding customer accounts receivables. The timing of customer collections made pursuant to our ValuePay installment program and the 
extent to which we extend credit to our customers is important to our short-term liquidity and cash resources. A significant increase in our 
accounts receivable aging or credit losses could negatively impact our source of cash from operations in the short term. While credit losses 
have historically been within our estimates for such losses, there is no guarantee that we will continue to experience the same credit loss rate 
that we have had in the past. Historically, we have also been able to generate additional cash sources from the proceeds of stock option 
exercises and from the sale of equity investments and other properties; however, these sources of cash are neither relied upon nor controllable 
by us. We have no debt other than fixed capital lease obligations and believe we have the ability to obtain additional financing if necessary. At 
February 3, 2007 and February 4, 2006, short-term investments and cash equivalents were invested primarily in money market funds, high 
quality commercial paper with original maturity dates of less than 270 days and investment grade corporate and auction rate securities with 
tender option terms ranging from one month to one year. Although management believes our short-term investment policy is conservative in 
nature, certain short-term investments in commercial paper can be exposed to the credit risk of the underlying companies to which they relate 
and interest earned on these investments is subject to interest rate fluctuations. The maturities and tender option terms within our investment 
portfolio generally range from 30 to 180 days.  

CASH REQUIREMENTS  

Our principal use of cash is to fund our business operations, which consist primarily of purchasing inventory for resale, funding account 
receivables growth in support of sales growth and funding operating expenses, particularly our contractual commitments for cable and satellite 
programming and the funding of capital expenditures. Expenditures made for property and equipment in fiscal 2006 and 2005 and for expected 
future capital expenditures include the upgrade and replacement of computer software and front-end merchandising systems, expansion of 
capacity to support our growing business, continued improvements and modifications to our owned headquarter buildings and the upgrade and 
digitalization of television production and transmission equipment and related computer equipment associated with the expansion of our home 
shopping business and e-commerce initiatives. Historically, we have also used our cash resources for various strategic investments and for the 
repurchase of stock under stock repurchase programs but are under no obligation to continue doing so if protection of liquidity is desired. We 
have authorized a $10 million stock repurchase program and have the discretion to repurchase stock under the program and make strategic 
investments consistent with our business strategy.  

We ended fiscal 2006 with cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments of $71,294,000, and no long-term debt obligations. We expect 
future growth in working capital as revenues grow beyond fiscal 2006 but expect cash generated from operations to partially offset the 
expected use. We believe our existing cash balances and our ability to raise additional financing will be sufficient to fund our obligations and 
commitments as they come due on a long-term basis and sufficient to fund potential foreseeable contingencies. These estimates are subject to 
business risk factors, including those identified under "Risk Factors." In addition to these risk factors, a significant element of uncertainty in 
future cash flows arises from potential strategic investments we may make, which are inherently opportunistic and difficult to predict. We 
believe existing cash balances, our ability to raise financing and the ability to structure transactions in a manner  
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reflective of capital availability will be sufficient to fund any investments while maintaining sufficient liquidity for our normal business 
operations.  

Total assets at February 3, 2007 were $351,980,000 compared to $347,139,000 at February 4, 2006. Shareholders' equity was $198,847,000 at 
February 3, 2007 compared to $202,871,000 at February 4, 2006, a decrease of $4,024,000. The decrease in shareholders' equity from fiscal 
2005 to fiscal 2006 resulted primarily from the net loss of $2,396,000 recorded during the year, common stock repurchases of $4,699,000 and 
accretion on redeemable preferred stock of $289,000. These decreases were offset by increases in shareholders' equity of $1,901,000 related to 
the recording of share-based compensation and $1,459,000 primarily from proceeds received related to the exercise of stock options. The 
decrease in shareholders' equity from fiscal 2004 to fiscal 2005 resulted primarily from the net loss of $15,753,000 recorded during the year 
and accretion on redeemable preferred stock of $287,000. These decreases were offset by increases in shareholders' equity of $1,906,000 
related to the exercise of stock options and vesting of deferred compensation of $190,000. As of February 4, 2006, we had long-term debt 
obligations totaling $130,000 related to assets purchased under capital lease arrangements.  

For fiscal 2006, net cash provided by operating activities totaled $3,542,000 compared to net cash used for operating activities of $10,374,000 
in fiscal 2005 and net cash used for operating activities of $18,070,000 in fiscal 2004. Net cash provided by operating activities for fiscal 2006 
reflects a net loss, as adjusted for depreciation and amortization, share-based payment compensation, common stock issued to employees, 
amortization of deferred revenue, gain on sale of property and investments, asset impairments and write off charges, proceeds from RLM 
dividends and equity in net income of affiliates. In addition, net cash provided by operating activities for fiscal 2006 reflects decreases in 
inventory, prepaid expenses and other assets, an increase in deferred revenue, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, offset by an increase in 
accounts receivable. Inventories decreased primarily as a result of our strong fourth quarter sales activity and management's focused effort to 
reduce overall inventory levels. Prepaid expenses decreased primarily as a result of the timing of prepaid cable access fees. The increase in 
deferred revenue was primarily the result of receiving upfront cash payments in connection with our new private label and co-branded credit 
card program. The increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses is a result of increases associated with accrued salaries, accrued cable 
access and marketing fees, offset primarily by amounts due to customers for returns. Accounts receivable increased primarily due to the overall 
increase in net sales and specifically due to increases in sales made utilizing extended payment terms and the timing of customer collections 
made under our ValuePay installment program.  

Net cash used for operating activities for fiscal 2005 reflects a net loss, as adjusted for depreciation and amortization, common stock issued to 
employees, amortization of deferred compensation, gain on sale of television stations, gain on sale of property and investments, asset 
impairment and write off charges, equity in net income of affiliates, a noncash tax benefit recorded in fiscal 2005 and a gain on the termination 
of a long-term lease associated with FanBuzz. In addition, net cash used for operating activities for fiscal 2005 reflects an increase in 
inventories, accounts receivable and prepaid expenses and other assets, offset by an increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 
Inventories increased primarily in preparation for the fourth quarter anticipated strong holiday season and as a direct result of our effort to 
diversify our product mix offerings. Accounts receivable increased primarily due to an increase in receivables from sales utilizing extended 
payment terms and the timing of customer collections under the ValuePay installment program. Prepaid expenses and other assets increased 
primarily as a result of an increase in prepaid cable access fees due to the timing of payments, an increase in deferred satellite rent, offset by a 
decrease in prepaid postage. The increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities is a direct result of the increase in inventory levels and the 
timing of merchandise receipts. In addition, accounts payable and accrued liabilities increased as a result of the timing of payments made for 
accrued cable access and marketing fees, offset by a decrease in accrued salaries and a decrease in amounts due to customers for returned 
merchandise.  

Net cash used for operating activities for fiscal 2004 reflects a net loss, as adjusted for depreciation and amortization, common stock issued to 
employees, amortization of deferred compensation, loss on sale of property and investments and asset impairment charges recorded in fiscal 
2004. In addition, net cash used for operating activities for fiscal 2004 reflects a decrease in inventories and an increase in accounts payable 
and  
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accrued expenses, offset by an increase in accounts receivable and prepaid expenses and other. Inventories decreased primarily as a result of 
our strong fourth quarter sales activity and management's focused effort to reduce overall inventory levels. The increase in accounts payable 
and accrued expenses is a result of the timing of payments related to long-term cable access fees, accrued severance recorded in connection 
with the third quarter employee terminations and the timing of merchandise receipts. Accounts receivable increased due to an increase in sales 
made utilizing extended payment terms for the ValuePay installment program and increased credit card sales directly resulting from increased 
sales. Prepaid expenses and other increased primarily as a result of our temporary acquisition of a personal residence in conjunction with an 
executive's hiring and relocation, increases in prepaid maintenance and salary contracts, postage and deferred rent offset by a decrease in 
deferred television advertising costs.  

We utilize an installment payment program called ValuePay that entitles customers to purchase merchandise and generally pay for the 
merchandise in two to six equal monthly credit card installments. As of February 3, 2007, we had approximately $105,197,000 due from 
customers under the ValuePay installment program, compared to $77,447,000 at February 4, 2006. The increase in ValuePay receivables from 
fiscal 2005 is primarily the result of increased sales made utilizing extended payment terms and the general increase in overall sales over the 
prior year. ValuePay was introduced many years ago to increase sales and to respond to similar competitive programs while at the same time 
reducing return rates on merchandise with above average selling prices. We record a reserve for uncollectible accounts in our financial 
statements in connection with ValuePay installment sales and intend to continue to sell merchandise using the ValuePay program. Receivables 
generated from the ValuePay program will be funded in fiscal 2007 from our present capital resources and future operating cash flows.  

Net cash used for investing activities totaled $1,562,000 in fiscal 2006, compared to net cash used for investing activities of $10,111,000 in 
fiscal 2005 and net cash used for investing activities of $2,304,000 in fiscal 2004. Expenditures for property and equipment were $11,470,000 
in fiscal 2006 compared to $9,750,000 in fiscal 2005 and $14,722,000 in fiscal 2004. Expenditures for property and equipment during fiscal 
2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 primarily include capital expenditures made for the upgrade and replacement of computer software and front-
end ERP, customer care management and merchandising systems, related computer equipment, digital broadcasting equipment and other office 
equipment, warehouse equipment, production equipment and building improvements. Principal future capital expenditures are expected to 
include the upgrade and replacement of various enterprise software systems, continued improvements and modifications to our owned 
headquarter buildings, the expansion of warehousing capacity, the upgrade and digitalization of television production and transmission 
equipment and related computer equipment associated with the expansion of our home shopping business and e-commerce initiatives. During 
fiscal 2006, we invested $21,627,000 in various short-term investments, received proceeds of $31,035,000 from the sale of short-term 
investments and received proceeds of $500,000 from the sale of an internet investment previously written off.  

During fiscal 2005, we invested $80,454,000 in various short-term investments, received proceeds of $79,193,000 from the sale of short-term 
investments, received proceeds of $400,000 in connection with the sale of a low power television station and received proceeds of $500,000 
from the sale of property and equipment in connection with the shut down of FanBuzz.  

During fiscal 2004, we invested $128,397,000 in various short-term investments, received proceeds of $136,604,000 from the sale of short-
term investments and received proceeds of $4,211,000 in connection with a note receivable from a former officer.  

Net cash used for financing activities totaled $3,627,000 in fiscal 2006 and related primarily to payments made of $4,699,000 in conjunction 
with the repurchase of 406,000 shares of our common stock and payments of long-term lease obligations of $363,000, offset by cash proceeds 
received of $1,435,000 from the exercise of stock options. Net cash provided by financing activities totaled $988,000 in fiscal 2005 and related 
primarily to cash proceeds received of $1,869,000 from the exercise of stock options, offset by payments of long-term capital lease obligations 
of $881,000. Net cash provided by financing activities totaled $1,981,000 in fiscal 2004 and related primarily to cash proceeds received of 
$3,024,000 from the exercise of stock options, offset by payments of long-term capital lease obligations of $1,043,000.  
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CONTRACTUAL CASH OBLIGATIONS AND COMMITMENTS  

The following table summarizes our obligations and commitments as of February 3, 2007, and the effect these obligations and commitments 
are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods:  

 

(a) Future cable and satellite payment commitments are based on subscriber levels as of February 3, 2007 and future payment commitment 
amounts could increase or decrease as the number of cable and satellite subscribers increase or decrease. Under certain circumstances, 
operators may cancel their agreements prior to expiration.  

IMPACT OF INFLATION  

We believe that inflation has not had a material impact on our results of operations for each of the fiscal years in the three-year period ended 
February 3, 2007. We cannot assure you that inflation will not have an adverse impact on our operating results and financial condition in future 
periods.  

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS  

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159 "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities" ("SFAS No. 159"). 
This statement permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. The provisions of SFAS 
No. 159 are effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We are currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of SFAS No. 
159 will have on our consolidated results of operations and financial condition.  

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements" ("SFAS No. 157"), to establish a consistent framework for 
measuring fair value and expand disclosures on fair value measurements. The provisions of SFAS No. 157 are effective for fiscal years 
beginning after November 15, 2007. We are currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on our consolidated 
results of operations and financial condition.  

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 ("FIN 48"), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes -- An interpretation of 
FASB Statement No. 109. FIN 48 prescribes a comprehensive model for recognizing, measuring, presenting and disclosing in the financial 
statements tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return, including a decision whether to file or not to file a tax return in a 
particular jurisdiction. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. If there are changes in net assets as a result of the 
application of FIN 48, these will be accounted for as an adjustment to retained earnings. We are currently assessing the impact of FIN 48 on 
our consolidated results of operations and financial position.  

SUBSEQUENT EVENT  

On March 26, 2007, our wholly-owned subsidiary VVIFC and RLM entered into a rider to the existing agreement for services (as amended) 
under which VVIFC provides RLM with fulfillment and certain customer support services. The term of the agreement for services, as amended 
in October 2006, extends through August 2008. Pursuant to the terms of the rider, VVIFC and RLM further agreed to certain changes  
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                                               PAYM ENTS DUE BY PERIOD (IN THOUSANDS) 
                                   ---------------- ----------------------------------------------  
                                              LESS THAN                                 MORE THAN  
                                    TOTAL      1 YE AR      1-3 YEARS      3-5 YEARS      5 YEARS 
                                   --------   ----- ----   ------------   ------------   ---------  
Cable and satellite 
  agreements(a)..................  $344,762   $110, 118      $139,689       $66,672       $28,283 
Employment agreements............     5,034      3, 822         1,212            --            -- 
Operating leases.................    22,898      2, 387         4,164         4,029        12,318 
Capital leases...................       141        141            --            --            -- 
Purchase order obligations.......    48,875     48, 875            --            --            -- 
                                   --------   ----- ---      --------       -------       ------- 
  Total..........................  $421,710   $165, 343      $145,065       $70,701       $40,601 
                                   ========   ===== ===      ========       =======       ======= 



to the agreement for services (as amended), including VVIFC's agreement to extend the term of the agreement through mid-2009 if so 
requested by RLM.  

On March 28, 2007, we entered into a membership interest purchase agreement with Polo Ralph Lauren, NBC and certain NBC affiliates, 
pursuant to which we sold our 12.5% membership interest in RLM to Polo Ralph Lauren for an aggregate purchase price of $43,750,000. The 
full text of the purchase agreement is attached as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 3, 2007.  

Concurrently with the execution of the purchase agreement, we also entered into an amendment to the license agreement (for the limited, 
worldwide use of NBC trademarks, service marks, domain names and logos), under which NBC agreed to extend the term of the license 
agreement to May 15, 2011 and to certain limitations on NBC's right to terminate the license agreement in the event of a change in control of 
our company involving a financial buyer. On the same date, we also entered into an amendment to the distribution agreement with NBC 
providing for a reduction in the annual affiliate relations and marketing fee paid by us to NBC to a market rate.  

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK  

We do not enter into financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes and do not currently utilize derivative financial instruments as a 
hedge to offset market risk. We have held certain equity investments in the form of common stock purchase warrants in public companies and 
accounted for these investments in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 133. We currently do not have investments in the form of 
common stock purchase warrants. Our operations are conducted primarily in the United States and as such are not subject to foreign currency 
exchange rate risk. However, some of our products are sourced internationally and may fluctuate in cost as a result of foreign currency swings. 
We have no long-term debt other than fixed capital lease obligations, and accordingly, are not significantly exposed to interest rate risk, 
although changes in market interest rates do impact the level of interest income earned on our substantial cash and short-term investment 
portfolio.  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors ValueVision Media, Inc. and Subsidiaries  

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of ValueVision Media, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the "Company") as of February 
3, 2007 and February 4, 2006 and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders' equity and cash flows for each of the years 
ended February 3, 2007, February 4, 2006 and January 31, 2005. Our audits also included Schedule II: Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for 
the years ended February 3, 2007, February 4, 2006 and January 31, 2005, included in Item 15. These consolidated financial statements and 
financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
consolidated financial statements and the financial statement schedule based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free 
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of ValueVision 
Media, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of February 3, 2007 and February 4, 2006, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the 
years ended February 3, 2007, February 4, 2006 and January 31, 2005 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the February 3, 2007, February 4, 2006 and January 31, 2005 financial statement schedules, 
when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly in all material respects the 
information set forth therein.  

As discussed in Note 2 and Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements, in fiscal 2006 the Company changed its method of accounting for 
stock-based compensation.  

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness 
of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control -- Integrated 
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report dated April 11, 2007, 
expressed an unqualified opinion on management's assessment of the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting 
and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting.  
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                                          /s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP 
 
April 11, 2007 



VALUEVISION MEDIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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                                                              FEBRUARY 3,    FEBRUARY 4, 
                                                                  2007           2006 
                                                              ------------   ------------  
                                                              (IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE  
                                                                  AND PER SHARE DATA) 
                                         ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS: 
  Cash and cash equivalents........................ .........   $  41,496      $  43,143 
  Short-term investments........................... .........      29,798         39,207 
  Accounts receivable, net......................... .........     117,169         87,478 
  Inventories...................................... .........      66,622         67,844 
  Prepaid expenses and other....................... .........       5,360          8,357 
                                                               ---------      --------- 
     Total current assets.......................... .........     260,445        246,029 
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET........................ .........      40,107         46,958 
FCC BROADCASTING LICENSE........................... .........      31,943         31,943 
NBC TRADEMARK LICENSE AGREEMENT, NET............... .........      12,234         15,461 
CABLE DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING AGREEMENT, NET.... .........       1,759          2,654 
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS....................... .........       5,492          4,094 
                                                               ---------      --------- 
                                                               $ 351,980      $ 347,139 
                                                               =========      ========= 
 
                          LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLD ERS' EQUITY 
CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
  Accounts payable................................. .........   $  57,196      $  60,597 
  Accrued liabilities.............................. .........      47,709         40,223 
  Deferred revenue................................. .........         369             -- 
                                                               ---------      --------- 
     Total current liabilities..................... .........     105,274        100,820 
OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS........................ .........       2,553            130 
DEFERRED REVENUE................................... .........       1,699             -- 
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 8 and 9) 
SERIES A REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK, $.01 PAR 
  VALUE, 5,339,500 SHARES AUTHORIZED; 5,339,500 SHA RES 
  ISSUED AND OUTSTANDING........................... .........      43,607         43,318 
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY: 
  Common stock, $.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares 
     authorized; 37,593,768 and 37,643,676 shares i ssued and 
     outstanding................................... .........         376            376 
  Warrants to purchase 4,036,858 and 6,380,583 shar es of 
     common stock.................................. .........      22,972         34,029 
  Additional paid-in capital....................... .........     287,541        278,266 
  Deferred compensation............................ .........          --           (154) 
  Accumulated deficit.............................. .........    (112,042)      (109,646) 
                                                               ---------      --------- 
     Total shareholders' equity.................... .........     198,847        202,871 
                                                               ---------      --------- 
                                                               $ 351,980      $ 347,139 
                                                               =========      ========= 



VALUEVISION MEDIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS  

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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                                                                      FOR THE YEARS ENDED 
                                                        ---------------------------------------------- --  
                                                         FEBRUARY 3,      FEBRUARY 4,      JANUARY 31,  
                                                             2007             2006             2005 
                                                        --------------   --------------   ------------ --  
                                                        (IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE DATA ) 
NET SALES.......................................... ...   $   767,275      $   691,851      $   623,634  
COST OF SALES (exclusive of depreciation and 
  amortization shown below)........................ ...       500,114          452,907          419,538  
OPERATING (INCOME) EXPENSES: 
  Distribution and selling......................... ...       226,450          212,369          203,159  
  General and administrative....................... ...        27,922           24,864           20,552  
  Depreciation and amortization.................... ...        22,239           20,569           18,920  
  Asset impairments................................ ...            29               --            1,900  
  Employee termination costs....................... ...            --               82            3,836  
  Gain on sale of television station............... ...            --             (294)              --  
                                                         -----------      -----------      -----------  
     Total operating expenses...................... ...       276,640          257,590          248,367  
                                                         -----------      -----------      -----------  
OPERATING LOSS..................................... ...        (9,479)         (18,646)         (44,271 ) 
                                                         -----------      -----------      -----------  
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE): 
  Other............................................ ...           350               (4)             (50 ) 
  Interest income.................................. ...         3,802            3,048            1,627  
                                                         -----------      -----------      -----------  
     Total other income (expense).................. ...         4,152            3,044            1,577  
                                                         -----------      -----------      -----------  
LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME TAXES 
  AND EQUITY IN NET INCOME OF AFFILIATES........... ...        (5,327)         (15,602)         (42,694 ) 
  Income tax benefit (provision)................... ...           (75)             762              (25 ) 
  Equity in net income of affiliates............... ...         3,006            1,383               --  
                                                         -----------      -----------      -----------  
LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS.................... ...        (2,396)         (13,457)         (42,719 ) 
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS: 
  Loss from discontinued FanBuzz operations, net of  
     tax........................................... ...            --           (2,296)         (14,882 ) 
                                                         -----------      -----------      -----------  
NET LOSS........................................... ...        (2,396)         (15,753)         (57,601 ) 
ACCRETION OF REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK............ ...          (289)            (287)            (285 ) 
                                                         -----------      -----------      -----------  
NET LOSS AVAILABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS.......... ...   $    (2,685)     $   (16,040)     $   (57,886 ) 
                                                         ===========      ===========      ===========  
NET LOSS PER COMMON SHARE: 
  Continuing operations............................ ...   $     (0.07)     $     (0.37)     $     (1.17 ) 
  Discontinued operations.......................... ...            --            (0.06)           (0.40 ) 
                                                         -----------      -----------      -----------  
     Net loss...................................... ...   $     (0.07)     $     (0.43)     $     (1.57 ) 
                                                         ===========      ===========      ===========  
NET LOSS PER COMMON SHARE -- ASSUMING DILUTION: 
  Continuing operations............................ ...   $     (0.07)     $     (0.37)     $     (1.17 ) 
  Discontinued operations.......................... ...            --            (0.06)           (0.40 ) 
                                                         -----------      -----------      -----------  
     Net loss...................................... ...   $     (0.07)     $     (0.43)     $     (1.57 ) 
                                                         ===========      ===========      ===========  
Weighted average number of common shares outstandin g: 
  Basic............................................ ...    37,646,162       37,181,717       36,815,044  
                                                         ===========      ===========      ===========  
  Diluted.......................................... ...    37,646,162       37,181,717       36,815,044  
                                                         ===========      ===========      ===========  



VALUEVISION MEDIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 3, 2007, FEBRUARY 4, 2006 AND JANUARY 31, 2005  

                                                   COMMON STOCK       COMMON 
                                COMPREHENSIVE   --- ---------------    STOCK     ADDITIONAL 
                                   INCOME       NUM BER OF     PAR    PURCHASE    PAID-IN       DEFERRE D 
                                   (LOSS)         S HARES     VALUE   WARRANTS    CAPITAL     COMPENSAT ION 
                                -------------   --- -------   -----   --------   ----------   --------- ---  
                                                    (IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA) 
BALANCE, JANUARY 31, 2004.....                  36, 487,821   $365    $ 47,638    $260,100       $(646)  
  Net loss....................    $(57,601) 
                                  ======== 
Increase in note receivable 
  from officer................                          --     --          --          --          -- 
Proceeds received on notes 
  receivable..................                          --     --          --          --          -- 
Exercise of stock options and 
  common stock issuances......                     454,582      4          --       3,042          -- 
Exercise of stock purchase 
  warrants....................                     101,509      1        (955)        955          -- 
Issuance of restricted 
  stock.......................                          --     --          --         308        (308)  
Restricted stock forfeited....                          --     --          --        (115)        115 
Amortization of deferred 
  compensation................                          --     --          --          --         486 
Accretion on redeemable 
  preferred stock.............                          --     --          --        (285)         -- 
                                                --- -------   ----    --------    --------       ----- 
BALANCE, JANUARY 31, 2005.....                  37, 043,912    370      46,683     264,005        (353)  
  Net loss....................    $(15,753) 
                                  ======== 
Exercise of stock options and 
  common stock issuances......                     318,564      3          --       1,903          -- 
Exercise of stock purchase 
  warrants....................                     281,200      3      (5,378)      5,378          -- 
Stock purchase warrants 
  forfeited...................                          --     --      (7,276)      7,276          -- 
Restricted stock forfeited....                          --     --          --          (9)          9 
Amortization of deferred 
  compensation................                          --     --          --          --         190 
Accretion on redeemable 
  preferred stock.............                          --     --          --        (287)         -- 
                                                --- -------   ----    --------    --------       ----- 
BALANCE, FEBRUARY 4, 2006.....                  37, 643,676    376      34,029     278,266        (154)  
  Net loss....................    $ (2,396) 
                                  ======== 
Repurchase of common stock....                    ( 405,685)    (4)         --      (4,695)         -- 
Exercise of stock options and 
  common stock issuances......                     355,777      4          --       1,455          -- 
Stock purchase warrants 
  forfeited...................                          --     --     (11,057)     11,057          -- 
Share-based payment 
  compensation................                          --     --          --       1,901          -- 
Effect of accounting change 
  (SFAS 123R).................                          --     --          --        (154)        154 
Accretion on redeemable 
  preferred stock.............                          --     --          --        (289)         -- 
                                                --- -------   ----    --------    --------       ----- 
BALANCE, FEBRUARY 3, 2007.....                  37, 593,768   $376    $ 22,972    $287,541       $  -- 
                                                === =======   ====    ========    ========       ===== 
 
                                   NOTE 
                                RECEIVABLE 
                                   FROM                        TOTAL 
                                  FORMER     ACCUMU LATED   SHAREHOLDERS' 
                                 OFFICER       DEFI CIT        EQUITY 
                                ----------   ------ -----   ------------- 
                                   (IN THOUSANDS, E XCEPT SHARE DATA) 
BALANCE, JANUARY 31, 2004.....   $(4,158)     $ (36 ,292)     $267,007 
  Net loss....................                  (57 ,601)      (57,601) 
Increase in note receivable 
  from officer................       (53)            --           (53) 
Proceeds received on notes 
  receivable..................     4,211             --         4,211 
Exercise of stock options and 
  common stock issuances......        --             --         3,046 
Exercise of stock purchase 
  warrants....................        --             --             1 
Issuance of restricted 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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  stock.......................        --             --            -- 
Restricted stock forfeited....        --             --            -- 
Amortization of deferred 
  compensation................        --             --           486 
Accretion on redeemable 
  preferred stock.............        --             --          (285) 
                                 -------      ----- ----      -------- 
BALANCE, JANUARY 31, 2005.....        --        (93 ,893)      216,812 
  Net loss....................                  (15 ,753)      (15,753) 
Exercise of stock options and 
  common stock issuances......        --             --         1,906 
Exercise of stock purchase 
  warrants....................        --             --             3 
Stock purchase warrants 
  forfeited...................        --             --            -- 
Restricted stock forfeited....        --             --            -- 
Amortization of deferred 
  compensation................        --             --           190 
Accretion on redeemable 
  preferred stock.............        --             --          (287) 
                                 -------      ----- ----      -------- 
BALANCE, FEBRUARY 4, 2006.....        --       (109 ,646)      202,871 
  Net loss....................                   (2 ,396)       (2,396) 
Repurchase of common stock....        --             --        (4,699) 
Exercise of stock options and 
  common stock issuances......        --             --         1,459 
Stock purchase warrants 
  forfeited...................        --             --            -- 
Share-based payment 
  compensation................        --             --         1,901 
Effect of accounting change 
  (SFAS 123R).................        --             --            -- 
Accretion on redeemable 
  preferred stock.............        --             --          (289) 
                                 -------      ----- ----      -------- 
BALANCE, FEBRUARY 3, 2007.....   $    --      $(112 ,042)     $198,847 
                                 =======      ===== ====      ======== 



VALUEVISION MEDIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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                                                                        FOR THE YEARS ENDED 
                                                              ---------------------------------------  
                                                              FEBRUARY 3,   FEBRUARY 4,   JANUARY 31,  
                                                                 2007          2006          2005 
                                                              -----------   -----------   -----------  
                                                                          (IN THOUSANDS) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
  Net loss......................................... .........   $ (2,396)     $(15,753)     $ (57,601)  
  Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash (us ed for) 
     provided by operating activities: 
     Depreciation and amortization................. .........     22,239        20,871         20,120 
     Share-based payment compensation.............. .........      1,901            --             -- 
     Common stock issued to employees.............. .........         24            37             22 
     Amortization of deferred revenue.............. .........       (119)           --             -- 
     Vesting of deferred compensation.............. .........         --           190            486 
     Gain on sale of television station............ .........         --          (294)            -- 
     Loss (gain) on sale of property and investment s........       (500)         (250)            34 
     Asset impairments and writeoffs............... .........        179           400         13,202 
     Equity in net income of affiliates............ .........     (3,006)       (1,383)            -- 
     RLM dividends................................. .........        250            --             -- 
     Noncash lease termination benefit............. .........         --          (924)            -- 
     Noncash tax benefit........................... .........         --          (832)            -- 
     Changes in operating assets and liabilities, n et of 
       businesses acquired: 
       Accounts receivable......................... .........    (29,691)       (8,073)        (8,239)  
       Inventories................................. .........      1,222       (12,941)        12,717 
       Prepaid expenses and other.................. .........      3,594        (3,416)        (3,417)  
       Deferred revenue............................ .........      2,188            --             -- 
       Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.... .........      7,657        11,994          4,606 
                                                               --------      --------      --------- 
          Net cash (used for) provided by operating  
            activities............................. .........      3,542       (10,374)       (18,070)  
                                                               --------      --------      --------- 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
  Property and equipment additions................. .........    (11,470)       (9,750)       (14,722)  
  Proceeds from sale of investments and property... .........        500           500             -- 
  Purchase of short-term investments............... .........    (21,627)      (80,454)      (128,397)  
  Proceeds from sale of short-term investments..... .........     31,035        79,193        136,604 
  Collection of note receivable from former officer .........         --            --          4,211 
  Proceeds from sale of television stations........ .........         --           400             -- 
                                                               --------      --------      --------- 
          Net cash used for investing activities... .........     (1,562)      (10,111)        (2,304)  
                                                               --------      --------      --------- 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
  Proceeds from exercise of stock options.......... .........      1,435         1,869          3,024 
  Payments for repurchases of common stock......... .........     (4,699)           --             -- 
  Payment of long-term obligations................. .........       (363)         (881)        (1,043)  
                                                               --------      --------      --------- 
          Net cash provided by (used for) financing  
            activities............................. .........     (3,627)          988          1,981 
                                                               --------      --------      --------- 
          Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents .........     (1,647)      (19,497)       (18,393)  
BEGINNING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS................ .........     43,143        62,640         81,033 
                                                               --------      --------      --------- 
ENDING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS................... .........   $ 41,496      $ 43,143      $  62,640 
                                                               ========      ========      ========= 



VALUEVISION MEDIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 3, 2007, FEBRUARY 4, 2006, AND JANUARY 31, 2005  

1. THE COMPANY:  

ValueVision Media, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the "Company") is an integrated direct marketing company that markets, sells and distributes its 
products directly to consumers through various forms of electronic media and direct-to-consumer mailings. The Company's operating strategy 
as a multi-channel retailer incorporates television home shopping, internet e-commerce, direct mail marketing and fulfillment services.  

The Company's television home shopping business uses on-air spokespersons to market brand name merchandise and private label consumer 
products at competitive prices. The Company's live 24-hour per day television home shopping programming is distributed primarily through 
long-term cable and satellite affiliation agreements and the purchase of month-to-month full and part-time lease agreements of cable and 
broadcast television time. In addition, the Company distributes its programming through one Company-owned full power television station in 
Boston, Massachusetts. The Company also complements its television home shopping business by the sale of a broad array of merchandise 
through its internet shopping website, www.shopnbc.com.  

The Company has an exclusive license agreement with NBC Universal, Inc. ("NBC"), pursuant to which NBC granted the Company worldwide 
use of an NBC-branded name and the peacock image for a ten-year period. The Company rebranded its television home shopping network and 
companion internet shopping website as "ShopNBC" and "ShopNBC.com," respectively, in fiscal 2001.  

The Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary, VVI Fulfillment Center, Inc. ("VVIFC"), provides fulfillment, warehousing, customer 
service and telemarketing services to Ralph Lauren Media, LLC ("RLM"), the operator of the Polo.com e-commerce business. VVIFC also 
provides fulfillment and warehousing services for the fulfillment of certain non-jewelry merchandise sold on the Company's television home 
shopping program and internet website.  

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:  

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION  

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Intercompany 
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  

FISCAL YEAR  

The Company's most recently completed fiscal year ends on February 3, 2007 and such year is designated "fiscal 2006." The year ended 
February 4, 2006 is designated fiscal 2005 and the year ended January 31, 2005 is designated fiscal 2004. On April 29, 2005, the Company 
elected to change its fiscal year from a fiscal year ending January 31 to a 52/53 week fiscal year which ends on the Saturday nearest to January 
31. This change was effective beginning with the Company's 2005 fiscal year. The Company made this change in order to align its fiscal year 
more closely to its retail seasonal merchandising plan. The change will also enhance the weekly and monthly comparability of sales results 
relating to the Company's television home-shopping business. As a result of this fiscal year change, the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 had 13 
weeks compared to the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 which had 14 weeks, a 1.36% decrease in the number of days over fiscal 2005. In addition, 
fiscal 2005 had three additional days, or a 0.82% days over fiscal 2004. The change in the fiscal year was not significant to the Company's 
annual consolidated financial statements.  

REVENUE RECOGNITION AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE  

Revenue is recognized at the time merchandise is shipped or when services are provided. Shipping and handling fees charged to customers are 
recognized as merchandise is shipped and are classified as revenue in  
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the accompanying statements of operations in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") Issue No. 00-10, "Accounting for 
Shipping and Handling Fees and Cost" ("EITF 00-10"). The Company classifies shipping and handling costs in the accompanying statements 
of operations as a component of cost of sales. Returns are estimated and provided for at the time of sale based on historical experience. 
Payments received for unfilled orders are reflected as a component of accrued liabilities.  

Revenue is recognized for vendor programming airtime sales upon completion of the production of the vendor's show and its broadcast over the 
Company's ShopNBC television network in accordance with the Company's contractual service obligation, when the sales price is fixed or 
determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. Revenue is recognized for the Company's fulfillment services when the services are 
provided in accordance with the Company's contractual obligation, the sales price is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably 
assured. The Company's customary shipping terms for its fulfillment services are Freight-On-Board shipping point.  

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from customers for merchandise sales and from credit card companies, and are reflected 
net of reserves for estimated uncollectible amounts of $3,641,000 at February 3, 2007 and $2,478,000 at February 4, 2006. The Company 
utilizes an installment payment program called ValuePay that entitles customers to purchase merchandise and generally pay for the 
merchandise in two to six equal monthly credit card installments. As of February 3, 2007 and February 4, 2006, the Company had 
approximately $105,197,000 and $77,447,000, respectively, of net receivables due from customers under the ValuePay installment program. 
The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make required 
payments. Provision for doubtful accounts receivable (primarily related to the Company's ValuePay program) for the years ended February 3, 
2007, February 4, 2006 and January 31, 2005 were $6,065,000, $4,542,000 and $4,303,000, respectively.  

COST OF SALES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES  

Cost of sales includes primarily the cost of merchandise sold, shipping and handling costs, inbound freight costs, excess and obsolete inventory 
charges and customer courtesy credits. Purchasing and receiving costs, including costs of inspection, are included as a component of 
distribution and selling expense and were approximately $11,689,000, $10,460,000 and $9,861,000 for the years ended February 3, 2007, 
February 4, 2006 and January 31, 2005, respectively. Distribution and selling expense consist primarily of cable and satellite access fees, credit 
card fees, bad debt expense and costs associated with purchasing and receiving, inspection, marketing and advertising, show production, 
website marketing and merchandising, telemarketing, customer service, warehousing and fulfillment. General and administrative expense 
consists primarily of costs associated with executive, legal, accounting and finance, information systems and human resources departments, 
software and system maintenance contracts, insurance, investor and public relations and director fees.  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, money market funds and commercial paper with an original maturity of 90 days or less. The 
Company maintains its cash balances at financial institutions in investment accounts that are not federally insured. The Company has not 
experienced losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on its cash and cash equivalents.  

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS  

Short-term investments consist principally of high quality commercial paper with original maturity dates of less than 270 days and investment 
grade corporate and auction rate securities with tender option terms ranging from one month to one year. Auction rate securities are variable 
rate bonds tied to short-term interest rates with maturities on the face of the securities in excess of 90 days. Auction rate securities have interest 
rate resets that occur through a modified Dutch auction, at predetermined short-term intervals, usually every 1, 7,  
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28 or 35 days. Short-term investments are stated at cost, which approximates market value due to the short maturities or the variable interests 
rates of these instruments. The Company maintains its short-term investments at financial institutions in investment accounts that are not 
federally insured. Although management believes the Company's short-term investment policy is conservative in nature, certain short-term 
investments in commercial paper can be exposed to the credit risk of the underlying companies to which they relate and interest earned on these 
investments are subject to interest rate fluctuations. The Company has not experienced losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to 
any significant credit risk on its short-term investments. The average maturity of the Company's short-term investment portfolio ranges from 
30-180 days.  

The Company's short-term investments consist of marketable equity and debt securities, which are classified as either available-for-sale or 
held-to-maturity, depending on management's investment intentions relating to these securities. Available-for-sale securities are marked to 
market based upon quoted market values of these securities, with the unrealized gains and losses, if any, net of tax, reported as a component of 
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Realized gains and losses on the sale of available-for-sale securities are computed based upon 
initial cost adjusted for any other-than-temporary declines in fair value. Investments categorized as held-to-maturity are carried at amortized 
cost because the Company has both the intent and ability to hold these investments until they mature. Premiums and discounts are amortized or 
accreted into earnings over the life of the related available-for-sale or held-to-maturity security. Dividends or interest income is recognized 
when earned. The Company owns no investments that are considered to be trading securities.  

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" ("SFAS No. 133"), 
establishes accounting and reporting standards requiring that derivative instruments, as defined in the standard, be recorded in the balance sheet 
as either an asset or liability measured at its fair value. SFAS No. 133 requires changes in the derivative's fair value to be recognized currently 
in earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. The Company no longer has derivative warrant investments.  

INVENTORIES  

Inventories, which consist primarily of consumer merchandise held for resale, are stated principally at the lower of average cost or realizable 
value and are reflected net of obsolescence write downs of $4,431,000 at February 3, 2007 and $3,910,000 at February 4, 2006.  

ADVERTISING COSTS  

Promotional advertising expenditures are expensed in the period the advertising initially takes place. Direct response advertising costs, 
consisting primarily of catalog preparation, printing and postage expenditures, are capitalized and amortized over the period during which the 
benefits are expected, generally one to three months. The Company receives vendor allowances for the reimbursement of direct advertising 
costs. Advertising allowances received by the Company are recorded as a reduction of advertising expense and were $1,125,000, $992,000 and 
$1,254,000 for the years ended February 3, 2007, February 4, 2006 and January 31, 2005, respectively. Advertising costs, after reflecting 
allowances given by vendors, totaled $18,610,000, $14,408,000 and $14,785,000 for the years ended February 3, 2007, February 4, 2006 and 
January 31, 2005, respectively, and consist primarily of contractual marketing fees paid to certain cable operators for cross channel promotions. 
The Company includes advertising costs as a component of distribution and selling expense in the Company's consolidated statement of 
operations. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company wrote down $1,900,000 of NBC advertising credits as they were deemed by 
management to be impaired. See Note 16 for a full discussion of the Company's fiscal 2004 asset impairments.  
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT  

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Improvements and renewals that extend the life of an asset are capitalized and depreciated. Repairs 
and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. The cost and accumulated depreciation of property and equipment retired or otherwise 
disposed of are removed from the related accounts, and any residual values are charged or credited to operations. Depreciation and amortization 
for financial reporting purposes are provided on the straight-line method based upon estimated useful lives.  

Property and equipment consisted of the following:  

 

NBC TRADEMARK LICENSE AGREEMENT  

As discussed further in Note 15, in November 2000, the Company entered into a Trademark License Agreement with NBC (the "License 
Agreement") pursuant to which NBC granted the Company an exclusive, worldwide license for a term of ten years to use certain NBC 
trademarks, service marks and domain names to rebrand the Company's business and corporate name on the terms and conditions set forth in 
the License Agreement. In connection with the License Agreement, the Company issued to NBC warrants to purchase 6,000,000 shares of the 
Company's common stock at an exercise price of $17.375 per share (see Note 6). In March 2001, the Company established a measurement date 
with respect to the License Agreement by amending the agreement, and fixed the fair value of the trademark license asset at $32,837,000, 
which is being amortized over the remaining ten-year term of the License Agreement. The Company used the Black-Scholes option pricing 
model to compute the fair market value of the NBC warrants at March 12, 2001. Significant assumptions in the warrant fair value calculation 
included: market price of $11.00; exercise price of $17.375; risk-free interest rate of 5.08%; volatility factor of 53.54%; and dividend yield of 
0%. As of January 31, 2003, all of the warrants were vested. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, 2,000,000 of these warrants had expired 
unexercised. As of February 3, 2007 and February 4, 2006, accumulated amortization related to this asset totaled $20,603,000 and $17,376,000, 
respectively.  

CABLE DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING AGREEMENT  

As discussed further in Note 13, in March 1999, the Company entered into a ten-year Distribution and Marketing Agreement with NBC, which 
provides that NBC shall have the exclusive right to negotiate on behalf of the Company for the distribution of its home shopping television 
service. In compensation for these services, the Company currently pays NBC an annual fee of approximately $1.8 million and issued NBC a 
Distribution Warrant to purchase 1,450,000 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of $8.29. The value assigned to the 
Distribution and Marketing Agreement and related warrant of $6,931,000 was determined pursuant to an independent appraisal using the 
Black-Scholes option pricing model and is being  
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                                                 ES TIMATED 
                                                USE FUL LIFE   FEBRUARY 3,    FEBRUARY 4, 
                                                (IN  YEARS)        2007           2006 
                                                --- --------   ------------   ------------ 
Land and improvements.........................       --       $  3,454,000   $  3,455,000 
Buildings and improvements....................     5-40         18,403,000     18,109,000 
Transmission and production equipment.........     5-10          7,881,000      7,979,000 
Office and warehouse equipment................     3-10         10,003,000      9,515,000 
Computer hardware, software and telephone 
  equipment...................................      3-7         57,206,000     52,579,000 
Leasehold improvements........................      3-5          3,440,000      3,515,000 
Less -- Accumulated depreciation and 
  amortization................................                 (60,280,000)   (48,194,000)  
                                                              ------------   ------------ 
                                                              $ 40,107,000   $ 46,958,000 
                                                              ============   ============ 
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amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the agreement. Significant assumptions used in the warrant valuation included: market price 
of $9.00; exercise price of $8.29; risk-free interest rate of 5.01%; volatility factor of 55.36%; and dividend yield of 0%. As of February 3, 2007 
and February 4, 2006, accumulated amortization related to this asset totaled $5,389,000 and $4,696,000, respectively.  

In fiscal 2001, the Company issued to NBC additional warrants to purchase 343,725 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise 
price of $23.07 per share. The warrants were assigned a fair value of $1,175,000, were immediately exercisable, and had a term of five years. 
In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company issued to NBC additional warrants to purchase 36,858 shares of the Company's common 
stock at an exercise price of $15.74 per share. The warrants were assigned a fair value of $172,000, vest over five years and had a five-year 
term from the date of vesting. These warrants were issued in connection with the Distribution and Marketing Agreement which provides that 
additional warrants are to be granted at current market prices upon the achievement of specific goals associated with the distribution of the 
Company's television programming with respect to full-time equivalent ("FTE") subscriber homes. The fair value assigned to these distribution 
warrants were determined using the Black Scholes option pricing model and are being amortized over the weighted average term of the new 
distribution agreements which range from five to seven years. As of February 3, 2007 and February 4, 2006, total accumulated amortization 
related to these assets totaled $1,130,000 and $928,000, respectively.  

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS  

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" ("SFAS No. 142"), addresses the financial 
accounting and reporting standards for the acquisition of intangible assets outside of a business combination and for goodwill and other 
intangible assets subsequent to their acquisition. This accounting standard requires that goodwill be separately disclosed from other intangible 
assets in the statement of financial position, and no longer be amortized but tested for impairment annually or whenever an event has occurred 
that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of the asset below its carrying amount. Goodwill had been recorded by the Company in 
fiscal 2002 as a result of the acquisition of FanBuzz, Inc. ("FanBuzz"). FanBuzz's operations were discontinued in fiscal 2005. (See Note 5).  

During the third quarter of fiscal 2004 the Company wrote off goodwill totaling $9,442,000 attributable to the FanBuzz acquisition as the 
Company had determined that the goodwill was impaired following FanBuzz's loss of its National Hockey League ("NHL") contract in 
September 2004.  

Intangible assets have been recorded in connection with the Company's acquisition of the ShopNBC license and with the issuance of 
distribution warrants to NBC. Intangible assets have also been recorded by  
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the Company as a result of the acquisition of television station WWDP TV-46. Intangible assets in the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheets consists of the following:  

 

Amortization expense for the NBC intangible assets was $4,122,000 for each of the years ended February 3, 2007, February 4, 2006 and 
January 31, 2005, respectively. Amortization expense for FanBuzz intangible assets for the years ended February 3, 2007, February 4, 2006 
and January 31, 2005 was $-0-, $68,000 and $433,000, respectively. Estimated amortization expense for the succeeding five years is as 
follows: $4,113,000 in fiscal 2007, $3,943,000 in fiscal 2008, $3,383,000 in fiscal 2009, $2,554,000 in fiscal 2010 and $-0- in fiscal 2011. 
During the third quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company wrote off approximately $160,000 of intangible assets in connection with a FanBuzz asset 
impairment. The results of operations for FanBuzz is classified as discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of operations. See Note 5 for a discussion of the discontinued operations of FanBuzz.  

The FCC broadcasting license, which relates to the Company's acquisition of television station WWDP TV-46, is not subject to amortization as 
a result of its indefinite useful life. The Company tests the FCC license asset for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. There was no impairment as of February 3, 2007.  

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS  

Investments and other assets consisted of the following:  

 

Prepaid launch fees represent prepaid amounts paid to cable operators upon entering into cable affiliation agreements and prepaid satellite 
transponder launch fees. These fees are capitalized and amortized over the lives of the related affiliation contracts, which range from 7-8 years.  

Deferred satellite rent is attributable to the Company's fiscal 2004 long-term satellite services rental agreement that contains provisions for 
scheduled rent decreases over the lease term. The Company recognizes  
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                                               FEBR UARY 3, 2007             FEBRUARY 4, 2006 
                               WEIGHTED   --------- -----------------   -------------------------- 
                               AVERAGE       GROSS                        GROSS 
                                 LIFE      CARRYING      ACCUMULATED     CARRYING     ACCUMULATED 
                               (YEARS)      AMOUNT      AMORTIZATION     AMOUNT      AMORTIZATION 
                               --------   --------- --   ------------   -----------   ------------ 
Amortized intangible assets: 
  NBC trademark license 
     agreement...............     10      $32,837,0 00   $(20,603,000)  $32,837,000   $(17,376,000)  
  Cable distribution and 
     marketing agreement.....    9.5        8,278,0 00     (6,519,000)    8,278,000     (5,624,000)  
                                          --------- --   ------------   -----------   ------------ 
                                          $41,115,0 00   $(27,122,000)  $41,115,000   $(23,000,000)  
                                          ========= ==   ============   ===========   ============ 
Unamortized intangible 
  assets: 
  FCC broadcast license......             $31,943,0 00                  $31,943,000 
                                          ========= ==                  =========== 

                                                              FEBRUARY 3,   FEBRUARY 4,  
                                                                 2007          2006 
                                                              -----------   -----------  
Investment in RLM.................................. .........  $4,139,000    $1,383,000 
Prepaid launch fees, net........................... .........     561,000     1,171,000 
Deferred satellite rent............................ .........     672,000     1,164,000 
Other, net......................................... .........     120,000       376,000 
                                                              ----------    ---------- 
                                                              $5,492,000    $4,094,000 
                                                              ==========    ========== 
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the related rental expense on a straight-line basis and records the difference between the recognized rental expense and amounts payable under 
the lease as deferred rent.  

Other assets consist principally of long-term deposits and the long-term portion of prepaid compensation costs associated with employment 
contracts entered into with certain key employees of the Company in fiscal 2004. Compensation expense is being recognized for these contracts 
over the four-year service period.  

EQUITY INVESTMENTS  

As discussed in Note 14, in February 2000, the Company entered into a strategic alliance with Polo Ralph Lauren, NBC, NBCi and CNBC and 
created RLM, a joint venture formed for the purpose of bringing the Polo Ralph Lauren American lifestyle experience to consumers via 
multiple platforms, including the internet, broadcast, cable and print. Through fiscal 2006, the Company owned a 12.5% interest in RLM. The 
Company, through VVIFC, has entered into an agreement to provide certain fulfillment and customer care services to RLM.  

The Company accounts for its ownership interest in RLM under the equity method of accounting and adjusts its investment balance for its 
share of RLM income and losses each reporting period. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company evaluated the carrying value of its 
RLM investment by evaluating the current and forecasted financial condition of the entity, its liquidity prospects and its cash flow forecasts and 
by comparing its historical operational results to plan. Through fiscal 2002, the RLM joint venture had incurred significant operating losses 
since it commenced operations in November 2000 and the Company's expectations regarding RLM's growth, earnings capability and ability to 
generate future positive cash flows had severely diminished. The Company believed that based on RLM's historic performance, future earnings 
and cash flow outlook, 2002 services agreement amendment and a fiscal 2002 fourth quarter valuation analysis, an impairment had occurred 
with respect to this investment and the decline in value was determined to be other than temporary whereby the Company would not be able to 
recover the carrying amount of its investment. As a result, the Company wrote down its RLM investment to zero in the fourth quarter of fiscal 
2002. During fiscal 2005, the Company began recording equity in net income of RLM for its equity interest in RLM after recovering 
previously unrecorded losses. Total equity in net income of RLM recorded by the Company during fiscal 2006 and 2005 was $3,006,000 and 
$1,383,000, respectively. In addition, the Company received cash dividends totaling $250,000 from RLM during fiscal 2006. On March 28, 
2007, the Company sold its 12.5% ownership interest in RLM for approximately $43.8 million. See Note 17.  

ACCRUED LIABILITIES  

Accrued liabilities consisted of the following:  

 

INCOME TAXES  

The Company accounts for income taxes under the liability method of accounting in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes" ("SFAS No. 109") whereby deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized 
for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities.  
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                                                             FEBRUARY 3,   FEBRUARY 4,  
                                                                2007          2006 
                                                             -----------   -----------  
Accrued cable access fees.......................... ........  $17,960,000   $15,143,000  
Accrued salaries and related....................... ........   11,530,000     7,030,000  
Reserve for product returns........................ ........    8,498,000     7,658,000  
Other.............................................. ........    9,721,000    10,392,000  
                                                             -----------   -----------  
                                                             $47,709,000   $40,223,000  
                                                             ===========   ===========  
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of the enactment of such laws. The 
Company assesses the recoverability of its deferred tax assets in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109. In accordance with that 
standard, as of February 3, 2007 and February 4, 2006, the Company recorded a valuation allowance of approximately $54,663,000 and 
$55,244,000, respectively, for its net deferred tax assets including net operating and capital loss carryforwards. Based on the Company's recent 
history of losses, a full valuation allowance was recorded in fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 and was calculated in accordance with the provisions of 
SFAS No. 109, which places primary importance on the Company's most recent operating results when assessing the need for a valuation 
allowance. Although management believes that the Company's recent operating losses were heavily affected by the attendant fixed costs 
associated with a significant expansion of cable homes, a challenging retail economic environment and a slowdown in consumer spending 
experienced by the Company and other merchandise retailers, the Company intends to maintain a full valuation allowance for its net deferred 
tax assets and net operating loss carryforwards until sufficient positive evidence exists to support reversal of the reserve. See Note 7 for 
additional information regarding income taxes.  

NET LOSS PER COMMON SHARE  

The Company calculates earnings per share ("EPS") in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 
128, "Earnings per Share" ("SFAS No. 128"). Basic EPS is computed by dividing reported earnings by the weighted average number of 
common shares outstanding for the reported periods. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts 
to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock of the Company during reported periods.  

A reconciliation of EPS calculations under SFAS No. 128 is as follows:  

 

In accordance with SFAS No. 128, for the years ended February 3, 2007, February 4, 2006 and January 31, 2005, approximately 228,000, 
611,000 and 1,072,000, respectively, in-the-money potentially dilutive common share stock options and warrants and 5,340,000 shares of 
convertible preferred stock have been excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share, as required under SFAS No. 128, as the 
effect of their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.  
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                                                         FOR THE YEARS ENDED 
                                              ----- ------------------------------------ 
                                              FEBRU ARY 3,   FEBRUARY 4,    JANUARY 31, 
                                                 20 07           2006           2005 
                                              ----- ------   ------------   ------------ 
Net loss from continuing operations.........  $(2,3 96,000)  $(13,457,000)  $(42,719,000)  
                                              ===== ======   ============   ============ 
Weighted average number of common shares 
  outstanding -- Basic......................   37,6 46,000     37,182,000     36,815,000 
Dilutive effect of convertible preferred 
  stock.....................................           --             --             -- 
Dilutive effect of stock options and 
  warrants..................................           --             --             -- 
                                              ----- ------   ------------   ------------ 
Weighted average number of common shares 
  outstanding -- Diluted....................   37,6 46,000     37,182,000     36,815,000 
                                              ===== ======   ============   ============ 
Net loss from continuing operations per 
  common share..............................  $     (0.07)  $      (0.37)  $      (1.17)  
                                              ===== ======   ============   ============ 
Net loss from continuing operations per 
  common share -- assuming dilution.........  $     (0.07)  $      (0.37)  $      (1.17)  
                                              ===== ======   ============   ============ 



VALUEVISION MEDIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONT INUED)  

COMPREHENSIVE LOSS  

The Company reports comprehensive loss in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 130, "Reporting 
Comprehensive Income" ("SFAS No. 130"). SFAS No. 130 establishes standards for reporting in the financial statements all changes in equity 
during a period, except those resulting from investments by and distributions to owners. For the Company, comprehensive loss represents its 
net loss. Total comprehensive loss was $2,396,000, $15,753,000 and $57,601,000 for the years ended February 3, 2007, February 4, 2006 and 
January 31, 2005, respectively.  

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, "Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments" ("SFAS No. 107"), requires 
disclosures of fair value information about financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value. In cases where quoted market 
prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly 
affected by the assumptions used, including discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. In that regard, the derived fair value estimates 
cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in many cases, could not be realized in immediate settlement of the 
instrument. SFAS No. 107 excludes certain financial instruments and all non-financial instruments from its disclosure requirements. 
Accordingly, the aggregate fair value of amounts presented do not represent the underlying value of the Company.  

The Company in estimating its fair values for financial instruments used the following methods and assumptions:  

The carrying amounts reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets approximate the fair value for cash and cash equivalents, 
short-term investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, due to the short maturities of those instruments.  

Fair values for long-term investments are based on quoted market prices, where available. For equity securities not actively traded, fair values 
are estimated by using quoted market prices of comparable instruments or, if there are no relevant comparables, on pricing models, formulas or 
cash flow forecasting models using current assumptions.  

USE OF ESTIMATES  

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during reporting periods. These 
estimates relate primarily to the carrying amounts of accounts receivable and inventories, the realizability of certain long-term assets and the 
recorded balances of certain accrued liabilities and reserves. Ultimate results could differ from these estimates.  

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION  

Effective February 5, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R (revised 2004), "Share-Based 
Payment" ("SFAS No. 123R"), which revised SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation," and supersedes APB Opinion No. 
25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees" ("APB 25"). This standard requires compensation costs related to share-based payment 
transactions to be recognized in the financial statements beginning in fiscal 2006. The Company adopted the standard using the modified 
prospective transition method, which requires the application of the accounting standard to all share-based awards issued on or after the date of 
adoption and any outstanding share-based awards that were issued but not vested as of the date of adoption. Accordingly, the Company did  
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not restate the financial statements for periods prior to the first quarter of fiscal 2006 as a result of the adoption but does present the disclosure-
only effects of stock-based compensation. See Note 6.  

In accordance with SFAS 123R, the estimated grant date fair value of each stock-based award is recognized in income over the requisite 
service period (generally the vesting period). The estimated fair value of each option is calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing 
model. Non-vested share awards are recorded as compensation cost over the requisite service periods based on the market value on the date of 
grant.  

Prior to February 5, 2006 the Company applied the recognition and measurement principles of APB 25 to our stock options and other stock-
based compensation plans as permitted pursuant to SFAS 123. In accordance with APB 25, cost for stock-based compensation was recognized 
in income based on the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the stock at the grant date of the award or other measurement date over the 
amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock. The exercise price for stock options granted to employees equaled the fair market value of 
the Company's common stock at the date of grant, thereby resulting in no recognition of compensation expense by the Company. Non-vested 
share awards are recorded as compensation cost over the requisite service periods based on the market value on the date of grant. Unearned 
compensation cost on non-vested share awards was shown as a reduction to shareholders' equity.  

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS  

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159 "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities" ("SFAS No. 159"). 
This statement permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. The provisions of SFAS 
No. 159 are effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of 
SFAS No. 159 will have on its consolidated results of operations and financial condition.  

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements" ("SFAS No. 157"), to establish a consistent framework for 
measuring fair value and expand disclosures on fair value measurements. The provisions of SFAS No. 157 are effective for fiscal years 
beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on its 
consolidated results of operations and financial condition.  

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 ("FIN 48"), "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes -- an interpretation of 
FASB Statement No. 109." FIN 48 prescribes a comprehensive model for recognizing, measuring, presenting and disclosing in the financial 
statements tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return, including a decision whether to file or not to file a tax return in a 
particular jurisdiction. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. If there are changes in net assets as a result of the 
application of FIN 48, these will be accounted for as an adjustment to retained earnings. The Company is currently assessing the impact of FIN 
48 on its consolidated results of operations and financial position.  

3. SHOPNBC PRIVATE LABEL AND CO-BRAND CREDIT CARD PROGRAM:  

In the third quarter of fiscal 2006, the Company introduced and established a new private label and co-brand revolving consumer credit card 
program (the "Program"). The Program is made available to all qualified consumers for the financing of purchases of products from ShopNBC 
and for the financing of purchases of products and services from other non-ShopNBC retailers. The Program is intended to be used by 
cardholders for purchases made primarily for personal, family or household use. The issuing bank is the sole owner of the account issued under 
the Program and absorbs losses associated with non-payment by cardholders. The issuing bank pays fees to the Company based on the number 
of credit card accounts activated and on card usage. Once a customer is approved to receive a ShopNBC private label or co-branded  
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credit card and the card is activated, the customer is eligible to participate in the Company's credit card rewards program. Under the rewards 
program, points are earned on purchases made with the credit cards at ShopNBC and other retailers where the co-branded card is accepted. 
Cardholders who accumulate the requisite number of points are issued a $50 certificate award towards the future purchase of ShopNBC 
merchandise. The certificate award expires after twelve months if unredeemed. The Company accounts for the rewards program in accordance 
with Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") issue No. 00-22, Accounting for "Points" and Certain Other Time-Based or Volume-Based Sales 
Incentive Offers, and Offers for Free Products or Services to Be Delivered in the Future. The value of points earned is included in accrued 
liabilities and recorded as a reduction in revenue as points are earned, based on the retail value of points that are projected to be redeemed. The 
Company accounts for the Private Label and Co-Brand Credit Card Agreement in accordance with EITF No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements 
with Multiple Deliverables. In conjunction with the signing of the ShopNBC Private Label and Co-Brand Credit Card Agreement, the 
Company received from the issuing bank a non-refundable signing bonus as an incentive for the Company to enter into the agreement. The 
bonus has been recorded as deferred revenue in the accompanying financial statements and is being recognized as revenue over the term of the 
agreement.  

4. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS:  

In December 2005, the Company completed the sale of its low power television station located in Atlanta, Georgia for a total of $400,000. The 
Company recorded a pre-tax operating gain on the sale of the low power television station of $294,000 in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005. 
Management believes that the sale of this station did not have a significant impact on the ongoing operations of the Company.  

5. DISCONTINUED FANBUZZ OPERATIONS:  

In the second quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company decided to close its FanBuzz subsidiary operations and finalized the shut down in the third 
quarter of fiscal 2005. FanBuzz was an e-commerce and fulfillment solutions provider for a number of sports, media, entertainment and retail 
companies. The decision to shut down FanBuzz was made after continued operating losses were experienced following the loss of its NHL 
contract in September 2004 and after a number of other FanBuzz customers notified the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2005 that they 
elected not to renew the term of their e-commerce services agreements. FanBuzz ceased business operations as of October 29, 2005 and was a 
reportable segment under SFAS No. 131. The results of operations for FanBuzz have been classified as discontinued operations in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of operations for all periods presented. Net sales from discontinued operations were $5,384,000 and 
$25,782,000 for the fiscal years ended February 4, 2006 and January 31, 2005, respectively. Losses from discontinued operations were 
$2,296,000 and $14,882,000 for the fiscal years ended February 4, 2006 and January 31, 2005, respectively. Gain recognized on disposal of 
FanBuzz in fiscal 2005 was $895,000. The Company's consolidated balance sheet as of February 4, 2006 includes $357,000 in current assets, 
$276,000 in current liabilities and $-0- in long-term assets and long-term liabilities related to FanBuzz.  

6. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK:  

COMMON STOCK  

The Company currently has authorized 100,000,000 shares of undesignated capital stock, of which approximately 37,594,000 shares were 
issued and outstanding as common stock as of February 3, 2007. The board of directors may establish new classes and series of capital stock by 
resolution without shareholder approval.  
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DIVIDENDS  

The Company has never declared or paid any dividends with respect to its capital stock. Under the terms of the shareholder agreement between 
the Company and GE Capital Equity Investments, Inc. ("GE Equity"), the Company is prohibited from paying dividends in excess of 5% of the 
Company's market capitalization in any fiscal quarter.  

REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK  

As discussed further in Note 13, in fiscal 1999, pursuant to an Investment Agreement between the Company and GE Equity, the Company sold 
to GE Equity 5,339,500 shares of its Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value for aggregate proceeds of $44,265,000 
less issuance costs of $2,850,000. The preferred stock is convertible into an equal number of shares of the Company's common stock and has a 
mandatory redemption after ten years from date of issuance at $8.29 per share. The excess of the redemption value over the carrying value is 
being accreted by periodic charges to equity over the ten-year redemption period.  

WARRANTS  

As discussed further in Notes 2 and 15, in November 2000, the Company issued to NBC warrants to purchase 6,000,000 shares of the 
Company's common stock at an exercise price of $17.375 per share. The warrants were issued in connection with the Company's execution of a 
Trademark License Agreement pursuant to which NBC granted the Company an exclusive, worldwide license to use certain NBC trademarks, 
service marks and domain names to rebrand the Company's business and corporate name for a term of ten years. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 
2006, 2,000,000 of these warrants had expired unexercised.  

As discussed further in Note 13, in fiscal 1999, the Company issued to NBC warrants to purchase 1,450,000 shares of the Company's common 
stock at an exercise price of $8.29 per share. The warrants were issued in connection with the Company's execution of a Distribution and 
Marketing Agreement with NBC. In conjunction with the Company's November 2000 execution of the Trademark License Agreement with 
NBC, the Company agreed to accelerate the vesting of these warrants. As of February 4, 2006, there are no longer warrants outstanding related 
to the fiscal 1999 Distribution and Marketing Agreement. In fiscal 2001, the Company issued to NBC warrants to purchase 343,725 shares of 
the Company's common stock at an exercise price of $23.07 per share. These warrants expired unexercised during fiscal 2006. In fiscal 2002, 
the Company issued to NBC warrants to purchase 36,858 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of $15.74 per share. The 
warrants vest over five years, and have a term of five years from the date of vesting. The additional warrants, which are currently outstanding, 
were issued in connection with the Company's Distribution and Marketing Agreement with NBC, which provides that warrants will be granted 
at current market prices upon the achievement of specific goals in connection with distribution of the Company's television programming with 
respect to FTE subscriber homes.  

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION  

Stock-based compensation expense charged to continuing operations for fiscal 2006 related to stock option awards was $1,556,000. The 
adoption of SFAS No. 123R in fiscal 2006 resulted in the recognition of incremental pre-tax stock-based compensation expense and an increase 
in the year to date net loss of $1,556,000 and a $.04 negative impact on basic and fully diluted loss per share. The Company has not recorded 
any income tax benefit from the exercise of stock options due to the uncertainty of realizing income tax benefits in the future. Additionally, the 
Company reclassified unearned compensation on restricted stock awards of $154,000 to additional paid in capital. The cumulative effect 
adjustment for forfeitures related to non-vested stock-based awards was not material.  
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As of February 3, 2007, the Company had two active omnibus stock plans for which stock awards can be currently granted: the 2004 Omnibus 
Stock Plan (as amended and restated in fiscal 2006) which provides for the issuance of up to 4,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock; 
and the 2001 Omnibus Stock Plan which provides for the issuance of up to 3,000,000 shares of the Company's stock. These plans are 
administered by the Company's Human Resources and Compensation Committee ("Compensation Committee") and provide for awards for 
employees, directors and consultants. All employees and directors of the Company or its affiliates are eligible to receive awards under the 
plans. The types of awards that may be granted under these plans include restricted (unvested shares) and unrestricted stock, incentive and 
nonstatutory stock options, stock appreciation rights, performance units, and other stock-based awards. Incentive stock options may be granted 
to employees at such exercise prices as the Compensation Committee may determine but not less than 100% of the fair market value of the 
underlying stock as of the date of grant. No incentive stock option may be granted more than ten years after the effective date of the respective 
plan's inception or be exercisable more than ten years after the date of grant. Options granted to outside directors are nonstatutory stock options 
with an exercise price equal to 100% of the fair market value of the underlying stock as of the date of grant. Options granted under these plans 
are exercisable and generally vest over three years and generally have contractual terms of either five years from the date of vesting or ten years 
from the date of grant. Prior to the adoption of the 2004 and 2001 plans, the Company had other incentive stock option plans in place in which 
stock options were granted to employees under similar vesting terms. The Company no longer makes any further grants from these other plans. 
The Company has also granted non-qualified stock options to current and former directors and certain employees with similar vesting terms.  

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model that uses assumptions noted 
in the following table. Expected volatilities are based on the historical volatility of the Company's stock. Expected term is calculated using the 
simplified method taking into consideration the option's contractual life and vesting terms. The risk-free interest rate for periods within the 
contractual life of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. Expected dividend yields were not used in 
the fair value computations as the Company has never declared or paid dividends on its common stock and currently intends to retain earnings 
for use in operations.  
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                                                          FISCAL     FISCAL    FISCAL 
                                                           2006       2005      2004 
                                                        ----------   -------   -------  
Expected volatility................................ ...   33%-35%       36%       36% 
Expected term (in years)........................... ...   6 years     6 years   6 years  
Risk-free interest rate............................ ...  4.7%-5.12%    4.7%      3.8% 
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A summary of the status of the Company's stock option activity as of February 3, 2007 and changes during the year then ended is as follows:  

 

The following table summarizes information regarding stock options at February 3, 2007:  

 

The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $5.18, $6.84 and $6.52, respectively. The total 
intrinsic value of options exercised during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $2,984,000, $1,252,000 and $2,991,000, respectively. As of 
February 3, 2007, total unrecognized compensation cost related to stock options was $2,186,000 and is expected to be recognized over a 
weighted average period of approximately 1.0 year.  

Prior to fiscal 2006, the Company accounted for its stock option plans under the recognition and measurement principles of APB No. 25, and 
the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS 123. No employee stock option compensation cost was reflected in the net loss, as all options granted 
under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The following table  

                           2004                   2 001                   1990                                           1994 
                         INCENTIVE   WEIGHTED   INC ENTIVE   WEIGHTED   INCENTIVE   WEIGHTED   OTHER NO N-   WEIGHTED   EXECUTIVE  
                           STOCK     AVERAGE      S TOCK     AVERAGE      STOCK     AVERAGE    QUALIFIE D    AVERAGE      STOCK 
                          OPTION     EXERCISE    OP TION     EXERCISE    OPTION     EXERCISE     STOCK      EXERCISE    OPTION 
                           PLAN       PRICE       P LAN       PRICE       PLAN       PRICE      OPTIONS       PRICE       PLAN 
                         ---------   --------   --- ------   --------   ---------   --------   -------- --   --------   ---------  
Balance outstanding, 
 February 4, 2006......  1,776,000    $12.03    2,1 24,000    $14.78      900,000    $18.16    2,551,00 0     $16.50     648,000 
 Granted...............    120,000     12.10      1 40,000     12.70           --        --           - -         --          -- 
 Exercised.............    (41,000)    11.66      ( 59,000)    12.42      (46,000)    10.78      (57,00 0)     10.76    (292,000)  
 Forfeited or 
   canceled............   (121,000)    12.38     (5 81,000)    15.48     (392,000)    19.17     (656,00 0)     18.71          -- 
                         ---------    ------    --- ------    ------    ---------    ------    -------- -     ------    -------- 
Balance outstanding, 
 February 3 2007.......  1,734,000    $12.08    1,6 24,000    $14.44      462,000    $18.03    1,838,00 0     $15.89     356,000 
                         =========    ======    === ======    ======    =========    ======    ======== =     ======    ======== 
Options exercisable at: 
 February 3, 2007......  1,394,000    $12.22    1,4 67,000    $14.64      462,000    $18.03    1,804,00 0     $15.98     356,000 
                         =========    ======    === ======    ======    =========    ======    ======== =     ======    ======== 
 February 4, 2006......  1,322,000    $12.39    2,0 97,000    $14.82      900,000    $18.16    2,501,00 0     $16.61     648,000 
                         =========    ======    === ======    ======    =========    ======    ======== =     ======    ======== 
 January 31, 2005......    769,000    $12.88    1,3 00,000    $15.47    1,056,000    $17.52    1,422,00 0     $17.07     748,000 
                         =========    ======    === ======    ======    =========    ======    ======== =     ======    ======== 
 
 
                         WEIGHTED 
                         AVERAGE 
                         EXERCISE 
                          PRICE 
                         -------- 
Balance outstanding, 
 February 4, 2006......   $16.68 
 Granted...............       -- 
 Exercised.............     3.38 
 Forfeited or 
   canceled............       -- 
                          ------ 
Balance outstanding, 
 February 3 2007.......   $27.57 
                          ====== 
Options exercisable at: 
 February 3, 2007......   $27.57 
                          ====== 
 February 4, 2006......   $16.68 
                          ====== 
 January 31, 2005......   $14.90 
                          ====== 

                                                   WEIGHTED                                             WEIGHTED 
                                      WEIGHTED     AVERAGE                                 WEIGHTED     AVERAGE 
                                      AVERAGE     R EMAINING     AGGREGATE     VESTED OR    AVERAGE     REMAINING     AGGREGATE 
                          OPTIONS     EXERCISE   CO NTRACTUAL    INTRINSIC    EXPECTED TO   EXERCISE   CONTRACTUAL    INTRINSIC 
OPTION TYPE             OUTSTANDING    PRICE     LI FE (YEARS)     VALUE         VEST        PRICE     LIFE (YEARS)     VALUE 
-----------             -----------   --------   -- ----------   ----------   -----------   --------   ------------   ----------  
2004 Incentive:.......   1,734,000     $12.08        7.9        $1,078,000    1,700,000     $12.09        7.9        $1,042,000  
                         =========                              ==========    =========                              ==========  
2001 Incentive:.......   1,624,000     $14.44        5.5        $   85,000    1,608,000     $14.46        5.2        $   84,000  
                         =========                              ==========    =========                              ==========  
1990 Incentive:.......     462,000     $18.03        0.7        $   26,000      462,000     $18.03        0.7        $   26,000  
                         =========                              ==========    =========                              ==========  
Other 
  Non-qualified:......   1,838,000     $15.89        5.2        $   49,000    1,838,000     $15.89        5.2        $   49,000  
                         =========                              ==========    =========                              ==========  
1994 Executive:.......     356,000     $27.57        0.3        $       --      356,000     $27.57        0.3        $       --  
                         =========                              ==========    =========                              ==========  
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illustrates the effect on net loss and net loss per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to 
stock-based employee compensation:  

 

In December 2005, the Company's board of directors approved the acceleration and vesting of approximately 1,200,000 outstanding unvested 
stock options with an exercise price greater than $11.78 per share as of December 19, 2005 under the Company's stock-based incentive 
compensation plans. The options affected are held by executive officers, directors and employees of the Company and have a range of exercise 
prices between $11.80 and $19.26 per share and a weighted average exercise price of $15.06 per share. The board accelerated the vesting 
period to eliminate the Company's future recognition of compensation expense associated with these out-of-the money stock options required 
under SFAS No. 123R, which was effective for the Company beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2006. As a condition of the acceleration, 
the Company also imposed a holding period on shares underlying the accelerated options held by certain of its executive officers requiring 
these officers to refrain from selling any shares acquired upon the exercise of the accelerated options until the date on which the related options 
would have vested under the options' original vesting terms.  

STOCK OPTION TAX BENEFIT  

The exercise of certain stock options granted under the Company's stock option plans gives rise to compensation, which is includible in the 
taxable income of the applicable employees and deductible by the Company for federal and state income tax purposes. Such compensation 
results from increases in the fair market value of the Company's common stock subsequent to the date of grant of the applicable exercised stock 
options and is not recognized as an expense for financial accounting purposes, as the options were originally granted at the fair market value of 
the Company's common stock on the date of grant. The related tax benefits will be recorded as additional paid-in capital if and when realized, 
and totaled $1,106,000, $484,000 and $1,063,000 in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The Company has not recorded the tax benefit 
through paid in capital in these fiscal years, as the related tax deductions were not taken due to the losses incurred. These benefits will be 
recorded in the applicable future periods.  

RESTRICTED STOCK  

On June 21, 2006, the Company granted a total of 40,000 shares of restricted stock from the Company's 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan to its five 
non-management directors elected by the holders of the Company's  
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                                                               FOR THE YEARS ENDED 
                                                           --------------------------- 
                                                           FEBRUARY 4,    JANUARY 31, 
                                                               2006           2005 
                                                           ------------   ------------ 
Net loss available to common shareholders: 
  As reported...................................... ......  $(16,040,000)  $(57,886,000)  
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation exp ense 
  determined under fair value based method for all 
  awards, net of related tax effects............... ......   (17,591,000)   (15,395,000)  
                                                           ------------   ------------ 
  Pro forma........................................ ......  $(33,631,000)  $(73,281,000)  
                                                           ============   ============ 
Net loss per share: 
  Basic: 
     As reported................................... ......  $      (0.43)  $      (1.57)  
     Pro forma..................................... ......         (0.90)         (1.99)  
  Diluted: 
     As reported................................... ......  $      (0.43)  $      (1.57)  
     Pro forma..................................... ......         (0.90)         (1.99)  
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common stock (in contrast to the three directors elected by the holders of the Company's preferred stock) as part of the Company's annual 
director compensation program. The restricted stock vests on the first anniversary of the date of grant. The aggregate market value of the 
restricted stock at the date of award was $468,000 and is being amortized as director compensation expense over the twelve-month vesting 
period. In the second quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company awarded 25,000 shares of restricted stock to certain employees. This restricted stock 
grant vests over different periods ranging from 17 to 53 months. The aggregate market value of the restricted stock at the award dates was 
$308,000 and is being amortized as compensation expense over the respective vesting periods. Compensation expense recorded in fiscal 2006, 
2005 and 2004 relating to restricted stock grants was $345,000, $190,000 and $486,000, respectively. As of February 3, 2007, there was 
$276,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested restricted stock granted. That cost is expected to be recognized over a 
weighted average period of 0.7 years. The total fair value of restricted stock vested during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $26,000, $888,000 
and $672,000 respectively.  

A summary of the status of the Company's non-vested restricted stock activity as of February 3, 2007 and changes during the nine-month 
period then ended is as follows:  

 

COMMON STOCK REPURCHASE PROGRAM  

In August 2006, the Company's board of directors authorized a common stock repurchase program. The program authorizes the Company's 
management, acting through an investment banking firm selected as the Company's agent, to repurchase up to $10 million of the Company's 
common stock through August 2007 by open market purchases or negotiated transactions at prices and amounts as determined by the Company 
from time to time. During fiscal 2006, the Company repurchased a total of 406,000 shares of common stock for a total investment of 
$4,682,000 at an average price of $11.54 per share. The Company did not repurchase any shares under its repurchase program during the fiscal 
years ended February 4, 2006 and January 31, 2005.  
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                                                                       WEIGHTED AVERAGE  
                                                                       GRANT DATE FAIR 
                                                              SHARES        VALUE 
                                                              ------   ----------------  
Non-vested outstanding, February 4, 2006........... .........  23,000        $12.28 
  Granted.......................................... .........  40,000         11.69 
  Vested........................................... .........  (3,000)        12.75 
  Forfeited........................................ .........      --            -- 
                                                              ------        ------ 
Non-vested outstanding, February 3, 2007........... .........  60,000        $11.87 
                                                              ======        ====== 
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7. INCOME TAXES:  

The Company records deferred taxes for differences between the financial reporting and income tax bases of assets and liabilities, computed in 
accordance with tax laws in effect at that time. The deferred taxes related to such differences as of February 3, 2007 and February 4, 2006 were 
as follows:  

 

The (provision) benefit from income taxes consisted of the following:  

 

A reconciliation of the statutory tax rates to the Company's effective tax rate is as follows:  

 

Based on the Company's recent history of losses and as discussed further in Note 2, the Company has recorded a full valuation allowance for its 
net deferred tax assets and net operating loss carryforwards as of February 3, 2007 and February 4, 2006 in accordance with the provisions of 
SFAS No. 109. The ultimate realization of these deferred tax assets depends on the ability of the Company to generate sufficient taxable 
income and capital gains in the future. As of February 3, 2007, the Company has gross operating loss carryforwards for Federal and State 
income tax purposes of approximately $152 million and $77 million, respectively, which begin to expire in January 2022 and 2017, 
respectively.  
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                                                           FEBRUARY 3,    FEBRUARY 4, 
                                                               2007           2006 
                                                           ------------   ------------ 
Accruals and reserves not currently deductible for tax 
  purposes......................................... ......  $  7,578,000   $  6,093,000 
Inventory capitalization........................... ......     1,273,000        967,000 
Basis differences in intangible assets............. ......    (3,477,000)    (2,643,000)  
Differences in depreciation lives and methods...... ......    (5,043,000)    (5,981,000)  
Differences in investments and other items......... ......     2,182,000      2,830,000 
Net operating loss carryforwards................... ......    52,150,000     53,978,000 
Valuation allowance................................ ......   (54,663,000)   (55,244,000)  
                                                           ------------   ------------ 
Net deferred tax asset............................. ......  $         --   $         -- 
                                                           ============   ============ 

                                                                    YEARS ENDED 
                                                      ---------------------------------------  
                                                      FEBRUARY 3,   FEBRUARY 4,   JANUARY 31,  
                                                         2007          2006          2005 
                                                      -----------   -----------   -----------  
Current............................................ .   $(75,000)     $762,000      $(25,000) 
Deferred........................................... .         --            --            -- 
                                                       --------      --------      -------- 
                                                       $(75,000)     $762,000      $(25,000) 
                                                       ========      ========      ======== 

                                                                    YEARS ENDED 
                                                      ---------------------------------------  
                                                      FEBRUARY 3,   FEBRUARY 4,   JANUARY 31,  
                                                         2007          2006          2005 
                                                      -----------   -----------   -----------  
Taxes at federal statutory rates................... .      35.0%         35.0%         35.0% 
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit..... .       4.1           5.2           2.0 
SFAS 123(R) stock option vesting expense........... .     (23.2)           --            -- 
Non-deductible goodwill write down................. .        --            --          (6.1) 
Valuation allowance................................ .     (17.3)        (35.3)        (31.0) 
Tax exempt interest................................ .        --            --           0.1 
                                                         -----         -----         ----- 
Effective tax rate on continuing operations........ .      (1.4)%         4.9%          0.0% 
                                                         =====         =====         ===== 
Effective tax rate on equity in net income of 
  affiliates....................................... .       0.0%          0.0%          0.0% 
                                                         =====         =====         ===== 
Effective tax rate on discontinued operations...... .       0.0%          0.0%          0.0% 
                                                         =====         =====         ===== 
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8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:  

CABLE AND SATELLITE AFFILIATION AGREEMENTS  

As of February 3, 2007, the Company had entered into three- to twelve-year affiliation agreements with approximately 130 cable system 
operators along with the satellite companies DIRECTV and EchoStar (DISH Network) that require each to offer the Company's television 
home shopping programming on a full-time basis over their systems. Under certain circumstances, these television operators may cancel their 
agreements prior to expiration. The affiliation agreements generally provide that the Company will pay each operator a monthly access fee and 
marketing support payment based upon the number of homes carrying the Company's television home shopping programming. For the years 
ended February 3, 2007, February 4, 2006 and January 31, 2005, respectively, the Company paid approximately $106,654,000, $99,857,000 
and $93,539,000 under these long-term affiliation agreements.  

The Company has entered into, and will continue to enter into, affiliation agreements with other television operators providing for full- or part-
time carriage of the Company's television home shopping programming. Under certain circumstances the Company may be required to pay the 
operator a one-time initial launch fee, which is capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the agreement.  

Future cable and satellite affiliation cash commitments at February 3, 2007 are as follows:  

 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS  

On December 1, 2003, the Company entered into a three-year employment agreement with its chief executive officer. The employment 
agreement specifies, among other things, the term and duties of employment, compensation and benefits, termination of employment, 
severance, and non-compete restrictions. The employment agreement renews automatically for one-year terms on December 1st of each year, 
unless either the chief executive officer or the Company has given notice of the intention not to renew the agreement. No such notice was given 
by either party in fiscal year 2006, and accordingly the agreement was renewed for a one-year term until December 1, 2007.  

In addition, the Company has entered into employment agreements with a number of officers and on-air hosts of the Company for original 
terms ranging from 12 to 36 months. These agreements specify, among other things, the term and duties of employment, compensation and 
benefits, termination of employment (including for cause, which would reduce the Company's total obligation under these agreements), 
severance payments and non-disclosing and non-compete restrictions. The aggregate commitment for future base compensation at February 3, 
2007 was approximately $5,034,000.  

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS  

The Company leases certain property and equipment under non-cancelable operating lease agreements. Property and equipment covered by 
such operating lease agreements include offices and warehousing facilities at subsidiary locations, satellite transponder, office equipment and 
certain tower site locations.  
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FISCAL YEAR                                                      AMOUNT 
-----------                                                   ------------  
2007............................................... .........  $110,118,000  
2008............................................... .........   103,419,000  
2009............................................... .........    36,269,000  
2010............................................... .........    35,818,000  
2011 and thereafter................................ .........    59,138,000  
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Future minimum lease payments at February 3, 2007 are as follows:  

 

Total rent expense under such agreements was approximately $2,640,000 in fiscal 2006, $2,771,000 in fiscal 2005 and $3,608,000 in fiscal 
2004.  

CAPITAL LEASE COMMITMENTS  

The Company leases certain computer equipment and software licenses under noncancelable capital leases and includes these assets in property 
and equipment in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The capitalized cost of leased assets was approximately $395,000 at February 
3, 2007 and $2,084,000 at February 4, 2006.  

Future minimum lease payments for assets under capital leases at February 3, 2007 are as follows:  

 

2006 LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN  

In January 2006, following the approval of the Company's board of directors, the Company established the ValueVision Media, Inc. 2006 Long 
Term Incentive Plan. The purpose of the plan is to provide designated key employees with financial incentives tied to the Company's success in 
achieving challenging multi-year financial and business goals. Management believes that the plan will assist the Company in its ability to retain 
key employees, will reinforce a performance culture by rewarding measurable results over time and will tie a meaningful portion of key 
employees' total compensation to the achievement of multi-year corporate goals and objectives.  

Under the plan, for each performance period management and the compensation committee of the board of directors establishes performance 
measures under the plan and targets for these measures that must be achieved for awards under the plan. The initial performance period under 
the plan covers fiscal years 2006 through 2007. For this initial period, the committee determined that qualification for an incentive award under 
the plan will be tied to the attainment of targets established for four specific financial and business measures at the end of each of fiscal 2006 
and fiscal 2007. These measures are:  
net sales; EBITDA (as defined by the Company); net income; and gross margin dollars per hour. Awards are earned for achievement of the 
specific targets for each of the four measures at the rate of up to 50% of the potential incentive award for fiscal 2006 and at the rate of up to 
100% of the potential incentive award for fiscal 2007; however, the awards will not be cumulative. The board of directors has authorized the 
plan to operate only for the initial performance period of  
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FISCAL YEAR                                                     AMOUNT 
-----------                                                   -----------  
2007............................................... .........  $ 2,387,000  
2008............................................... .........    2,156,000  
2009............................................... .........    2,008,000  
2010............................................... .........    2,012,000  
2011 and thereafter................................ .........   14,335,000  

FISCAL YEAR 
----------- 
2007............................................... .........  $ 141,000 
                                                              --------- 
Total minimum lease payments....................... .........    141,000 
Less: Amounts representing interest................ .........     (7,000)  
                                                              --------- 
                                                                134,000 
Less: Current portion.............................. .........   (134,000)  
                                                              --------- 
Long-term capital lease obligation................. .........  $      -- 
                                                              ========= 
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fiscal years 2006 and 2007. The plan could be extended in future periods only upon an affirmative determination by the board of directors.  

All of the Company's named executive officers and certain key employees designated by management and the compensation committee of the 
board of directors were selected to participate in the plan for the initial period. Each plan participant will be eligible to receive a 100% payout 
of their target award equal to their base salary and annual bonus objective in the event that all of the targets set for each of the four plan 
measures are fully achieved at the end of fiscal 2007, and provided that such participant remains an employee in good standing of the Company 
at the time of payment under the plan, which is scheduled for early 2008. In the event all of the targets are not fully achieved during the 
performance period, the participant is eligible to receive a lesser amount under the plan based on the Company's performance, however, no 
amount will be awarded with respect to a plan measure unless at least 60% of the plan measure target is achieved. In the event of early 
termination or inoperability of the plan due to a change in control of the Company and termination of employment of a participant without 
cause by the company, the participant may receive a payment under the plan as if all of the targets had been achieved in the initial performance 
period. All payments under the plan will be made in cash. As of February 3, 2007, the Company has accrued approximately $2.6 million in 
connection with the 2006 Long Term Incentive Program.  

CHANGE IN CONTROL AND SEPARATION AGREEMENTS  

The Company has entered into change in control and separation agreements with a number of its officers under which separation pay of up to 
12 to 24 months of base salary and benefits could become payable in the event of terminations without cause only under specified 
circumstances, including terminations following a change in control (as defined in the related agreements) of the Company.  

RETIREMENT AND SAVINGS PLAN  

The Company maintains a qualified 401(k) retirement savings plan covering substantially all employees. The plan allows the Company's 
employees to make voluntary contributions to the plan. The Company's contribution, if any, is determined annually at the discretion of the 
board of directors. Starting in January 1999, the Company elected to make matching contributions to the plan. The Company currently matches 
$.50 for every $1.00 contributed by eligible participants up to a maximum of 6% of eligible compensation. The Company made plan 
contributions totaling approximately $860,000, $653,000 and $360,000 during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  

9. LITIGATION:  

The Company is involved from time to time in various claims and lawsuits in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, 
the claims and suits individually and in the aggregate have not had a material adverse effect on the Company's operations or consolidated 
financial statements.  

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:  

In conjunction with its services agreement with RLM, the Company records revenue for amounts billed to RLM for customer service, 
fulfillment and warehousing services. Revenues recorded from these services were $11,973,000, $11,259,000 and $8,705,000 for the years 
ended February 3, 2007, February 4, 2006 and January 31, 2005, respectively. Amounts due from RLM as of February 3, 2007 and February 4, 
2006 were $994,000 and $923,000, respectively. In the third quarter of fiscal 2006, RLM notified the Company that it had elected to extend the 
term of their existing services agreement with the Company to at least August 31, 2008.  
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The Company entered into an agreement with RightNow Technologies, Inc. ("RightNow") in 2005 under which the Company purchased 
software applications which enable the Company to utilize certain customer services technologies developed by RightNow. The Company's 
President and Chief Executive Officer, William J. Lansing, serves on the board of directors of RightNow. The Company made payments 
totaling approximately $171,000 during fiscal 2006 and $48,000 during fiscal 2005 for this technology and annual software maintenance fees 
relating to this technology and other services.  

The Company entered into a Private Label Credit Card and Co-Brand Credit Card Consumer Program Agreement with GE Money Bank for the 
financing of private label credit card purchases from ShopNBC and for the financing of co-brand credit card purchases of products and services 
from other non-ShopNBC retailers. GE Money Bank, the issuing bank for the program, is indirectly wholly-owned by the General Electric 
Company ("GE"), which is also the parent company of NBC and GE Commercial Finance -- Equity. NBC and GE Commercial Finance -- 
Equity have a substantial percentage ownership in the Company and together have the right to select three of the nine members of the 
Company's board of directors.  

The Company and NBC are partners in a ten-year Distribution and Marketing Agreement dated March 8, 1999 that provides that NBC shall 
have the exclusive right to negotiate on behalf of the Company for the distribution of its home shopping television programming service. As 
compensation for these services, the Company currently pays NBC an annual fee of approximately $1.8 million. As of February 3, 2007 the 
Company has accrued approximately $151,000 in connection with this distribution agreement with NBC.  

11. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:  

Supplemental cash flow information and noncash investing and financing activities were as follows:  
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                                                             FOR THE YEARS ENDED 
                                                   ---------------------------------------  
                                                   FEBRUARY 3,   FEBRUARY 4,   JANUARY 31,  
                                                      2007          2006          2005 
                                                   -----------   -----------   -----------  
Supplemental cash flow information: 
  Interest paid..................................  $    33,000   $  120,000     $198,000 
                                                   ===========   ==========     ======== 
  Income taxes paid..............................  $    66,000   $   71,000     $ 77,000 
                                                   ===========   ==========     ======== 
Supplemental non-cash investing and financing 
  activities: 
  Common stock purchase warrants forfeited.......  $11,057,000   $7,276,000     $     -- 
                                                   ===========   ==========     ======== 
  Exercise of common stock purchase warrants.....  $        --   $5,378,000     $955,000 
                                                   ===========   ==========     ======== 
  Restricted stock award.........................  $   468,000   $       --     $308,000 
                                                   ===========   ==========     ======== 
  Restricted stock forfeited.....................  $        --   $    9,000     $115,000 
                                                   ===========   ==========     ======== 
  Property and equipment purchases included in 
     accounts payable............................  $    98,000   $  883,000     $296,000 
                                                   ===========   ==========     ======== 
  Equipment purchases under capital lease........  $        --   $  258,000     $     -- 
                                                   ===========   ==========     ======== 
  Noncash reduction of capital lease obligation 
     from FanBuzz capital lease termination......  $        --   $  924,000     $     -- 
                                                   ===========   ==========     ======== 
  Accretion of redeemable preferred stock........  $   289,000   $  287,000     $285,000 
                                                   ===========   ==========     ======== 
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12. SEGMENT DISCLOSURES AND RELATED INFORMATION:  

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information" ("SFAS No. 
131"), requires the disclosure of certain information about operating segments in financial statements. The Company's reportable segments are 
based on the Company's method of internal reporting. The Company's primary business segment is its electronic media segment, which 
consists primarily of the Company's television home shopping business and internet shopping website business. Management has reviewed the 
provisions of SFAS No. 131 and has determined that the Company's television and internet home shopping businesses meet the aggregation 
criteria as outlined in SFAS No. 131 since these two businesses have similar customers, products, economic characteristics and sales processes. 
Products sold through the Company's electronic media segment primarily include jewelry, watches, computers and other electronics, 
housewares, apparel, health and beauty aids, fitness products, giftware, collectibles, seasonal items and other merchandise. The Company's 
segments currently operate in the United States and no one customer represents more than 5% of the Company's overall revenue. The 
accounting policies of the Company's segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies in Note 2. 
There are no material intersegment product sales. Segment information included in the consolidated balance sheets  
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as of February 3, 2007, February 4, 2006 and January 31, 2005 and included in the consolidated statements of operations for the years then 
ended is as follows (in thousands):  

 

(a) Revenue from segments below quantitative thresholds is attributable to VVIFC, which provides fulfillment, warehousing and telemarketing 
services primarily to RLM and the Company.  

(b) Equity Investment assets and net income from equity investments consist of long-term investments and earnings from equity investments 
accounted for under the equity method of accounting and are not directly assignable to a business segment.  
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                         SHOPNBC &      ALL          EQUITY       CONTINUING   FANBUZZ, INC. 
YEARS ENDED             SHOPNBC.COM   OTHER(A)   IN VESTMENTS(B)   OPERATIONS   (DISCONTINUED)    TOTAL  
-----------             -----------   --------   -- ------------   ----------   --------------   ------ -- 
FEBRUARY 3, 2007 
Revenues..............   $755,302     $11,973        $   --        $767,275       $             $ 
Operating income 
  (loss)..............    (10,705)      1,226            --          (9,479) 
Depreciation and 
  amortization........     21,548         691            --          22,239 
Interest income 
  (expense)...........      3,802          --            --           3,802 
Income taxes..........        (66)         (9)           --             (75) 
Net income (loss).....     (5,629)        227         3,006          (2,396)                      (2,3 96)  
Identifiable assets...    341,576       6,265         4,139         351,980                      351,9 80 
Capital 
  expenditures........     11,428          42            --          11,470                       11,4 70 
                         --------     -------        ------        --------       -------       ------ -- 
FEBRUARY 4, 2006 
Revenues..............   $680,592     $11,259        $   --        $691,851       $ 5,384       $ 
Operating income 
  (loss)..............    (19,888)      1,242            --         (18,646)       (2,235) 
Depreciation and 
  amortization........     19,707         862            --          20,569           302 
Interest income 
  (expense)...........      3,048          --            --           3,048           (61) 
Income tax benefit....        762          --            --             762            -- 
Net income (loss).....    (15,092)        252         1,383         (13,457)       (2,296)       (15,7 53)  
Identifiable assets...    338,939       6,461         1,383         346,783           356        347,1 39 
Capital 
  expenditures........      9,623          55            --           9,678            72          9,7 50 
                         --------     -------        ------        --------       -------       ------ -- 
JANUARY 31, 2005 
Revenues..............   $614,884     $ 8,750        $   --        $623,634       $25,782       $ 
Operating income 
  (loss)..............    (44,890)        619            --         (44,271)      (14,812) 
Depreciation and 
  amortization........     18,124         796            --          18,920         1,200 
Interest income 
  (expense)...........      1,627          --            --           1,627           (70) 
Income taxes..........        (25)         --            --             (25)           -- 
Net loss..............    (42,348)       (371)           --         (42,719)      (14,882)       (57,6 01)  
Identifiable assets...    338,245       7,044            --         345,289         5,007        350,2 96 
Capital 
  expenditures........     13,409       1,005            --          14,414           308         14,7 22 
                         --------     -------        ------        --------       -------       ------ -- 
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Information on net sales from continuing operations by significant product groups is as follows (in thousands):  

 

13. NBC AND GE EQUITY STRATEGIC ALLIANCE:  

In March 1999, the Company entered into a strategic alliance with NBC and GE Equity. Pursuant to the terms of the transaction, NBC and GE 
Equity acquired 5,339,500 shares of the Company's Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Preferred Stock"), and NBC was 
issued a warrant to acquire 1,450,000 shares of the Company's common stock (the "Distribution Warrants") under a Distribution and Marketing 
Agreement discussed below. The Preferred Stock was sold for aggregate consideration of $44,265,000 (or approximately $8.29 per share). In 
addition, the Company agreed to issue to GE Equity a warrant (the "Investment Warrant") to increase its potential aggregate equity stake 
(together with its affiliates, including NBC) at the time of exercise to approximately 40%. NBC also has the exclusive right to negotiate on 
behalf of the Company for the distribution of its television home shopping service. The sale of 3,739,500 shares of the Preferred Stock was 
completed on April 15, 1999. Final consummation of the transaction regarding the sale of the remaining 1,600,000 Preferred Stock shares was 
completed on June 2, 1999. The Preferred Stock was recorded at fair value on the date of issuance. The Preferred Stock is convertible into an 
equal number of shares of the Company's common stock, subject to anti-dilution adjustments, has a mandatory redemption on the tenth 
anniversary of its issuance or upon a "change of control" at $8.29 per share, participates in dividends on the same basis as the common stock 
and has a liquidation preference over the common stock and any other junior securities. The excess of the redemption value over the carrying 
value is being accreted by periodic charges to equity over the ten-year redemption period. On July 6, 1999, GE Equity exercised the Investment 
Warrant and acquired an additional 10,674,000 shares of the Company's common stock for an aggregate of $178,370,000, or $16.71 per share. 
Following the exercise of the Investment Warrant, the combined ownership of the Company by GE Equity and NBC on a fully diluted basis 
was approximately 40%. In February 2005, GE Equity sold 2,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock to a number of different 
purchasers. In July 2005, GE Equity entered into agreements to sell an additional 2,604,932 shares of the Company's common stock in 
privately negotiated transactions to a number of different purchasers. In connection with such transactions, the Company filed a registration 
statement on Form S-3 with the Securities and Exchange Commission in July 2005 with respect to an aggregate of 4,604,932 shares of the 
Company's common stock, pursuant to contractual registration rights obligations. The Company received no proceeds from the sale of the 
shares covered by the registration statement. GE Equity and NBC currently have a combined ownership in the Company of approximately 27% 
on a diluted basis.  

SHAREHOLDER AGREEMENT  

In March 1999, the Company and GE Equity also entered into a Shareholder Agreement (the "Shareholder Agreement"), which provides for 
certain corporate governance and standstill matters. The  
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                                                                FOR THE YEARS ENDED 
                                                      ---------------------------------------  
                                                      FEBRUARY 3,   FEBRUARY 4,   JANUARY 31,  
                                                         2007          2006          2005 
                                                      -----------   -----------   -----------  
Jewelry............................................ .   $285,262      $278,928      $288,142 
Electronics........................................ .    173,121       140,460        93,089 
Watches, Apparel and Health & Beauty............... .    181,093       145,697       134,900 
Home............................................... .     80,934        78,116        73,674 
All others, less than 10% each..................... .     46,865        48,650        33,829 
                                                       --------      --------      -------- 
  Total............................................ .   $767,275      $691,851      $623,634 
                                                       ========      ========      ======== 
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Shareholder Agreement (together with the Certificate of Designation of the Preferred Stock) initially provided that GE Equity and NBC would 
be entitled to designate nominees for two out of seven members of the Company's board of directors so long as their aggregate beneficial 
ownership was at least equal to 50% of their initial beneficial ownership, and one out of seven members so long as their aggregate beneficial 
ownership was at least 10% of the "adjusted outstanding shares of common stock." The Shareholder Agreement also requires the consent of GE 
Equity prior to the Company entering into any material agreements with certain restricted parties (broadcast networks and internet portals in 
certain limited circumstances). Finally, the Company is prohibited from exceeding certain thresholds relating to the issuance of voting 
securities over a 12-month period, the payment of quarterly dividends, the repurchase of common stock, acquisitions (including investments 
and joint ventures) or dispositions, and the incurrence of debt greater than the larger of $40.0 million or 30% of the Company's total 
capitalization. The Company is also prohibited from taking any action that would cause any ownership interest by the Company in television 
broadcast stations from being attributable to GE Equity, NBC or their affiliates.  

The Shareholder Agreement provides that during the Standstill Period (as defined in the Shareholder Agreement), and subject to certain limited 
exceptions, GE Equity and NBC are prohibited from: (i) any asset or business purchases from the Company in excess of 10% of the total fair 
market value of the Company's assets, (ii) increasing their beneficial ownership above 39.9% of the Company's shares, (iii) making or in any 
way participating in any solicitation of proxies, (iv) depositing any securities of the Company in a voting trust, (v) forming, joining, or in any 
way becoming a member of a "13D Group" with respect to any voting securities of the Company, (vi) arranging any financing for, or providing 
any financing commitment specifically for, the purchase of any voting securities of the Company, (vii) otherwise acting, whether alone or in 
concert with others, to seek to propose to the Company any tender or exchange offer, merger, business combination, restructuring, liquidation, 
recapitalization or similar transaction involving the Company, or nominating any person as a director of the Company who is not nominated by 
the then incumbent directors, or proposing any matter to be voted upon by the shareholders of the Company. If, during the standstill period, any 
inquiry has been made regarding a "takeover transaction" or "change in control," each as defined in the Shareholder Agreement, which has not 
been rejected by the Board, or the Board pursues such a transaction, or engages in negotiations or provides information to a third party and the 
Board has not resolved to terminate such discussions, then GE Equity or NBC may propose to the Company a tender offer or business 
combination proposal.  

In addition, unless GE Equity and NBC beneficially own less than 5% or more than 90% of the adjusted outstanding shares of common stock, 
GE Equity and NBC shall not sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any securities of the Company except for transfers: (i) to certain affiliates 
who agree to be bound by the provisions of the Shareholder Agreement, (ii) which have been consented to by the Company, (iii) pursuant to a 
third party tender offer, (iv) pursuant to a merger, consolidation or reorganization to which the Company is a party, (v) in a bona fide public 
distribution or bona fide underwritten public offering, (vi) pursuant to Rule 144 of the Securities Act of 1933, or (vii) in a private sale or 
pursuant to Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933; provided that, in the case of any transfer pursuant to clause (v) or (vii), the transfer does 
not result in, to the knowledge of the transferor after reasonable inquiry, any other person acquiring, after giving effect to such transfer, 
beneficial ownership, individually or in the aggregate with such person's affiliates, of more than 10% of the adjusted outstanding shares of the 
common stock.  

The standstill period will terminate on the earliest to occur of (i) the ten-year anniversary of the Shareholder Agreement, (ii) the entering into 
by the Company of an agreement that would result in a "change in control" (subject to reinstatement), (iii) an actual "change in control," (iv) a 
third party tender offer (subject to reinstatement), or (v) six months after GE Equity and NBC can no longer designate any nominees to the 
Board. Following the expiration of the standstill period pursuant to clause (i) or (v) above (indefinitely in the case of clause (i) and two years in 
the case of clause (v)), GE Equity and NBC's  
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beneficial ownership position may not exceed 39.9% of the Company's fully-diluted outstanding stock, except pursuant to issuance or exercise 
of any warrants or pursuant to a 100% tender offer for the Company.  

On March 19, 2004 the Company, NBC and GE Equity agreed to amend the Shareholder Agreement as follows: (i) to increase the authorized 
size of the Company's board of directors to nine from seven, (ii) to permit NBC and GE Equity together to appoint three directors instead of 
two to the Company's board of directors, and (iii) to provide that NBC and GE Equity would no longer have the right to have its director-
nominees serve on the Audit, Compensation or Nominating and Governance Committees, in the event the committees must be comprised 
solely of "independent" directors under applicable laws or Nasdaq regulations. In such case, NBC and GE Equity would have the right to have 
an observer attend all of these committee meetings, to the extent permitted by applicable law.  

REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT  

Pursuant to the Investment Agreement, the Company and GE Equity entered into a Registration Rights Agreement providing GE Equity, NBC 
and their affiliates and any transferees and assigns, an aggregate of four demand registrations and unlimited piggy-back registration rights.  

DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING AGREEMENT  

NBC and the Company entered into a ten-year Distribution and Marketing Agreement dated March 8, 1999 (the "Distribution Agreement") that 
provides that NBC shall have the exclusive right to negotiate on behalf of the Company for the distribution of its home shopping television 
programming. As compensation for these services, the Company agreed to pay NBC an annual fee which was approximately $1.8 million in 
fiscal 2006, and issued NBC 1,450,000 distribution warrants. On March 28, 2007, the Company and NBC agreed to reduce the amount of the 
annual fee payable to NBC to a market rate. See Note 17. The exercise price of the distribution warrants was $8.29 per share. In conjunction 
with the Company's November 2000 execution of the Trademark License Agreement with NBC, the Company agreed to accelerate the vesting 
of the unvested original Distribution Warrants. On April 7, 2004, NBC exercised a portion of the original Distribution Warrants in a cashless 
exercise acquiring 101,509 shares of the Company's common stock. In November 2005, NBC exercised all remaining original Distribution 
Warrants in a cashless exercise acquiring 281,199 additional shares of the Company's common stock. Because NBC successfully delivered to 
the Company 10 million FTE homes pursuant to the Distribution Agreement, in fiscal 2001, the Company issued to NBC additional warrants to 
purchase 343,725 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of $23.07 which expired unexercised during fiscal 2006 and in 
fiscal 2002, the Company issued to NBC additional warrants to purchase 36,858 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of 
$15.74 which are currently outstanding. The Company had a right to terminate the Distribution Agreement after the twenty-fourth, thirty-sixth 
and forty-second month anniversary if NBC was unable to meet the performance targets. In addition, the Company would have been entitled to 
a $2.5 million payment from NBC if the Company terminated the Distribution Agreement as a result of NBC's failure to meet the 24-month 
performance target. NBC may terminate the Distribution Agreement if the Company enters into certain "significant affiliation" agreements or a 
transaction resulting in a "change of control."  

14. RALPH LAUREN MEDIA, LLC ELECTRONIC COMMERCE ALLIANCE (RLM):  

During fiscal 2006, the Company owned a 12.5% equity interest in RLM which was being accounted for under the equity method of 
accounting. RLM's primary business activity to date has been the operations of the Polo.com website. Polo.com officially launched in 
November 2000 and includes an assortment of men's,  
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women's and children's products across the Ralph Lauren family of brands as well as unique gift items. In connection with the formation of 
RLM, the Company entered into various agreements setting forth the manner in which certain aspects of the business of RLM are to be 
managed and certain of the members' rights, duties and obligations with respect to RLM, including the Amended and Restated Limited 
Liability Company Agreement, pursuant to which certain terms and conditions regarding operations of RLM and certain rights and obligations 
of its members are set forth. On March 28, 2007, the Company sold its 12.5% ownership interest in RLM to Polo Ralph Lauren for 
approximately $43.8 million. See Note 17.  

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES  

RLM and VVIFC entered into an Agreement for Services under which VVIFC agreed to provide to RLM certain telemarketing, customer 
support and fulfillment services to RLM. In the third quarter of fiscal 2006, RLM notified the Company that it had elected to extend the term of 
their existing services agreement with the Company to at least August 31, 2008. RLM has advised the Company that it intends to develop the 
capability to provide these services internally in the future. On March 28, 2007, VVIFC and RLM entered into an amendment to the agreement 
for services providing for certain changes to the agreement, including a potential extension of the term through mid-2009 at RLM's option. See 
Note 17.  

15. NBC TRADEMARK LICENSE AGREEMENT:  

On November 16, 2000, the Company entered into a Trademark License Agreement (the "License Agreement") with NBC pursuant to which 
NBC granted the Company an exclusive, worldwide license for a term of ten years to use certain NBC trademarks, service marks and domain 
names to rebrand the Company's business and corporate name and website. Under the License Agreement, the Company agreed to (i) certain 
restrictions on using trademarks, service marks, domain names, logos or other source indicators owned or controlled by NBC or its affiliates in 
connection with certain permitted businesses (the "Permitted Businesses"), as defined in the License Agreement, before the agreement of NBC 
to such use, (ii) the loss of its rights under the grant of the license with respect to specific territories outside of the United States in the event the 
Company fails to achieve and maintain certain performance targets in such territories, (iii) amend and restate the current Registration Rights 
Agreement dated as of April 15, 1999 among the Company, NBC and GE Equity so as to increase the demand rights held by NBC and GE 
Equity from four to five, among other things, (iv) not, own, operate, acquire or expand its business to include any businesses other than the 
Permitted Businesses without NBC's prior consent, (v) comply with NBC's privacy policies and standards and practices, and (vi) not own, 
operate, acquire or expand the Company's business such that one-third or more of the Company's revenues or its aggregate value is attributable 
to certain services (not including retailing services similar to the Company's existing e-commerce operations) provided over the internet. The 
License Agreement also grants to NBC the right to terminate the License Agreement at any time upon certain changes of control of the 
Company, in certain situations the failure by NBC to own a certain minimum percentage of the outstanding capital stock of the Company on a 
fully-diluted basis and certain other related matters. On March 28, 2007, the Company and NBC agreed to extend the term of the license by six 
months, such that the license would continue through May 15, 2011. See Note 17.  

16. ASSET IMPAIRMENTS AND EMPLOYEE TERMINATION COSTS:  

During the quarter ended April 30, 2005, a number of FanBuzz customers notified the Company that they elected not to renew the term of their 
e-commerce services agreements with FanBuzz or decided to terminate their agreements as permitted in the agreement. Following these 
notifications, the Company assessed whether there had been an impairment of the FanBuzz long-lived assets in accordance with Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets" ("SFAS No. 144"). The 
Company performed a cash flow analysis and concluded that the book value of certain long-lived assets at FanBuzz was significantly higher 
than their probability-weighted expected  
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future cash flows and that an impairment had occurred. Accordingly, the Company recorded a non-cash impairment loss and related charge of 
$400,000 in the first quarter of fiscal 2005. The impairment charge is included in loss from discontinued operations in the accompanying 
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended February 4, 2006.  

During fiscal 2005, the Company also recorded an additional $979,000 charge to earnings and established a related accrual primarily in 
connection with the downsizing of the FanBuzz operations. The charge consisted primarily of severance pay and related benefit costs 
associated with the elimination of approximately 25 positions. The severance was paid out over periods ranging from one to twelve months. Of 
this charge, $897,000 is included in loss from discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the year 
ended February 4, 2006.  

In the third quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company wrote off goodwill attributable to the FanBuzz acquisition as the Company had determined that 
the goodwill was impaired following FanBuzz's loss of its NHL contract in September 2004. In addition, the Company also concluded that the 
book value of certain long-lived assets at FanBuzz was significantly higher than their expected future cash flows and that an impairment had 
occurred in accordance with SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets." Accordingly, the Company 
recorded a non-cash impairment loss and related charge of $11,302,000 in the third quarter of fiscal 2004. The charges included $9,442,000 of 
goodwill impairment, $1,700,000 of fixed asset and capital expenditure impairment and $160,000 of intangible asset impairment. The 
impairment is included in loss from discontinued operations in the accompanying fiscal 2004 consolidated statement of operations.  

In addition, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company recorded an asset impairment charge of $1,900,000 related to deferred advertising 
costs in the form of television advertising credits with NBC after it was determined that the Company could no longer effectively use the 
credits. During the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2004, the Company also recorded a $3,836,000 charge to earnings in connection with the 
decision to eliminate a number of positions within the Company in an effort to streamline the corporate organization and reduce operating 
expenses. The charges consisted primarily of severance pay and related benefit costs associated with the elimination of approximately 30 
positions.  

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENT:  

On March 26, 2007, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, VVIFC, and RLM entered into a rider to the existing agreement for services 
(as amended) under which VVIFC provides RLM with fulfillment and certain customer support services. The term of the agreement for 
services, as amended in October 2006, extends through August 2008. Pursuant to the terms of the rider, VVIFC and RLM further agreed to 
certain changes to the agreement for services (as amended), including VVIFC's agreement to extend the term of the agreement through mid-
2009 if so requested by RLM.  

On March 28, 2007, the Company entered into a Membership Interest Purchase Agreement ("Purchase Agreement") with Polo Ralph Lauren, 
NBC and certain NBC affiliates, pursuant to which the Company sold its 12.5% membership interest in RLM to Polo Ralph Lauren for an 
aggregate purchase price of $43,750,000. The full text of the Purchase Agreement is attached as an exhibit to the Company's Current Report on 
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 3, 2007.  

Concurrently with the execution of the Purchase Agreement, the Company also entered into an amendment to the License Agreement (for the 
limited, worldwide use of NBC trademarks, service marks, domain names and logos), under which NBC agreed to extend the term of the 
License Agreement to May 15, 2011 and to certain limitations on NBC's right to terminate the License Agreement in the event of a change in 
control of the Company involving a financial buyer. On the same date, the Company and NBC also entered into an amendment to the 
Distribution Agreement providing for a reduction in the annual affiliate relations and marketing fee paid by the Company to NBC to a market 
rate.  
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE  

None  

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES  

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES  

As of the end of the period covered by this report, management conducted an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our 
chief executive officer and chief financial officer of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) 
and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). Based on this evaluation, the officers concluded that our disclosure controls and 
procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange 
Commission rules and forms, and to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange 
Act is accumulated and communicated to management, including our principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to 
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.  

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC IAL REPORTING  

The management of ValueVision Media, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting 
as defined in Rules 13a-15 (f) under the Securities Exchange Act 1934. The Company's internal control system was designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective 
can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Because of its inherent limitations, 
internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future 
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007. In making this 
assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal 
Control -- Integrated Framework.  

Based on management's evaluation under the framework in Internal Control -- Integrated Framework, management concluded that the 
Company's internal control over financial reporting was effective as of February 3, 2007.  
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Management's assessment of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, has been audited by Deloitte & 
Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report.  

 

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTI NG  

Management, with the participation of the chief executive officer and chief financial officer, performed an evaluation as to whether any change 
in the internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) occurred 
during the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation the chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that no 
change occurred in the internal controls over financial reporting during the period covered by this report that materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the internal controls over financial reporting.  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors ValueVision Media, Inc. and Subsidiaries  

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying "Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial 
Reporting", that ValueVision Media, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the "Company") maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of 
February 3, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control -- Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over 
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on management's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on 
our audit.  

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was 
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating 
management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.  

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the Company's principal executive 
and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the Company's board of directors, management, and 
other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.  

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

In our opinion, management's assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 
2007, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control -- Integrated Framework issued by the Committee 
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective 
internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control -- Integrated Framework issued 
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.  
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We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated 
financial statements and financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15 as of and for the year ended February 3, 2007, of the 
Company and our report dated April 11, 2007, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements and financial statement schedule 
and included an explanatory paragraph relating to the Company's change in 2006 of its method of accounting for stock-based compensation.  

 

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION  

None  

PART III  

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE  

Information in response to this item with respect to certain information relating to our executive officers is contained in Item 1 under the 
heading "Executive Officers of the Registrant" and with respect to other information relating to our executive officers and directors is 
incorporated herein by reference to the sections titled "Proposal 1 -- Election of Directors" and "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting 
Compliance" in our definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered 
by this Form 10-K.  

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS  

We have adopted a code of business conduct and ethics applicable to all of our directors and employees, including our principal executive 
officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer, controller and other employees performing similar functions. A copy of this 
code of business conduct and ethics is available on our website at www.shopnbc.com, under "Investor Relations -- Business Ethics Policy." In 
addition, we have adopted a code of ethics policy for our senior financial management; this policy is also available on our website at 
www.shopnbc.com, under "Investor Relations -- Code of Ethics Policy for Chief Executive and Senior Financial Officers."  

We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirements under Form 8-K regarding an amendment to, or waiver from, a provision of our code of 
business conduct and ethics by posting such information on our website at the address specified above.  

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION  

Information in response to this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections titled "Proposal 1 -- Election of Directors -- Director 
Compensation" and "Executive Compensation" in our definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after 
the end of the fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K.  

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED 
SHAREHOLDER MATTERS  

Information in response to this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections titled "Security Ownership of Principal Shareholders and 
Management" and "Equity Compensation Plan Information" in our definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A within 
120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K.  
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE  

Information in response to this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section titled "Certain Transactions" and "Proposal 1 -- Election 
of Directors" in our definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered 
by this Form 10-K.  

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES  

Information in response to this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section titled "Proposal 2 -- Ratification of the Independent 
Registered Public Accounting Firm -- Fees Billed by Deloitte & Touche LLP" and "Proposal  
2 -- Ratification of the Independent Auditors -- Approval of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Services and Fees" in our 
definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K.  

PART IV  

ITEM 15. EXHIBIT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE  

1. Financial Statements  

- Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  

- Consolidated Balance Sheets as of February 3, 2007 and February 4, 2006  

- Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended February 3, 2007, February 4, 2006 and January 31, 2005  

- Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the Years Ended February 3, 2007, February 4, 2006 and January 31, 2005  

- Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended February 3, 2007, February 4, 2006 and January 31, 2005  

- Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  
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2. Financial Statement Schedule  

VALUEVISION MEDIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

SCHEDULE II VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS  

 

(1) Write off of uncollectible receivables, net of recoveries.  

(2) Refunds or credits on products returned.  

3. Exhibits  

EXHIBIT INDEX  
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              COLUMN A                   COLUMN B       COLUMN C       COLUMN D          COLUMN E 
-------------------------------------  ------------    ------------   -------------      -----------  
                                                       ADDITIONS 
                                                      ------------ 
                                       BALANCES AT     CHARGED TO 
                                       BEGINNING OF     COSTS AND                        BALANCE AT 
                                           YEAR         EXPENSES      DEDUCTIONS        END OF YEAR  
                                       ------------    ------------   -------------      -----------  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 3, 2007: 
Allowance for doubtful accounts......   $2,478,000    $  6,065,000   $  (4,902,000)(1)  $3,641,000 
                                        ==========    ============   =============      ========== 
Reserve for returns..................   $7,658,000    $142,983,000   $(142,143,000)(2)  $8,498,000 
                                        ==========    ============   =============      ========== 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 4, 2006: 
Allowance for doubtful accounts......   $2,421,000    $  4,542,000   $  (4,485,000)(1)  $2,478,000 
                                        ==========    ============   =============      ========== 
Reserve for returns..................   $7,290,000    $131,682,000   $(131,314,000)(2)  $7,658,000 
                                        ==========    ============   =============      ========== 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2005: 
Allowance for doubtful accounts......   $2,054,000    $  4,303,000   $  (3,936,000)(1)  $2,421,000 
                                        ==========    ============   =============      ========== 
Reserve for returns..................   $8,780,000    $120,238,000   $(121,728,000)(2)  $7,290,000 
                                        ==========    ============   =============      ========== 

EXHIBIT 
 NUMBER                                EXHIBIT 
-------                                ------- 
  2          Membership Interest Purchase Agreement  dated as of March 28,  
             2007 by and among Polo Ralph Lauren Co rporation, Ralph 
             Lauren Media, LLC, NBC-Lauren Media Ho lding, Inc., NBC 
             Universal, Inc., CNBC.COM LLC, and Val ueVision Media, 
             Inc.(FF) 
  3.1        Sixth Amended and Restated Articles of  Incorporation, as 
             Amended.(B) 
  3.2        Certificate of Designation of Series A  Redeemable 
             Convertible Preferred Stock.(G) 
  3.3        Articles of Merger.(Q) 
  3.4        Bylaws, as amended.(B) 
 10.1        Second Amended 1990 Stock Option Plan of the Registrant (as 
             amended and restated).(H)+ 
 10.2        Form of Option Agreement under the Ame nded 1990 Stock Option  
             Plan of the Registrant.(A)+ 
 10.3        1994 Executive Stock Option and Compen sation Plan of the 
             Registrant.(D)+ 
 10.4        Form of Option Agreement under the 199 4 Executive Stock 
             Option and Compensation Plan of the Re gistrant.(E)+ 
 10.5        2001 Omnibus Stock Plan of the Registr ant.(N)+ 
 10.6        Amendment No. 1 to the 2001 Omnibus St ock Plan of the 
             Registrant.(P)+ 
 10.7        Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreeme nt under the 2001 
             Omnibus Stock Plan of the Registrant.( R)+ 
 10.8        Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agre ement under the 2001 
             Omnibus Stock Plan of the Registrant.( R)+ 

EXHIBIT 
 NUMBER                                EXHIBIT 
-------                                ------- 
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 10.9        Form of Restricted Stock Agreement und er the 2001 Omnibus 
             Stock Plan of the Registrant.(R)+ 
 10.10       Option Agreement between the Registran t and Marshall Geller 
             dated as of March 3, 1997.(A)+ 
 10.11       Option Agreement between the Registran t and Marshall Geller 
             dated May 9, 2001.(N)+ 
 10.12       Option Agreement between the Registran t and Marshall Geller 
             dated June 21, 2001.(N)+ 
 10.13       Option Agreement between the Registran t and Robert Korkowski  
             dated March 3, 1997.(A)+ 
 10.14       Option Agreement between the Registran t and Robert Korkowski  
             dated May 9, 2001.(N)+ 
 10.15       Option Agreement between the Registran t and Robert Korkowski  
             dated June 21, 2001.(N)+ 
 10.16       Employment Agreement between the Regis trant and William J. 
             Lansing dated December 1, 2003.(S)+ 
 10.17       Option Agreement between the Registran t and William J. 
             Lansing dated December 1, 2003.(S)+ 
 10.18       Option Agreement between the Registran t and Nathan Fagre 
             dated May 1, 2000.(K)+ 
 10.19       2002 Annual Management Incentive Plan of the Registrant.(P)+  
 10.20       Employment Agreement between the Regis trant and Nathan E. 
             Fagre dated April 30, 2000.(M)+ 
 10.21       Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreemen t between Registrant 
             and Nathan E. Fagre dated as of April 5, 2001.(R)+ 
 10.22       Form of Salary Continuation Agreement between the Registrant  
             and each of Nathan Fagre dated July 2,  2003 and Scott 
             Danielson dated June 16, 2004.(T)+ 
 10.23       Option Agreement between the Registran t and Jim Gilbertson 
             dated November 30, 2005.(EE)+ 
 10.24       Form of Option Agreement between the R egistrant and each of 
             Brenda Boehler and Scott Danielson.(U) + 
 10.25       Investment Agreement by and between th e Registrant and GE 
             Equity dated as of March 8, 1999.(F) 
 10.26       First Amendment and Agreement dated as  of April 15, 1999 to 
             the Investment Agreement, dated as of March 8, 1999, by and 
             between the Registrant and GE Equity.( G) 
 10.27       Distribution and Marketing Agreement d ated as of March 8, 
             1999 by and between NBC and the Regist rant.(F) 
 10.28       Letter Agreement dated March 8, 1999 b etween NBC, GE Equity 
             and the Registrant.(F) 
 10.29       Shareholder Agreement dated April 15, 1999 between the 
             Registrant, and GE Equity.(G) 
 10.30       Amendment No. 1 dated March 19, 2004 t o Shareholder 
             Agreement dated April 15, 1999 between  the Registrant, NBC 
             and GE Equity.(V) 
 10.31       ValueVision Common Stock Purchase Warr ant dated as of April 
             15, 1999 issued to GE Equity.(G) 
 10.32       Registration Rights Agreement dated Ap ril 15, 1999 between 
             the Registrant, GE Equity and NBC.(G) 
 10.33       ValueVision Common Stock Purchase Warr ant dated as of April 
             15, 1999 issued to NBC.(G) 
 10.34       Letter Agreement dated November 16, 20 00 between the 
             Registrant and NBC.(M) 
 10.35       Warrant Purchase Agreement dated Septe mber 13, 1999 between 
             the Registrant, Snap!LLC, a Delaware l imited liability 
             company and Xoom.com, Inc., a Delaware  corporation.(I) 
 10.36       Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated Se ptember 13, 1999 to 
             purchase shares of the Registrant held  by Xoom.com, Inc., a 
             Delaware corporation.(I) 
 10.37       Registration Rights Agreement dated Se ptember 13, 1999 
             between the registrant and Xoom.com, I nc., a Delaware 
             corporation, relating to Xoom.com, Inc .'s warrant to 
             purchase shares of the Registrant.(I) 
 10.38       Amended and Restated Limited Liability  Company Agreement of 
             Ralph Lauren Media, LLC, a Delaware li mited liability 
             company, dated as of February 7, 2000,  among Polo Ralph 
             Lauren Corporation, a Delaware corpora tion, National 
             Broadcasting Company, Inc., a Delaware  corporation, the 
             Registrant, CNBC.com LLC, a Delaware l imited liability 
             company and NBC Internet, Inc., a Dela ware corporation.(J) 

EXHIBIT 
 NUMBER                                EXHIBIT 
-------                                ------- 
 10.39       Agreement for Services dated February 7, 2000 between Ralph 
             Lauren Media, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and  
             VVI Fulfillment Center, Inc., a Minnes ota corporation.(J) 
 10.40       Amendment to Agreement for Services da ted as of January 31, 
             2003 between Ralph Lauren Media, LLC a nd VVI Fulfillment 
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             Center, Inc.(R) 
 10.41       Trademark License Agreement dated as o f November 16, 2000 
             between NBC and the Registrant.(L) 
 10.42       Warrant Purchase Agreement dated as of  November 16, 2000 
             between NBC and the Registrant.(L) 
 10.43       Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated as  of November 16, 2000 
             between NBC and the Registrant.(L) 
 10.44       Amendment No. 1 dated March 12, 2001 t o Common Stock 
             Purchase Warrant dated as of November 16, 2000 between NBC 
             and the Registrant.(O) 
 10.45       ValueVision Common Stock Purchase Warr ant dated as of March 
             20, 2001 between NBC and the Registran t.(O) 
 10.46       2004 Omnibus Stock Plan.(V)+ 
 10.47       Form of Stock Option Agreement (Employ ees) under 2004 
             Omnibus Stock Plan.(W)+ 
 10.48       Form of Stock Option Agreement (Execut ive Officers) under 
             2004 Omnibus Stock Plan.(W)+ 
 10.49       Form of Stock Option Agreement (Execut ive Officers) under 
             2004 Omnibus Stock Plan.(W)+ 
 10.50       Form of Stock Option Agreement (Direct ors -- Annual Grant) 
             under 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan.(W)+ 
 10.51       Form of Stock Option Agreement (Direct ors -- Other Grants) 
             under 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan.(W)+ 
 10.52       Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of F ebruary 9, 2005 
             between GE Capital Equity Investments,  Inc. and Delta 
             Onshore, LP, Delta Institutional, LP, Delta Pleiades, LP and  
             Delta Offshore, Ltd.(Z) 
 10.53       Stock Purchase and Registration Agreem ent dated as of July 
             8, 2005 between GE Capital Equity Inve stments, Inc. and 
             Janus Investment Fund.(Y) 
 10.54       Stock Purchase and Registration Agreem ent dated as of July 
             8, 2005 between GE Capital Equity Inve stments, Inc. and 
             Caxton International Limited.(Y) 
 10.55       Stock Purchase and Registration Agreem ent dated as of July 
             8, 2005 between GE Capital Equity Inve stments, Inc. and 
             Magnetar Investment Management, LLC.(Y ) 
 10.56       Stock Purchase and Registration Agreem ent dated as of July 
             8, 2005 between GE Capital Equity Inve stments, Inc. and RCG 
             Ambrose Master Fund, Ltd., RCG Halifax  Fund, Ltd., Ramius 
             Securities, LLC, Starboard Value and O pportunity Fund, LLC, 
             Parche, LLC and Ramius Master Fund, Lt d.(Y) 
 10.57       Employment Agreement between the Regis trant and Bryan 
             Venberg dated May 3, 2004.(X)+ 
 10.58       Form of Change of Control and Severanc e Agreement with 
             Executive Officers.(AA)+ 
 10.59       Form of Resale Restriction Agreement w ith Executive 
             Officers.(BB)+ 
 10.60       2006 Long Term Incentive Plan.(CC)+ 
 10.61       Description of Director Compensation P rogram(C) 
 10.62       Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (Di rectors) under 2004 
             Omnibus Stock Plan. (DD) 
 21          Significant Subsidiaries of the Regist rant.* 
 23.1        Consent of Independent Registered Publ ic Accounting Firm.* 
 23.2        Consent of Independent Registered Publ ic Accounting Firm.* 
 23.3        Consent of Independent Registered Publ ic Accounting Firm (by  
             amendment)++ 
 24          Powers of Attorney** 
 31.1        Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification  of Chief Executive 
             Officer.* 
 31.2        Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification  of Chief Financial 
             Officer.* 
 32.1        Section 1350 Certification of Chief Ex ecutive Officer.* 
 32.2        Section 1350 Certification of Chief Fi nancial Officer.* 



 

* Filed herewith.  

** Included with Signatures.  

+ Management compensatory plan/arrangement.  

++ To be filed by amendment.  

(A) Incorporated herein by reference to Quantum Direct Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed on March 13, 1998, File No. 
333-47979.  

(B) Incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended August 31, 1994, filed on 
September 13, 1994, File No. 0-20243.  

(C) Incorporated herein by reference to the description of this program contained in the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 14, 
2006, filed on June 20, 2006, File No. 0-20243.  

(D) Incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Proxy Statement in connection with its annual meeting of shareholders held on August 
17, 1994, filed on July 19, 1994, File No. 0-20243.  

(E) Incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1998, filed on April 
30, 1998, File No. 0-20243.  

(F) Incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 8, 1999, filed on March 18, 1999, File No. 0-
20243.  

(G) Incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 15, 1999, filed on April 29, 1999, File No. 0-
20243.  

(H) Incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed on September 25, 2000, File No. 333-46572.  

(I) Incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31, 1999, filed on September 
14, 1999, File No. 0-20243.  

(J) Incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2000, File No. 0-
20243.  

(K) Incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed on September 25, 2000, File No. 333-46576.  

(L) Incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 2000, filed on 
December 14, 2000, File No. 0-20243.  

(M) Incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2001, File No. 0-
20243.  

(N) Incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on January 25, 2002, File No. 333-81438.  

(O) Incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 30, 2001, filed on June 14, 
2001, File No. 0-20243.  

(P) Incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Proxy Statement in connection with its annual meeting of shareholders held on June 20, 
2002, filed on May 23, 2002, File No. 0-20243.  

EXHIBIT 
 NUMBER                                EXHIBIT 
-------                                ------- 
 99.1        Audited Financial Statements for Ralph  Lauren Media, LLC as  
             of April 1, 2006, and for the fifteen- month period ended 
             April 1, 2006* 
 99.2        Audited Financial Statements for Ralph  Lauren Media, LLC as  
             of March 31, 2007, and for the year en ded March 31, 2007 ++  



(Q) Incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K Dated May 16, 2002, filed on May 17, 2002, File No. 0-
20243.  

(R) Incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2003, File No. 0-
20243.  

(S) Incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 1, 2003, filed on December 3, 2003, File 
No. 0-20243.  

(T) Incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, filed on August 
15, 2003, File No. 0-20243.  

86  



 
87  

(U)   Incorporated herein by reference to the Regis trant's Registration 
      Statement on Form S-8 filed on March 19, 2004 , File No. 333-113736. 
 
(V)   Incorporated herein by reference to the Regis trant's Proxy Statement in 
      connection with its annual meeting of shareho lders held on June 21, 2006,  
      filed on May 23, 2006, File No. 0-20243. 
 
(W)   Incorporated herein by reference to the Regis trant's Current Report on 
      Form 8-K dated January 14, 2005, filed on Jan uary 14, 2005, File No. 
      0-20243. 
 
(X)   Incorporated herein by reference to the Regis trant's Quarterly Report on 
      Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 30, 200 5, filed on June 9, 2005, 
      File No. 0-20243. 
 
(Z)   Incorporated by reference to the Schedule 13D /A (Amendment No. 7) dated 
      February 11, 2005, filed February 15, 2005, F ile No. 005-41757. 
 
(Y)   Incorporated herein by reference to the Regis trant's Registration 
      Statement on Form S-3 filed on July 29, 2005,  File No. 333-127040. 
 
(AA)  Incorporated by reference to the description of this program included in 
      the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K d ated August 24, 2005, filed 
      on August 26, 2005, File No. 0-20243. 
 
(BB)  Incorporated herein by reference to the Regis trant's Quarterly Report on 
      Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 29, 2 005, filed on December 8, 
      2005, File No. 0-20243. 
 
(CC)  Incorporated herein by reference to the Regis trant's Current Report on 
      Form 8-K dated December 19, 2005, filed on De cember 23, 2005, File No. 
      0-20243. 
 
(DD)  Incorporated herein by reference to the Regis trant's Current Report on 
      Form 8-K dated June 21, 2006, filed on June 2 6, 2006, File No. 0-20243. 
 
(EE)  Incorporated herein by reference to the Regis trant's Registration 
      Statement on Form S-8 filed on December 22, 2 006, File No. 333-13957. 
 
(FF)  Incorporated herein by reference to the Regis trant's Current Report on 
      Form 8-K dated March 28, 2007, filed on April  3, 2007, File No. 0-20243. 



SIGNATURES  

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be 
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on April 17, 2007.  

VALUEVISION MEDIA, INC.  
(Registrant)  

 

Each of the undersigned hereby appoints William J. Lansing and Frank P. Elsenbast, and each of them (with full power to act alone), as 
attorneys and agents for the undersigned, with full power of substitution, for and in the name, place and stead of the undersigned, to sign and 
file with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1934, any and all amendments and exhibits to this annual report 
on Form 10-K and any and all applications, instruments, and other documents to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
pertaining to this annual report on Form 10-K or any amendments thereto, with full power and authority to do and perform any and all acts and 
things whatsoever requisite and necessary or desirable. Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has 
been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on April 17, 2007.  
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By:    /s/ WILLIAM J. LANSING 
  ------------------------------------ 
           William J. Lansing 
      Chief Executive Officer and 
                President 

                      NAME                                                TITLE 
                      ----                                                ----- 
 
             /s/ WILLIAM J. LANSING                   Chief Executive Officer President and Director  
------------------------------------------------              (Principal Executive Officer) 
               William J. Lansing 
 
 
             /s/ FRANK P. ELSENBAST                   Senior Vice President Finance, Chief Financial  
------------------------------------------------                         Officer 
               Frank P. Elsenbast                      (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) 
 
 
             /s/ MARSHALL S. GELLER                               Chairman of the Board 
------------------------------------------------ 
               Marshall S. Geller 
 
 
              /s/ JAMES J. BARNETT                                       Director 
------------------------------------------------ 
                James J. Barnett 
 
 
                /s/ JOHN D. BUCK                                         Director 
------------------------------------------------ 
                  John D. Buck 
 
 
           /s/ RONALD J. HERMAN, JR.                                     Director 
------------------------------------------------ 
             Ronald J. Herman, Jr. 
 
 
            /s/ DOUGLAS V. HOLLOWAY                                      Director 
------------------------------------------------ 
              Douglas V. Holloway 
 
 
                /s/ JAY IRELAND                                          Director 
------------------------------------------------ 
                  Jay Ireland 

                      NAME                                                TITLE 
                      ----                                                ----- 
 
 
            /s/ ROBERT J. KORKOWSKI                                      Director  
------------------------------------------------ 
              Robert J. Korkowski 
 
 
             /s/ GEORGE A. VANDEMAN                                      Director  
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------------------------------------------------ 
               George A. Vandeman 
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EXHIBIT 
 NUMBER                                EXHIBIT                                       FILED BY 
-------                                -------                                       -------- 
  2          Membership Interest Purchase Agreement  dated as of March     Incorporated by reference  
             28, 2007 by and among Polo Ralph Laure n Corporation, Ralph 
             Lauren Media, LLC, NBC-Lauren Media Ho lding, Inc., NBC 
             Universal, Inc., CNBC.COM LLC, and Val ueVision Media, Inc. 
  3.1        Sixth Amended and Restated Articles of  Incorporation, as     Incorporated by reference  
             Amended 
  3.2        Certificate of Designation of Series A  Redeemable            Incorporated by reference  
             Convertible Preferred Stock 
  3.3        Articles of Merger                                           Incorporated by reference  
  3.4        Bylaws, as amended                                           Incorporated by reference  
 10.1        Second Amended 1990 Stock Option Plan of the Registrant (as  Incorporated by reference  
             amended and restated) 
 10.2        Form of Option Agreement under the Ame nded 1990 Stock        Incorporated by reference  
             Option Plan of the Registrant 
 10.3        1994 Executive Stock Option and Compen sation Plan of the     Incorporated by reference  
             Registrant 
 10.4        Form of Option Agreement under the 199 4 Executive Stock      Incorporated by reference  
             Option and Compensation Plan of the Re gistrant 
 10.5        2001 Omnibus Stock Plan of the Registr ant                    Incorporated by reference  
 10.6        Amendment No. 1 to the 2001 Omnibus St ock Plan of the        Incorporated by reference  
             Registrant 
 10.7        Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreeme nt under the 2001      Incorporated by reference  
             Omnibus Stock Plan of the Registrant 
 10.8        Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agre ement under the 2001   Incorporated by reference  
             Omnibus Stock Plan of the Registrant 
 10.9        Form of Restricted Stock Agreement und er the 2001 Omnibus    Incorporated by reference  
             Stock Plan of the Registrant+ 
 10.10       Option Agreement between the Registran t and Marshall Geller  Incorporated by reference  
             dated as of March 3, 1997 
 10.11       Option Agreement between the Registran t and Marshall Geller  Incorporated by reference  
             dated May 9, 2001 
 10.12       Option Agreement between the Registran t and Marshall Geller  Incorporated by reference  
             dated June 21, 2001 
 10.13       Option Agreement between the Registran t and Robert           Incorporated by reference  
             Korkowski dated March 3, 1997 
 10.14       Option Agreement between the Registran t and Robert           Incorporated by reference  
             Korkowski dated May 9, 2001 
 10.15       Option Agreement between the Registran t and Robert           Incorporated by reference  
             Korkowski dated June 21, 2001 
 10.16       Employment Agreement between the Regis trant and William J.   Incorporated by reference  
             Lansing dated December 1, 2003 
 10.17       Option Agreement between the Registran t and William J.       Incorporated by reference  
             Lansing dated December 1, 2003 
 10.18       Option Agreement between the Registran t and Nathan Fagre     Incorporated by reference  
             dated May 1, 2000 
 10.19       2002 Annual Management Incentive Plan of the Registrant      Incorporated by reference  
 10.20       Employment Agreement between the Regis trant and Nathan E.    Incorporated by reference  
             Fagre dated April 30, 2000 

EXHIBIT 
 NUMBER                                EXHIBIT                                       FILED BY 
-------                                -------                                       -------- 
 10.21       Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreemen t between Registrant   Incorporated by reference  
             and Nathan E. Fagre dated as of April 5, 2001 
 10.22       Form of Salary Continuation Agreement between the            Incorporated by reference  
             Registrant and each of Nathan Fagre da ted July 2, 2003 and 
             Scott Danielson dated June 16, 2004 
 10.23       Option Agreement between the Registran t and Jim Gilbertson   Incorporated by reference  
             dated November 30, 2005.(EE) 
 10.24       Form of Option Agreement between the R egistrant and each of  Incorporated by reference  
             Brenda Boehler and Scott Danielson 
 10.25       Investment Agreement by and between th e Registrant and GE    Incorporated by reference  
             Equity dated as of March 8, 1999 
 10.26       First Amendment and Agreement dated as  of April 15, 1999 to  Incorporated by reference  
             the Investment Agreement, dated as of March 8, 1999, by and 
             between the Registrant and GE Equity 
 10.27       Distribution and Marketing Agreement d ated as of March 8,    Incorporated by reference  
             1999 by and between NBC and the Regist rant 
 10.28       Letter Agreement dated March 8, 1999 b etween NBC, GE Equity  Incorporated by reference  
             and the Registrant 
 10.29       Shareholder Agreement dated April 15, 1999 between the       Incorporated by reference  
             Registrant, and GE Equity 
 10.30       Amendment No. 1 dated March 19, 2004 t o Shareholder Agree-   Incorporated by reference  
             ment dated April 15, 1999 between the Registrant, NBC and 
             GE Equity 
 10.31       ValueVision Common Stock Purchase Warr ant dated as of April  Incorporated by reference  



 

             15, 1999 issued to GE Equity 
 10.32       Registration Rights Agreement dated Ap ril 15, 1999 between   Incorporated by reference  
             the Registrant, GE Equity and NBC 
 10.33       ValueVision Common Stock Purchase Warr ant dated as of April  Incorporated by reference  
             15, 1999 issued to NBC 
 10.34       Letter Agreement dated November 16, 20 00 between the         Incorporated by reference  
             Registrant and NBC 
 10.35       Warrant Purchase Agreement dated Septe mber 13, 1999 between  Incorporated by reference  
             the Registrant, Snap!LLC, a Delaware l imited liability 
             company and Xoom.com, Inc., a Delaware  corporation 
 10.36       Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated Se ptember 13, 1999 to    Incorporated by reference  
             purchase shares of the Registrant held  by Xoom.com, Inc., a 
             Delaware corporation.(I) 
 10.37       Registration Rights Agreement dated Se ptember 13, 1999       Incorporated by reference  
             between the registrant and Xoom.com, I nc., a Delaware 
             corporation, relating to Xoom.com, Inc .'s warrant to 
             purchase shares of the Registrant 
 10.38       Amended and Restated Limited Liability  Company Agreement of  Incorporated by reference  
             Ralph Lauren Media, LLC, a Delaware li mited liability 
             company, dated as of February 7, 2000,  among Polo Ralph 
             Lauren Corporation, a Delaware corpora tion, National 
             Broadcasting Company, Inc., a Delaware  corporation, the 
             Registrant, CNBC.com LLC, a Delaware l imited liability 
             company and NBC Internet, Inc., a Dela ware corporation 
 10.39       Agreement for Services dated February 7, 2000 between Ralph  Incorporated by reference  
             Lauren Media, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, 
             and VVI Fulfillment Center, Inc., a Mi nnesota corporation 

EXHIBIT 
 NUMBER                                EXHIBIT                                       FILED BY 
-------                                -------                                       -------- 
 10.40       Amendment to Agreement for Services da ted as of January 31,  Incorporated by reference  
             2003 between Ralph Lauren Media, LLC a nd VVI Fulfillment 
             Center, Inc 
 10.41       Trademark License Agreement dated as o f November 16, 2000    Incorporated by reference  
             between NBC and the Registrant 
 10.42       Warrant Purchase Agreement dated as of  November 16, 2000     Incorporated by reference  
             between NBC and the Registrant 
 10.43       Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated as  of November 16, 2000  Incorporated by reference  
             between NBC and the Registrant 
 10.44       Amendment No. 1 dated March 12, 2001 t o Common Stock         Incorporated by reference  
             Purchase Warrant dated as of November 16, 2000 between NBC 
             and the Registrant 
 10.45       ValueVision Common Stock Purchase Warr ant dated as of March  Incorporated by reference  
             20, 2001 between NBC and the Registran t 
 10.46       2004 Omnibus Stock Plan                                      Incorporated by reference  
 10.47       Form of Stock Option Agreement (Employ ees) under 2004        Incorporated by reference  
             Omnibus Stock Plan 
 10.48       Form of Stock Option Agreement (Execut ive Officers) under    Incorporated by reference  
             2004 Omnibus Stock Plan 
 10.49       Form of Stock Option Agreement (Execut ive Officers) under    Incorporated by reference  
             2004 Omnibus Stock Plan 
 10.50       Form of Stock Option Agreement (Direct ors -- Annual Grant)   Incorporated by reference  
             under 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan 
 10.51       Form of Stock Option Agreement (Direct ors -- Other Grants)   Incorporated by reference  
             under 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan 
 10.52       Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of F ebruary 9, 2005        Incorporated by reference  
             between GE Capital Equity Investments,  Inc. and Delta 
             Onshore, LP, Delta Institutional, LP, Delta Pleiades, LP 
             and Delta Offshore, Ltd. 
 10.53       Stock Purchase and Registration Agreem ent dated as of July   Incorporated by reference  
             8, 2005 between GE Capital Equity Inve stments, Inc. and 
             Janus Investment Fund 
 10.54       Stock Purchase and Registration Agreem ent dated as of July   Incorporated by reference  
             8, 2005 between GE Capital Equity Inve stments, Inc. and 
             Caxton International Limited 
 10.55       Stock Purchase and Registration Agreem ent dated as of July   Incorporated by reference  
             8, 2005 between GE Capital Equity Inve stments, Inc. and 
             Magnetar Investment Management, LLC 
 10.56       Stock Purchase and Registration Agreem ent dated as of July   Incorporated by reference  
             8, 2005 between GE Capital Equity Inve stments, Inc. and RCG 
             Ambrose Master Fund, Ltd., RCG Halifax  Fund, Ltd., Ramius 
             Securities, LLC, Starboard Value and O pportunity Fund, LLC, 
             Parche, LLC and Ramius Master Fund, Lt d 
 10.57       Employment Agreement between the Regis trant and Bryan        Incorporated by reference  
             Venberg dated May 3, 2004 
 10.58       Form of Change of Control and Severanc e Agreement with       Incorporated by reference  
             Executive Officers 
 10.59       Form of Resale Restriction Agreement w ith Executive          Incorporated by reference  
             Officers 
 10.60       2006 Long Term Incentive Plan                                Incorporated by reference  
 10.61       Description of Director Compensation P rogram Changes         Incorporated by reference  



 

 10.62       Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (Di rectors) under 2004    Incorporated by reference  
             Omnibus Stock Plan. 



 
 

EXHIBIT 
 NUMBER                                EXHIBIT                                       FILED BY 
-------                                -------                                       -------- 
 21          Significant Subsidiaries of the Regist rant                   Filed Herewith 
 23.1        Consent of Independent Registered Publ ic Accounting Firm     Filed Herewith 
 23.2        Consent of Independent Registered Publ ic Accounting Firm     Filed Herewith 
 23.3        Consent of Independent Registered Publ ic Accounting Firm     To be Filed by amendment  
 24          Powers of Attorney                                           Included with Signatures  
 31.1        Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification  of Chief Executive    Filed Herewith 
             Officer 
 31.2        Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification  of Chief Financial    Filed Herewith 
             Officer 
 32.1        Section 1350 Certification of Chief Ex ecutive Officer        Filed Herewith 
 32.2        Section 1350 Certification of Chief Fi nancial Officer        Filed Herewith 
 99.1        Audited Financial Statements for Ralph  Lauren Media, LLC as  Filed Herewith 
             of April 1, 2006, and for the fifteen- month period ended 
             April 1, 2006 
 99.2        Audited Financial Statements for Ralph  Lauren Media, LLC as  To be Filed by amendment  
             of March 31, 2007, and for the year en ded March 31, 2007 



.  

.  
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EXHIBIT 21  

SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT  

All of the Company's subsidiaries listed below are wholly owned.  

 
 

NAME                                                                                              STAT E OF INCORPORATION 
----                                                                                              ---- ------------------  
ValueVision Media, Inc.                                                                                 Minnesota 
VVI LPTV, Inc.                                                                                          Minnesota 
ValueVision Direct Marketing Company, Inc.                                                              Minnesota 
VVI Fulfillment Center, Inc.                                                                            Minnesota 
Packer Capital, Inc.                                                                                    Minnesota 
Enhanced Broadcasting Technologies, Inc.                                                                Minnesota 
Iosota, Inc.                                                                                            Delaware 
FanBuzz, Inc.                                                                                           Delaware 
FanBuzz Retail, Inc.                                                                                    Delaware 
ValueVision Media Acquisitions, Inc.                                                                    Delaware 
ValueVision Retail, Inc.                                                                                Delaware 



EXHIBIT 23.1  

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING  FIRM  

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 33-93006 on Form S-3 and Registration Statement Nos. 33-60549, 
33-68646, 33-68648, 33-96950, 333-40973, 333-40981, 333-75803, 333-84705, 333-46572, 333-46576, 333-81438, 333-113736, and 333-
139597 on Form S-8 of our reports dated April 11, 2007 relating to the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule of 
ValueVision Media, Inc. (which report expressed an unqualified opinion and included an explanatory paragraph relating to the Company's 
change in its method of accounting for stock-based compensation in 2006) and management's report on the effectiveness of internal control 
over financial reporting appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of ValueVision Media, Inc. for the year ended February 3, 2007.  

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP  
Minneapolis, MN  
APRIL 11, 2007  

 



EXHIBIT 23.2  

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS  

We consent to the use in this annual report on Form 10-K of ValueVision Media, Inc. and to the incorporation by reference in Registration 
Statement No. 33-93006 on Form S-3 and Registration Statement Nos. 33-60549, 33-68646, 33-68648, 33-96950, 333-40973, 333-40981, 333-
75803, 333-84705, 333-46572, 333-46576, 333-81438, 333-113736, and 333-139597 on Form S-8 of ValueVision Media, Inc. of our report 
dated October 30, 2006, (April 11, 2007 as to Note 10), (which report expresses an unqualified opinion and includes two explanatory 
paragraphs related to a change in the fiscal year end and a change in ownership interests) related to the financial statements of Ralph Lauren 
Media, LLC as of and for the 15 month period ended April 1, 2006, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of ValueVision Media, Inc. 
for the year ended February 3, 2007.  

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP  
New York, New York  
APRIL 11, 2007  

 



EXHIBIT 31.1  

CERTIFICATION  

I, William J. Lansing, certify that:  

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of ValueVision Media, Inc.;  

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary 
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this annual report;  

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;  

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined 
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, 
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those 
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  

(b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our 
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and  

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most 
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to 
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and  

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, 
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):  

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal 
control over financial reporting.  

 
 

                                              /s/ WILLIAM J. LANSING 
                                   --------------------------------------------- 
                                                William J. Lansing 
                                      Chief Executive Officer and President 
                                           (Principal Executive Officer) 
 
April 17, 2007 



EXHIBIT 31.2  

CERTIFICATION  

I, Frank P. Elsenbast, certify that:  

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of ValueVision Media, Inc.;  

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary 
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this annual report;  

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;  

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined 
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, 
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those 
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  

(b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our 
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and  

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most 
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to 
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and  

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, 
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):  

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal 
control over financial reporting.  

 
 

                                          /s/ FRANK P. ELSENBAST 
                          ------------------------------------------------------ 
                                            Frank P. Elsenbast 
                          Senior Vice President Finance, Chief Financial Officer 
                                       (Principal Financial Officer) 
 
April 17, 2007 



EXHIBIT 32.1  

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT T O 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  

I, William J. Lansing, Chief Executive Officer of ValueVision Media, Inc. (the "Company"), certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:  

1. The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the annual period ended February 3, 2007 (the "Report") fully complies with the 
requirements of  
Section 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m); and  

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the 
Company.  

 
 

                                              /s/ WILLIAM J. LANSING 
                                   --------------------------------------------- 
                                                William J. Lansing 
                                      Chief Executive Officer and President 
                                           (Principal Executive Officer) 
 
April 17, 2007 



EXHIBIT 32.2  

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT T O 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  

I, Frank P. Elsenbast, Chief Financial Officer of ValueVision Media, Inc. (the "Company"), certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:  

1. The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the annual period ended February 3, 2007 (the "Report") fully complies with the 
requirements of  
Section 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m); and  

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the 
Company.  

 
 

                                              /s/ FRANK P. ELSENBAST 
                                 ----------------------------------------------- 
                                                Frank P. Elsenbast 
                                 Vice President Finance, Chief Financial Officer 
                                           (Principal Financial Officer) 
 
April 17, 2007 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT  

To the Members of Ralph Lauren Media, LLC  

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Ralph Lauren Media, LLC (the "Company") as of April 1, 2006 and the related statements 
of income, partners' capital, and cash flows for the 15 month period then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Ralph Lauren Media LLC as of April 1, 
2006, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the 15 month period then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company changed its fiscal year-end from the Saturday closest to December 31st to the 
Saturday closest to March 31st.  

As discussed in Note 10, on March 28, 2007, one of the partners of the Company acquired the equity interest of the other two partners.  

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP  

October 30, 2006  
(April 11, 2007 as to Note 10)  
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RALPH LAUREN MEDIA, LLC  

BALANCE SHEET  
APRIL 1, 2006  
(IN THOUSANDS)  

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.  
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--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------- ---------- --------  
 
 
ASSETS 
 
CURRENT ASSETS: 
    Cash and cash equivalents                                                               $          33,804 
    Accounts receivable                                                                                 1,737 
    Related party receivables                                                                              98 
    Inventory                                                                                          16,793 
    Other current assets                                                                                   53 
                                                                                            ---------- --------  
 
         Total current assets                                                                          52,485 
 
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT---Net                                                                              307 
                                                                                            ---------- --------  
 
TOTAL ASSETS                                                                                $          52,792 
                                                                                            ========== ========  
 
 
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' CAPITAL 
 
CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
    Accounts payable and accrued expenses                                                   $           6,184 
    Related party payables                                                                              9,100 
                                                                                            ---------- --------  
 
         Total current liabilities                                                                     15,284 
 
PARTNERS' CAPITAL                                                                                      37,508 
                                                                                            ---------- --------  
 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' CAPITAL                                                     $          52,792 
                                                                                            ========== ========  



RALPH LAUREN MEDIA, LLC  

STATEMENT OF INCOME  
15 MONTH PERIOD ENDED APRIL 1, 2006  
(IN THOUSANDS)  

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.  
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--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------- ---------- --------  
 
 
NET REVENUES                                                                                $         106,216 
 
COST OF GOODS SOLD                                                                                     35,728 
                                                                                            ---------- --------  
 
         Gross profit                                                                                  70,488 
 
OPERATING EXPENSES--- 
    Selling, general and administrative                                                                49,750 
                                                                                            ---------- --------  
 
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS                                                                                 20,738 
 
INTEREST INCOME                                                                                           680 
                                                                                            ---------- --------  
 
NET INCOME                                                                                  $          21,418 
                                                                                            ========== ========  



RALPH LAUREN MEDIA, LLC  

STATEMENT OF PARTNERS' CAPITAL  
15 MONTH PERIOD ENDED APRIL 1, 2006  
(IN THOUSANDS)  

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.  
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--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------ 
 
 
                                        POLO RALPH                              NATIONAL 
                                          LAUREN           VALUEVISION        BROADCASTING 
                                        CORPORATION         MEDIA, INC.        COMPANY, INC.         TO TAL 
 
PARTNERS' CAPITAL -- 
January 1, 2005                        $       7,53 2       $     (8,426)      $      17,935       $   17,041 
 
    Contribution of services                   1,04 9                                                   1,049 
 
    Distribution of capital                   (1,00 0)              (250)               (750)          (2,000)  
 
    Net income                                10,70 9              2,677       $       8,032           21,418 
                                       ------------ --      -------------      --------------      ---- -------  
PARTNERS' CAPITAL - 
April 1, 2006                          $      18,29 0       $     (5,999)      $      25,217       $   37,508 
                                       ============ ==      =============      ==============      ==== ======= 



RALPH LAUREN MEDIA, LLC  

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
15 MONTH PERIOD ENDED APRIL 1, 2006  
(IN THOUSANDS)  

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.  
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--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------- ------ --------  
 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
    Net income                                                                                  $      21,418 
    Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash  provided by operating activities: 
      Services provided by Joint Venture Partners                                                       1,049 
    Changes in assets and liabilities: 
          Accounts receivable                                                                            (558)  
          Related party receivables                                                                     2,989 
          Inventory                                                                                    (5,658)  
          Other current assets                                                                             25 
          Accounts payable and accrued expenses                                                          (176)  
          Related party payables                                                                        3,440 
                                                                                                ------ --------  
 
                  Net cash provided by operating ac tivities                                            22,529 
                                                                                                ------ --------  
 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
    Capital expenditures                                                                                 (307)  
                                                                                                ------ --------  
 
                  Cash used in investing activities                                                       (307)  
                                                                                                ------ --------  
 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
    Distribution of capital                                                                            (2,000)  
                                                                                                ------ --------  
 
                  Cash used in financing activities                                                     (2,000)  
                                                                                                ------ --------  
 
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS                                                              20,222 
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS --- Beginning of period                                                      13,582 
                                                                                                ------ --------  
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS --- End of period                                                     $      33,804 
                                                                                                ====== ========  



RALPH LAUREN MEDIA, LLC  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
AS OF AND FOR THE 15 MONTH PERIOD ENDED APRIL 1, 2006  
(IN THOUSANDS)  

1. BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATION  

Ralph Lauren Media, LLC (the "Company") was formed to bring the Polo American lifestyle experience to consumers via multiple media 
platforms, including the Internet, broadcast, cable and print. The Company's first initiative is the Polo.com website, which opened its virtual 
doors in November 2000. Polo.com provides entertaining format and content that promotes and sells the Polo brands.  

The Company, which was formed in February 2000, is a 30 year joint venture between Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation ("Polo") which owns 
50% of the Company, National Broadcasting Company, Inc. ("NBC") which owns 37.5% of the Company, and ValueVision Media, Inc. 
(formerly ValueVision International, Inc.) ("ValueVision") which owns 12.5% of the Company. NBC and ValueVision collectively form the 
"Media Partners." The Company's managing board has equal representation from Polo and the Media Partners. The details are presented in the 
Joint Venture agreement dated February 7, 2000.  

Polo provides marketing through its annual print advertising campaign and provides inventory to the Company through a Supply Agreement 
(the "Supply Agreement"). Polo makes its merchandise available at cost of inventory and handles excess inventory through its outlet stores. As 
detailed in Note 9, Polo provides the Company with accounting, legal and human resources services as well as facilities support.  

As detailed in Note 9, ValueVision provides the Company with telemarketing, customer support and fulfillment operations.  

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION  

FISCAL YEAR--The Company's fiscal year end was changed this year. It is now based on a 12 month fiscal year which ends on the Saturday 
nearest to March 31. Previously the fiscal year ended on the Saturday nearest to December 31. All references to "Fiscal 2006" represent the 15 
month fiscal period ended April 1, 2006. This 15 month based financial statement begins January 1, 2005 and ends April 1, 2006. All 
references to "Fiscal 2007" represent the fiscal year ending March 31, 2007. Selected financial information derived from the results of 
operations for the three month periods ended April 1, 2006 and April 2, 2005 is as follows:  
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                               THREE MONTH PERIOD E NDED 
                          APRIL 1, 2006       APRIL  2, 2005 
                          ------------------------- ---------  
Net revenues                    $20,632             $16,223 
Cost of goods sold                7,115               5,961 
                          ------------------------- ---------  
Gross profit                     13,517              10,262 
Operating expenses                9,503               9,055 
                          ------------------------- ---------  
Income from operations            4,014               1,207 
Interest income                     357                  17 
                          ------------------------- ---------  
Net income                       $4,371              $1,224 
                          ========================= =========  



BASIS OF PRESENTATION (CONTINUED):  

USE OF ESTIMATES-- The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and assumptions affect 
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and the disclosure of gain and loss contingencies at the date of the financial statements. 
The amounts currently estimated by the Company are subject to change if different assumptions as to the outcome of future events were made. 
The Company evaluates its estimates and judgments on an ongoing basis and predicates those estimates and judgments on historical experience 
and on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management makes adjustments to its assumptions and 
judgments when facts and circumstances dictate. The primary estimates underlying the financial statements include sales returns and deferred 
revenue. Actual results may differ from the estimates used by the Company in preparing the accompanying financial statements.  

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

REVENUE RECOGNITION--The Company recognizes revenue from e-commerce sales upon receipt of products by customers. Sales to 
individuals are paid for entirely with credit cards. Shipping and handling fees billed to customers are included in net revenues and the related 
costs are included in operating expenses. The Company records revenue from gift cards as deferred revenue and recognizes revenue upon 
redemption. Gift cards sold to customers do not have expiration dates.  

Allowances for estimated returns are provided when sales are recorded. The Company's reserve for sales returns which is included in accounts 
payable and accrued expenses is approximately $1.4 million at April 1, 2006. Deferred revenues are reported according to the expected 
delivery date to the customer. It is estimated that the last three days of sales are considered deferred revenue and at April 1, 2006 was $0.6 
million and classified in accounts payable and accrued expenses.  

COST OF GOODS SOLD--Cost of goods sold includes the expenses incurred to acquire inventory for sale, including product costs, freight-in 
and import costs. This also includes reserves for shrinkage, damages and inventory obsolescence. The costs of selling merchandise, including 
preparing the merchandise for sale, such as picking, packing, shipping, warehousing and order costs are included in selling, general and 
administrative ("SG&A").  

SHIPPING AND HANDLING COSTS-- The costs associated with shipping goods to the customer are reflected as a component of SG&A. 
Shipping and handling costs incurred approximated $6.8 million in Fiscal 2006.  

ADVERTISING COSTS-- In accordance with American Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("AICPA") Statement of Position ("SOP") 
No. 93-7, Reporting on Advertising Costs, advertising costs, including the costs to produce advertising, are expensed upon the first time that 
the advertisement is exhibited. Advertising expense was approximately $5.0 million for Fiscal 2006. There were no deferred advertising costs 
recorded as of April 1, 2006.  

TECHNOLOGY AND WEBSITE DEVELOPMENT--The Company develops its website through use of internal and external resources. 
External costs incurred in connection with development of the website, prior to technological feasibility, are expensed when incurred. Costs 
incurred subsequent to technological feasibility through the period of the site availability are capitalized.  

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME--Comprehensive income was equal to the net income during Fiscal 2006.  
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED):  

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION-- Through the end of fiscal 2006, the Company used the intrinsic value method to account for stock-
based compensation in accordance with Accounting Principles Board ("APB") Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, 
("APB 25") and had adopted the disclosure-only provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Statement No. 123, 
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, as amended by FASB Statement No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation -- Transition 
and Disclosure ("FAS 123"). Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for fixed stock option grants issued at fair market value. 
This is for the issuance of Polo common stock and restricted stock units, which is managed by Polo. Had compensation costs for the Company's 
stock option grants been determined based on the fair value at the grant dates of such awards in accordance with FAS 123, the Company's net 
income would have been reduced to the pro forma amount as follow:  

 

For purposes of applying the pro forma disclosure requirements of FAS 123, the fair value of each stock option grant was estimated on the date 
of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The following weighted-average assumptions were used for all grants in Fiscal 2006: 
annual dividend rate of $0.20; expected volatility of 29.1%; risk-free interest rate of 3.66%; and an expected term to exercise of 5.2 years. In 
addition, see Note 4 to the Notes to Financial Statements for a discussion of the adoption of FASB Statement No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, 
("FAS 123R"), effective in Fiscal 2007, which requires compensation cost to be recognized for all stock-based compensation awards granted, 
modified or settled on or after April 2, 2006.  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS--Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three 
months or less.  

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE--The balance represents receivables related to sales generated from the website through GSI Commerce, Inc 
("GSI") a third-party provider of e-commerce solutions. GSI remits the collected tender to the Company.  

INVENTORY--Inventory, which consists entirely of finished goods, is valued at the lower of cost or market value as determined on a 
weighted-average cost basis. All risks of ownership of excess inventory, as defined by the Supply Agreement, are borne by Polo, who 
reimburses the Company at cost for all saleable inventories returned.  

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT--Property and equipment is carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Computer 
equipment and technology and website development are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of up to 3 
years when placed in service. Major additions are capitalized, and repairs and maintenance are charged to operations in the period incurred. 
Additions in Fiscal 2006 were not yet put into service at April 1, 2006.  

ACCOUNTING FOR THE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS--The Company records in-kind contributions from the partners at the partners' 
carrying value on their financial statements at the time of contribution. Partner cash contributions are recorded at the time of contribution.  
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Net income as reported                                      $21,418 
Deduct:  Total stock-based compensation expense 
determined under fair value based method for all 
awards                                                         (224)  
                                                            --------  
Pro forma net income                                        $21,194 
                                                            ========  



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED):  

INCOME TAX--The Company is not considered a taxable entity for Federal income tax purposes and most state income tax purposes. The 
members report any taxable income or losses on their respective income tax returns. As a result, no tax expense or benefit has been recorded by 
the Company for the period presented.  

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISKS--The Company is potentially exposed to credit risk primarily due to cash deposits. The Company 
reduces this risk by depositing all of its funds with a number of major banks and financial institutions and investing in high-quality instruments. 

4. RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS  

In December 2004, the FASB issued FAS 123R and, in March 2005, the US Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") issued Staff 
Accounting Bulletin No. 107 ("SAB 107"). SAB 107 provides implementation guidance for companies to use in their adoption of FAS 123R. 
FAS 123R supersedes both APB 25, which permitted the use of the intrinsic-value method in accounting for stock-based compensation, and 
FAS 123, which allowed companies applying APB 25 to just disclose in their financial statements the pro forma effect on net income from 
applying the fair-value method of accounting for stock-based compensation.  

Under FAS 123R, all forms of share-based payments to employees, including stock options, would be treated as compensation and recognized 
in the statement of operations based on their fair value at the date of grant for awards that actually vest. This standard is effective for awards 
granted, modified or settled by the Company beginning on April 2, 2006. The Company has historically accounted for stock-based 
compensation under APB 25 and has adopted FAS 123R effective as of Fiscal 2007 under the modified prospective transition method. The 
adoption of FAS 123R did not have a material impact on its financial statements. This program is managed by Polo and the cost is allocated to 
the Company.  

In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections ("FAS 154"). FAS 154 generally requires that 
accounting changes and errors be applied retrospectively. FAS 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal 
years beginning after December 15, 2005. The adoption of FAS 154 did not have a material impact on its financial statements.  

In March 2005, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional 
Asset Retirement Obligations ("FIN 47"). FIN 47 provides clarification regarding the timing of liability recognition for legal obligations 
associated with the retirement of a tangible long-lived asset when the timing and/or method of settlement are conditioned on a future event. The 
Company adopted the provisions of FIN 47 during Fiscal 2006. The application of FIN 47 did not have an impact on the Company's financial 
statements.  

In November 2004, the FASB issued Statement No. 151, Inventory Costs ("FAS 151"). FAS 151 clarifies standards for the treatment of 
abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and spoilage. FAS 151 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 
2005. The adoption of FAS 151 did not have a material effect on its financial statements.  

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108 ("SAB 108"). SAB 108 addresses the process and diversity in practice 
of quantifying financial statement misstatements resulting in the potential build-up of improper amounts on the balance sheet. The Company 
will be required to adopt the provisions of SAB 108 in fiscal year 2007. The Company does not expect the adoption of SAB 108 to have a 
material impact on its financial statements.  
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RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED):  

In March 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 156, Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets ("FAS 156") -- an amendment of FASB 
Statement No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, with respect to the 
accounting for separately recognized servicing assets and servicing liabilities. This statement is effective as of the beginning of an entity's first 
fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006. The Company believes FAS 156 does not have an impact on its financial statements.  

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157, Fair Value Measurements ("FAS 157"). FAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a 
framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This 
statement applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements, the Board having previously 
concluded in those accounting pronouncements that fair value is the relevant measurement attribute. Accordingly, this statement does not 
require any new fair value measurements. This statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 
15, 2007. The Company believes FAS 157 does not have an impact on its financial statements.  

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 158, Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans 
("FAS 158") - an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and  
132(R). FAS 158 improves financial reporting by requiring an employer to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit 
postretirement plan (other than a multiemployer plan) as an asset or liability in its statement of financial position and to recognize changes in 
that funded status in the year in which the changes occur through comprehensive income of a business entity or changes in unrestricted net 
assets of a not-for-profit organization. This statement also improves financial reporting by requiring an employer to measure the funded status 
of a plan as of the date of its year-end statement of financial position, with limited exceptions. An employer without publicly traded equity 
securities is required to recognize the funded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan and to provide the required disclosures as of the 
end of the fiscal year ending after June 15, 2007. The Company believes FAS 158 does not have an impact on its financial statements.  

In June 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in 
Income Taxes ("FIN 48") -- an interpretation of FASB Statement No.  
109. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise's financial statements in accordance with FAS 
109, Accounting for Income Taxes. This interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement 
recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. This Interpretation also provides guidance on 
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. This interpretation is effective for 
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company believes FIN 48 does not have a material impact on its financial statements.  
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5. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES  

The Company's accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following as of April 1, 2006:  

 

Contributions of services by Polo had a value of $1.0 million in Fiscal 2006 which were determined on a proportional cost allocation method. 
Distributions of capital amounted to $2.0 million in Fiscal 2006, and were allocated in accordance with ownership percentages.  

The Company allocates profits and losses to the partners in accordance with the LLC Agreement. The LLC agreement provides that losses are 
first allocated to the partners in a manner to make their partner's tax basis capital account balances consistent with their ownership percentages, 
then pro rata in accordance with their ownership percentages. Profits of the Company are allocated to the partners in accordance with their 
ownership percentages.  

7. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION  

In connection with the hiring of key executives, Polo has issued options for the purchase of Polo common stock and restricted stock units to 
certain executives of the Company. Polo granted 20,015 options on June 15, 2005 at an exercise price of $43.05 equal to fair market value at 
the date of grant. The options become exercisable ratably, over a three-year vesting period for employees. The stock options generally expire 
either seven or ten years from the date of grant. This is managed by Polo.  

Polo granted 3,400 restricted stock units on June 15, 2005, which are subject to Polo's satisfaction of performance goals and will vest in three 
equal installments on the first three anniversaries of the grant date through June 15, 2008. Performance-based restricted stock units also are 
payable in shares of Polo's common stock and may vest over  
(1) a three-year period of time (cliff vesting), subject to the employee's continuing employment and Polo's satisfaction of certain performance 
goals over the three-year period; or (2) ratably over a three-year period of time (graded vesting), subject to the employee's continuing 
employment during the applicable vesting period and the achievement by the Company of separate annual performance goals. Compensation 
expense for performance-based restricted stock units is recognized over the service period when attainment of the performance goals is 
probable. The is accounted as variable arrangements. The Company is required to reimburse Polo for the expense and has recorded 
compensation expense of $0.3 million in Fiscal 2006 related to the restricted stock units and are included in SG&A.  
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       Operating expenses                                           $  1,568  
       Reserve for sales returns                                       1,419  
       Gift cards liability                                            1,154  
       Accrued employee costs                                          1,042  
       Sales tax payable                                                 389  
       Deferred revenue                                                  612  
                                                                    --------  
                                                                    $  6,184  
                                                                    ========  
 
6.     PARTNERS' CAPITAL 



8. SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS  

In May 2003, the Company entered into an agreement with Amazon.com ("Amazon") whereby the Company would make its website available 
through Amazon.com's internet operations. As part of the arrangement, a percentage of sales to customers who access Polo.com through the 
Amazon.com web portal are paid as a commission to Amazon. Amazon is also responsible for credit card fees and credit risk on transactions 
processed through their operations. The Company began selling through the Amazon site in October 2003. During Fiscal 2006, the Company 
recorded expenses of approximately $0.5 million.  

In November 2003, the Company entered into an agreement with GSI for e-commerce technology services. In connection with this agreement, 
the Company pays a service fee to GSI equivalent to a percentage of net merchandising revenue, as defined in the agreement. GSI is also 
responsible for all credit card processing fees and credit risk on all sales processed through its technology platform with the exception of sales 
through Amazon's internet operations as described above. During Fiscal 2006, the Company recorded expenses of approximately $12.3 million. 

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  

LICENSING--The Company entered into a license agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of Polo (the "License Agreement"). The terms 
of the License Agreement require the Company to pay a royalty on the sale of Polo products based on a specified percentage of net retail sales. 
The volume of net retail sales shall be reset to zero each year. The royalty calculation is based on a calendar year ending December 31, 2005.  

During fiscal 2006, the Company paid royalties of $0.5 million which are included in SG&A.  

INVENTORY--Under the terms of the Supply Agreement, the Company has the right to purchase its inventory from Polo, its suppliers and its 
licensees, at Polo's cost. During Fiscal 2006, the Company purchased approximately $33.1 million or 74% of its inventory from Polo and its 
suppliers, and the remaining 26% of the Company's inventory was purchased from Polo licensees. The Company relies on Polo and its 
relationship with its suppliers to achieve favorable inventory costs in accordance with the Supply Agreement. If Polo were to terminate the 
Supply Agreement or be unable to continue its relationships with its suppliers there may be a material adverse effect to the Company and its 
cost of doing business. At least twice a year, Polo agrees to purchase from the Company at the Company's cost, all unsold Polo products that 
were purchased in accordance with the Supply Agreement, subject to certain exclusions. During Fiscal 2006, Polo purchased $3.7 million in 
unsold inventory from the Company. At April 1, 2006, the Company had a receivable and a payable due to Polo for inventory and other 
services of approximately $0.1 million and $6.9 million, respectively. These amounts are included in related party receivables and related party 
payables in the accompanying balance sheet.  

FULFILLMENT--ValueVision provides telemarketing, customer support and fulfillment operations to the Company based on the agreement 
entered on May 18, 2004. For Fiscal 2006, telemarketing, customer support and fulfillment expenses (inclusive of system expenses) amounted 
to approximately $10.6 million and are included in SG&A. The liability for these services was $2.2 million and is included in related party 
payables in the accompanying balance sheet.  

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES--Polo provides the Company with administrative services in the way of accounting, treasury, human 
resources, payroll services, accounts payable services, office space and utilities, IT support and legal services. The services Polo provided 
totaled approximately $1.0 million for Fiscal 2006 based on a proportional cost allocation method and are included in SG&A and as a capital 
contribution in Polo's capital account. The Company reimburses payroll and operating expenses which are initially paid by Polo.  
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED):  

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS--The Company currently does not maintain any of its own employee benefit plans, including, health, dental, short-
term disability, long-term disability and 401(k). Polo administers these benefits and the Company's employees are permitted to participate. 
During Fiscal 2006, the Company recorded expenses of approximately $1.1 million for these benefits based on a proportional cost allocation 
method.  

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  

In October 2006, the Company amended its Services Agreement with ValueVision. The amendment provided for an extension of the term of 
the agreement to August 31, 2008, with an option to extend this term for up to an additional 12 months, required the Company to commit to 
minimum order and call center contact volumes, and changed its order fulfillment pricing from a net order to gross units shipped pricing 
structure, among other things.  

On December 18, 2006, the Company entered into a lease agreement for a 360,000 square foot distribution center facility located in High Point, 
North Carolina. The lease has an initial term of fifteen years and contains four 5-year extension options. Rent commences upon the substantial 
completion of the facility by the lessor which is anticipated to be in September 2007. During the first year, the fixed annual rent is 
approximately $1,264,000 with annual rent increases over the initial lease term of 1.125%.  

On March 28, 2007, Polo acquired the 50% equity interest in the Company held by NBC and its related entities (37.5%) and ValueVision and 
its related entities (12.5%). As a result of this transaction, the Company is now a wholly-owned subsidiary of Polo, and NBC and ValueVision 
no longer have any Partners' Capital in the Company. In connection with the acquisition, the LLC Agreement, the Operating Agreement, the 
Supply Agreement, the License Agreement, the Advertising Agreement, the Promotion Agreement and the Restated Limited Liability 
Company Agreement were all terminated. The Services Agreement, whereby ValueVision provides telemarketing, customer support and 
fulfillment operations to the Company, is still in effect, as amended.  
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